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DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
EFHEE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Aceso Life Science Group
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”).

Atter three years, the world has finally recovered from the pandemic and moved
towards the “post-pandemic era”. However, the global economy still faced many
challenges, including the ongoing Russian-Ukraine war, geopolitical tensions,
high global inflation and interest rate, which also had a certain impact on global
economic activities. Among this complicated external environment, the Group
has adopted a sound financial policy, and actively explored new development
opportunities.

We expected the Year 2023 market conditions to be similar to last year. Although
the global and local economic and business environment is still affected by the
uncertainties, the Group will continue to create value for shareholders and seize
opportunities, continue to optimize its business portfolio, and get ready for new
investment opportunities.

In terms of the existing construction machinery business, due to the relatively
stable undertaking of government infrastructure projects, the Group managed to
record an increase in the (i) sales of construction machinery and spare parts, and
(i) rental income generated from construction machinery during the Year. The
occupancy rate for the rental machineries was approximately 90%.

For the financial services business, we shall continue our business expansion
with a cautious and positive attitude. The Group is confident in the prospects of
the financial markets in Hong Kong and the Mainland China, and would like to
increase its presence in the financial markets by either organic growth or working
with reputable partners.

For our investment property in the United Kingdom (the “UK™), 55 Mark Lane, the
rental income is steady through the Year. The Group does not foresee significant
fluctuation in rental income in Year 2023.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to all the Shareholders for their full support, and appreciate the directors, the
management and the staff for their valuable contributions to the Group, which
shall strive to streamline its existing businesses and to explore new business
opportunities in order to create returns for Shareholders.

Mr. Fok Chi Tak
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEFWE S

BUSINESS REVIEW

2022 was another challenging year as the global and local pandemic of
COVID-19 disrupted all types of activities. Amid major economies gradually
resumed economic activities among the post-pandemic era, the global economy
was still affected by the Russia-Ukraine War, heightened geo-political tension,
high global inflation and interest rate. The global and Hong Kong economy have
remained vulnerable as economic recovery was uneven in different sectors. The
Group remained resilient and focused on its existing businesses.

Though operations of the construction industry in Hong Kong have been affected
as a consequence of COVID-19, due to the relatively stable undertaking of
government infrastructure projects, such as the Mobile Cabin Hospital (/5 48
£ 5¢) and the 3rd runway of the Hong Kong International Airport, the Group
managed to record an increase in the i) sales of construction machinery and
spare parts, and ii) rental income generated from construction machinery during
the Year. The occupancy rate for the rental machineries kept at approximately
90%.

During the Year, the Group continued to pursue a long-term business strategy
of diversifying into financial services business, property leasing, property
development business, and construction machinery business. The Group’s
principal activities include: (i) securities investment; (ii) provision of securities
brokerage and financial services; (iii) asset management; (iv) rental and
trading of construction machinery; (v) provision of repair and maintenance and
transportation service; (vi) property development; (vii) property leasing and (viii)
money lending.

R¥OER

002F 75— Az mkE R —F - COVID-198 2
KR A KRITEBLAT A EAMES - £ K
MITER  EBEEERBERSMELE TR
B 2EEEDAZIHREEHFE  HABAER
KEZEME - 2XREBERMAENTE - 23K
MEBRNEEDNANS  BATRITENLE
BRI THE - EBINARTEN  BERR
BER -

BERBRER S MNEBZBICOVID-19ZF
£ NAFE  dRARBTEZERBRA
HBIRE - PInTTR B R B BB EEE =
B AREDEERR S ERTHHER LA E
ZRASHABRRERFTEERIMNETE
BERZHEEN  Mi)EEBREE ZES W
ARG IENE - THEWMIG R RRFFELI0%

RAFE  NEBEEFTREFHRE %
TEMRESRRBES - MEHRE  WEH
REBGLEERMER AKEIEXHKE
B ()EHFRE  (NERREFELEREMSR
R (NEEERE  (VEERWEEREE
(IR ERREARERRS - (vVi)EE
& (VDRS¢ AR (Vi) & ©

TE I EFR EREGRBREEERAT 5



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRR DN

Construction machinery business

The Group offers crawler cranes of different sizes, other mobile cranes, aerial
platforms and foundation equipment in its construction machinery rental
fleet. The Group procures these construction machinery mainly through the
manufacturers of construction machinery located in Western Europe, Japan and
China as well as traders of used construction machinery around the world. The
Group has maintained approximately 175 units of construction machinery in the
rental fleet during the Year. In order to maintain a modern fleet of construction
machinery with a greater variety of models, the Group has been replacing
portions of its fleet of construction machinery from time to time. The Board
will continue to monitor the daily operations and review the expansion plan of
the rental fleet and the capital requirements of the Group regularly. The Group
may reschedule such expansion plan according to the operation and needs, the
preference of the target customers and prevailing market conditions if necessary.
To satisfy customers’ needs, the Group also sells spare parts for maintenance
pUrpOSes Or upon request.

Financial services husiness

The Group holds licenses for conducting Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type
4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”). The Group provides a
wide range of financial services. The revenue for the Year of the financial services
business (including provision of asset management, securities brokerage and
other financial services) was approximately HK$10 million (2022: approximately
HK$16 million), represented approximately 3% (2022: approximately 5%) of the
total revenue of the Group and a segment profit of approximately HK$15 million
(2022: approximately HK$10 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due
to decrease in the value and volume of transactions in securities brokerage.

In the course of preparing the financial statements for the Year, the Company had
reviewed the recoverable amount of the trading right of the business carrying
on the regulated activities of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) as defined under the SFO. During the
Year, no impairment loss (2022: nil) on the trading right was recognised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENRR TN

Money lending business

The Group holds money lender licenses under the Money Lenders Ordinance in
Hong Kong and the money lending business was conducted through its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries, to grant loans to individuals and enterprises. The
Group strived to adhere to a set of comprehensive policy and procedural manual
in respect of loan approval, loan renewal, loan recovery, loan compliance,
monitoring and anti-money laundering.

(a) The size and diversity and sources of its clients, and source of
funding of the money lending business

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had loans receivable with carrying
amount of approximately HK$145 million (2022: HK$347 million). A total
of approximately HK$258 million of the loan receivables and interest
income receivables was received from borrowers during the Year. The
Group recorded interest income from loans receivable of approximately
HK$14 million for the Year (2022: HK$41 million). During the Year, the
Group granted two loans to independent third parties with a carrying
amounts of approximately HK$31 million.

As at 31 March 2023, there are a total number of 16 borrowers (14
individuals and 2 corporations) under the Company’s Loan portfolio.
The Company provides its mortgage financing service to individual and
corporation clients of different backgrounds, including home owners and
investment holding company, who are referred to it by sales executives.
The source of funds for the money lending business is funded by the
internal resources of the Group.

As at 31 March 2023, 12 loans with amount of approximately HK$103
million were overdue, 10 loans are supported by personal guarantee and/
or collateral, interest rate ranging from 8% to 16% per annum. A total of
12 cases with amount of approximately HK$103 million were under legal
proceedings (including assets under public auctions).

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount outstanding from the five
largest borrowers of the Group totaling to HK$109 million (representing
75% to the total loans receivable of the Group) while the carrying amount
outstanding from the largest borrower amounted to HK$32 million
(representing approximately 22% to the total loans receivable of the
Group).

BERY

AEBEFRABEBEAMEPIRT 2 HE AR
R MUEXHEBENE AR REA LD
ERBERMETT - AEEESREFREL -
ERER - EkE - ERAER - BERERS
RETHRNET - E2ENBREMERFT
o

(a) HEFMRE STIERREKE  LERHE
KEHBRRKE

RZEBE-=F=A=+—H KEEKNE
WEREEENAISEEST(CTE =
FUTEEBIT) 0 WRARFERERER
AL #258'8 &% T A FE U E B K E MR
B o KEESSRUERFBWAL
UEBSBT(CE-_—F : MEEBT) o
RAFE  AEERBYE=FREHWE
(ZE2EZ=F - M EFNEREEEENN A
&

RZB_=F=A=+—0H ARANE
FAEPHEE16REBRA 4R EA KRR
®%) - ARBATRABRHNEAREE
EFRHZREBRERKSMBEAER - B85
IZEFBREEFEMENEEINAR
HEHHEABNAR - HEXBHNES K
IREASEAEBEREH o

N-ZE-=F=A=+—H " B12E5%58
#103E BB T ZEREEE - MI0EER
ThLAEAER K,/ SR IR R BRI - &5
ENT8%E16% @ & H12E LN A103H
ERTEEITEAEZEF(BIEEENRS) -

R-ZE_=F=fF=+—H AEEAK
ERANREERTEST /I00EHET
(EREBEWEFRATENTE%) - MERA
ERANREEREERRZAELBTUEA
SERWEFRARERH22%) °

TECCHIT=FEFR GHEGTHNBEEERRAR 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWERIN
(b) Credit risk assessment policy

The Group has performed background and credit risk assessment on the
potential borrowers before granting the loans by (a) searching on their
identity and background; (b) reviewing and assessing their financial
information; and (c) performing an assessment on their creditability.

The Group has adopted a credit policy to manage its money lending
business which includes compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations, credit assessment on potential borrower and his/its assets,
the credibility of the potential borrower, the necessity in obtaining
collaterals and determination of suitable interest rate to reflect the risk
level of the provision of loan.

The Company’s money lending business offers both secured and
unsecured loans to borrowers comprising individuals and corporations.
The Company has adopted a credit risk policy and put in place loan
approval procedures to manage its money lending business which
includes compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, credit
assessment on potential borrower and his/its assets, the credibility of the
potential borrower, the necessity in obtaining collaterals, assessment of
the use of proceeds and the source of repayment. Details of such policy
and procedures are all consolidated in an Internal Control Manual which
governs the operations of our money lending business and relevant staff
are required to abide by in conducting their behaviours and delivering
their target performance. In granting loans to clients, documents such as
loan application, proof of identity, employer/income verification, proof
of address and any relevant credit reports of potential borrowers. The
scope of money lending services provided by the money lending business
generally includes personal loans, business loans on general working
capital. The Company tries to diversify the loan portfolio by providing to
different borrowers to lower the concentration risk. The Company does
not have preference for specific types of borrowers for loan acceptance
(e.g. job/business nature of borrower). The credit risk assessment was
made in case-by-case basis and the Company generally looks at the 5
Cs in assessment of credit risk of borrowers, the 5 Cs are credit history,
capacity to repay, capital, the loan’s condition and associated collaterals.
These includes but not limited to reviewing the financials of borrowers,
considering the borrower’s repayment history and evaluating whether the
borrowers are in bankruptcy, receivership or liquidation. Within a loan
category, the interest rates, the duration of the loan and repayment terms
of the loan vary and is determined by factors such as background and
credibility of borrowers, their business plans and present and projected
operation performance, the collateral security to be made available by
these borrowers, and their repayment track records (if the loan is sought
by existing borrowers and previous borrowers). The determination of the
loan terms reflects the risk level of the provision of loan and ensure the
risk is at a controllable level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM
(c) Key internal controls

The Group also assesses and decides the necessity and the value of
security/collateral for granting of each loan, whether to an individual or
enterprise, on a case by case basis considering factors, including but not
limited to, the repayment history, results of public search towards the
borrower, the value and location of the assets owned by the borrower and
the financial condition of the borrower.

For credit approval before granting loans to potential borrowers, the
Company performs credit assessment process to assess the potential
borrowers’ credit quality individually, such as their identity and
background, assessment on their creditability, financial background of the
borrowers (again, factors such as background and credibility of borrowers,
their business plans and present and projected operation performance,
the collateral security to be made available by these borrowers, and their
repayment track records (if the loan is sought by existing clients) are
considered), as well as the value and characteristics of the collaterals to
be pledged. The loan proposals will be prepared by the designated loan
officer and review by risk management department of money lending
business on case specific issues in relation to the factors described above
to determine if they have been thoroughly considered. Risk management
department of money lending business will discuss each case back and
forth with loan officer to fine tune its loan proposal and risk management
department will make official comments on the submission draft. The loan
proposal together with the comments from risk management department
will then be sent to the approver(s), who are Director(s) designated with
such role and function for approval through physical meeting or emails.
Approver(s) may also comment, add pre-conditions and improve the
terms and conditions during this process. The relevant department head(s)
and approver(s) will sign off the proposals once approval is obtained for
proper record.

The Company has designated loan officer to closely monitor its loan
portfolio, include regular communication with the borrowers of their
financial position together with other measure such as monthly assessment
of valuation of collateral (if any), repayment track record of borrower(s),
change of profile of borrower(s) (such as change of employment and
if there is additional liabilities on the part of the borrower(s), through
which the Company will be able to keep updated with the latest credit
profile and risk associated with each individual borrower and could take
appropriate actions for recovery of a loan at the earliest time. Also, risk
management department, which comprised of officers with background in
finance, auditing and experience in money lending business will review
the risk level of each of the loans on a daily basis and report to the senior
management which includes Chief Executive Officer, Financial Controller
and the Board in some cases regularly on their recommendation. From
time to time, risk management department of the money lending business
will alert the senior management on certain events (e.g. default repayment)
and advise the Company to take appropriate actions. The accounts
department of the money lending business will also keep track of the
repayment schedule constantly and make alerts to senior management,
the Financial Controller and Chief Executive Officer in case of failed or late
repayment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWERIN
(d) Recoverability and collection

(e)

10

At each month end, the designated loan officer will check if there is
overdue balances or late payment and risk management department as
described above will perform an independent review on the loans portfolio
and closely monitor the status and report to the senior management.
Usually there would be internal discussions on a case-by-case basis on
what recovery actions to be taken so that the Company could recover
the most in a timely fashion. Means like phones calls, seizure of
collaterals, statutory demand letter and further legal actions would be
discussed. Reminder letter and statutory demand letter will be issued to
the borrower when considered appropriate if there is overdue repayment.
Where appropriate, legal action will be initiated against the borrower for
the recovery of the amount due and taking possession of the collateral
pledged. Actions in seizure of collaterals and realization of underlying
collaterals would also be taken if necessary. Where appropriate, the
Company will also petition to the court for winding-up of the borrower
and/or guarantor. Again, the recovery and collection decisions and
processes are included in the monthly risk management report to the
senior management.

The Director who operates and oversees the money lending business have
vast experiences and knowledge in the industry. The risk management
department which includes a senior financial management of the
Company’s money lending business and holds a bachelor's degree in
Business and an Associated Degree in Psychology, and has more than
15 years’ experience in the money lending industry. The Company’s
management team, which includes the chief executive officer, chief
financial officer of the Company and the Company’s financial controller
and the company secretary, also possesses over 10 years of experience
in the corporate and banking industry and the field of accounting and
auditing. Additionally, most of the Board members also possess extensive
experience in corporate financing, investments and banking and financial
advisory services.

Compliance with Chapter 14 and/or 14A of the Listing Rules
and Money Lenders Ordinance

Our Group is required to and has, at all times, strictly complied with
all relevant laws and regulations. The Company has complied with the
requirements as set out in Chapter 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules when
it granted or extended the loans to each of the respective borrower whose
loan was still outstanding as at 31 March 2023.

In addition to the Listing Rules, the Money Lenders Ordinance constituted
a major governance on our Group’s money lending business in Hong
Kong. During the Year, we did not receive any objection from and was not
investigated by the Registrar of Money Lenders (presently performed by
the Registrar of Companies) nor the Commissioner of Police regarding the
renewal of the money lenders license.
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(f)

(9)

(h)

Amount of loan receivables secured by pledge of collaterals
and guarantees, and nature of the collaterals

() LUERRMNBERSEFOELREREE
LIREHRER

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

—E_=F —ECF
=B=+—HB =A=+—H
HK$’million HK$'million
BHERET BEAT
Hong Kong money lending business BAEWEES
— Secured only by corporate notes, sharesand ~ —{ZAERGR AR ZEE « BREF
properties BEEER 23 81
— Secured only by personal guarantees —ZAEARRERER 30 40
— Secured only by corporate notes, receivable —ELARBIERE - ERGIER
and properties and personal guarantees B E R ABRERER 32 40
— Unsecured and no guarantee — EA IR R AEAR 27 42
112 203
Maturity profile of loan receivables (o) BERREKBOIER
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
—EZ= —E-F
=B=+—B =A=+—H
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Hong Kong money lending business BB E T
Due within 1 year 165 A EI|HF 112 187
Due within 2 to 5 years 2-5F N EIHA - 7
Due over 5 years 54 LA %1 58 - 9
112 203

Mortgage loan and personal loan interest rate

The mortgage loan interest rate is ranging from 8% to 15% per annum
(2022: 8% to 18% per annum). The personal loan interest rate is ranging
from 11% to 15% per annum (2022: 10% to 16% per annum).
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(i) Reasons for the movements in impairment provisions in the

12

year

The reversal of impairment recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit and loss for year ended 31 March 2023 are HK$22 million (2022:
impairment provision of approximately HK$13 million). The reversal
of impairment was because of loan of approximately HK$258 million
recovered during the year.

The Company adopted the requirements in respect of expected credit
losses assessment set forth in HKFRS 9 issued by the HKICPA in
determining the impairment loss allowance for its loan receivables. The
details of the accounting policies in respect of the impairment assessment
of financial assets are set out in the Annual Report to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in the Annual Report. The Company has
taken into account the following factors on the impairment assessment for
the outstanding loans and unlisted debt securities due from the connected
parties and independent third parties in accordance with the HKFRS 9:
(i) the probability of default and the likelihood that the borrowers may fail
to pay back the loans. The Company will perform due diligence on the
financial statements and consider the macro-environment and the latest
announcements of the borrowers. The repayment history of the borrowers
will also be taken into account; (ii) the loss given default and the expected
cash shortfall between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.
The Company will consider the value of the collaterals pledged for the
loans, if any; and (iii) forward-looking market data such as gross domestic
product will also impact on the recoverability of the loans. The Company
regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

As at 31 March 2023, the management had engaged an independent
qualified valuer to determine the expected credit losses of the Group’s
loans receivable (the “loans receivable ECL”). In assessing the loans
receivable ECL of the Group, a credit rating analysis of the underlying
debtors was adopted by reviewing the historical accounting information
to estimate the default risk. The Group applied different expected loss
rates to different classes of receivables according to their respective risk
characteristics. In determining the default risk, factors including but not
limited to, the ageing analysis of the receivables, the Group’s internal
assessment of the debtors’ credit worthiness, historical and forecast
occurrence of event of default, existence and valuation of the collaterals,
the relevant regulatory framework and government policies in Hong
Kong and global economic outlook in general and the specific economic
condition of Hong Kong would be considered. The rate of loans receivable
ECL ranged from 3% to 61% depending on the nature (2022: 4% to
58%), probability of default and loss of the loans receivable.
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Securities investment business

The Group had various securities in its investment portfolio such as listed equity
securities, unlisted equity securities, unlisted funds, unlisted debts, etc. A fair
value loss of approximately HK$82 million was recorded during the Year (2022:
fair value loss of approximately HK$510 million).

For the investment in Tisé Opportunities SPC, the Company had engaged an
independent qualified valuer to determine its fair value, which is primarily making
reference to the information available in the market. During the Year, a fair value
loss of HK$30 million was recognised.

Leasing business

During the Year, the rental income derived from 55 Mark Lane contributed
revenue of approximately HK$55 million (2022: approximately HK$71 million)
and the fair value loss on investment property was approximately HK$19 million
(2022: fair value gain of approximately HK$85 million).

Property development business

The Group has property development projects in Cambodia and Malaysia. In
Cambodia, the Council of Ministers approved the project company to establish
a special economic zone with a size of 17,252,519 square meters at Koh Kong
Province, Cambodia. The project company shall have the sole and exclusive
right to develop the special economic zone with all the necessary land use rights,
including those for residential, industrial and commercial development purposes.
The project was still in its preliminary stage during the Year because of the
impact of COVID-19 in Cambodia.

The Group has another property development project in Malaysia. The project
is a residential and commercial mixed property development project located at
Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia comprising 267,500 square meters (or
2,879,343 square feet). The property is held from the government for a lease term
of 99 years expiring on 8 February 2097 for residential and commercial building
uses. The project was still in its preliminary stage during the Year because of the
impact of COVID-19 in Malaysia.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group had incurred a loss of approximately HK$208 million for the Year
(2022: approximately HK$596 million). Such loss was mainly attributable to
the net fair value losses in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$82 million (2022: approximately HK$510 million).

Revenue

During the Year, the total revenue was approximately HK$312 million (2022:
approximately HK$315 million), representing a decrease by approximately HK$3
million, or approximately 1%. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue generated from money lending.

Sales of construction machinery and spare parts, rental income
from construction machinery and repair and maintenance and
transportation service income

During the Year, the sales of construction machinery and spare parts, rental
income generated from construction machinery and repair and maintenance
and transportation service income were approximately HK$65 million
(2022: approximately HK$49 million), approximately HK$160 million (2022:
approximately HK$128 million) and approximately HK$8 million (2022:
approximately HK$10 million), respectively. The increase in revenue for sales
of construction and spare parts was mainly attributable to the increase in rental
income was mainly attributable to the increased in government projects, such
as Mobile Cabin Hospital (77 #8&555) and the 3rd runway system of the Hong
Kong International Airport.

Money lending, asset management, securities brokerage and
other financial services

During the Year, the revenue from money lending, asset management, securities
brokerage, and other financial services decreased by HK$33 million, or 58%.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in loan receivable
business.
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Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (“FVTPL”), net

DlaFEsE RSt ARR ((LAFE

AFEHRESHARRZEMBEZLTF
EERBH

The details of the Group’s securities investments and the net fair value losses ~ MAANEE - REB Z BAKRENCHER A FE
recognised for the Year are set out as follows: R FEEFEHNINT
Numberof ~ Percentage of Numberof ~ Percentage of Percentage offotal
sharesheld ~ shareholdings sharesheld ~ shareholdingg Fair value Fairvalue  Fairvalue (losses)/  assets ofthe Group
I March 2022 ot March2022  at3tMach2023  al3tManch2023  aldfMarch2022 ~ at3!March2023  gaing forthe Year  at31 March 2023
RZBZZE
ROBZZE RIBIZE RIBCZE RIBIZE RIBCIE BIBIZ REEEC  ZRA=t-R
ZB=t-B  ZRZt-Ar  ZRAEt-R ZREt-Re  ZREt-A¢  ZAEt-AY LFE  hRSEEE
L BRESL  MkRARA hEEAM AFE AFE (BH)/MR  BEZEMH
(Noes) (note 1) HKS millon HKS millon HKS million
L] (Wik) ] £ [} £ ERER
Name)(Stock Cote) 5/ (RAKE)
Shndong Hi-Sped ldngs GropLinited U SERERAAGIE 2 12000 0.00% 3000 0.00% - - - -
(Fomet ChinaShadong i Spee hELRERERE
FianialGroup L) (1) BERAF) (112
Hliane ol Fducato ezsing REBRYERERR 3 27,566,336 18% 2809133 166% 9 1 4 2.04%
Holdings Lt (Formery ematonl BRAFGIRERR
lianosFiraning Lasng Company BREREERAA)
Limitd) 1563 (1563)
Camiva Group ntematonel Limted (9%) BERRERERAT 3624400 0.38% 3624400 0.38% - - - -
(%9)
Impel Pac tematone Klding Linfed Tﬁﬁﬂ‘ BRERE 4 203,100,000 191% 203,100,000 191% 13 13 - 0.20%
] BRAE(1076)
Pt Holdngs nmeone Linied ()~ R RIEREIB AR LA 493,000 046% 463,000 0.46% 1 1 - 0.02%
(36)
Befing Propertes (odingg) Limied 005) St RER(ER)ERAF) 8,140,000 0.12% 8,140,000 0.12% 1 1 - 0.02%
(929)
Vit Mind Holding Compary Limted (1520) R MEFERRB TR 281 520) 5 263,994,000 16.86% 283,994,000 14.24% 8 59 23) 0.94%
Bank of Qingdao Company Limited (3866) EERARNERDA § 13,467,500 023% 13,108,000 0.23% 5 B (1) 0.52%
(3666)
Weatking nvesiments Limtd (1140) ERERERAT(1140) I 21900000 0.69% 29,880,000 0.28% 17 10 N 0.16%
Giend Ocen Advarcsd Resouress Compary. LB S BRAR LA § 66,600,000 456% 60,000,000 399% 1 19 1 0.30%
Limied 69) (65)
Bty Conay g 70~ SCERBRIER AR 1,120,00 0% 112000 017% 3 2 B 003%
(2708)
OTHS il Road mestment Holdgs Compary~ AE AT A4 BRI E 12K 1,732,000 0.26% - - 3 - ?) 0.00%
Limied (620) BRATE0)
Powe FinancilGroup Limed (397) BEEREEERAT 8,000,000 029% 8,000,000 0.29% 1 1 - 0.02%
(397)
HG Semiconductr Limited (6906) R EERAR698) = = 1500000 0.26% - 3 ] 0.05%
Koy Logises GropLimied(§51) M e RS BAR § = - 30850000 153% = 1 (5 0.11%
AE)(351)
Ol o (37 EFIEH(13) - - 80000 000% 2 - 2 000%
Chira ApexGroup Liied (2011 HEEZSEARAR - - - - - - ?) 0.00%
(t)
HT Rivenwood Ml-Growth Furd HT Riverwood Mult-Growth 10 NATER NWAER NATRER NATER 129 % (2) 040%
Fund
At China Fund Atfantis China Fund 1 NATER NAAER NATER NATER PA) 1 0 0.24%
Rivenvood Umtella Furd Riverwood Umbella Fund NATER A ER NATER NATER 12 1 (%) 0.1%
Tisé Eqiy SP-1 Tisé Equity SP-1 1 NATER WAER NATER NATER 5 A (30) 0.46%
Finace ease Istment P Finance Least nvestment SP NATER NANER NATER NATER - 3 - 049%
Ul et ntument FLTRBIA ek WATER WATER ek 2 15 (4 0.24%
Comerere el EYmakEE NWhEE NATER NWFas NWRER 4 3 1) 0.05%
0 1 (&) 660%
TR —FICEFHR EHREGREEEERAF 15
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Notes:

16

The percentage of shareholdings is calculated with reference to the monthly
return of equity issuer on movements in securities for the month ended 31
March 2023 of the issuers publicly available on the website of the Stock
Exchange.

China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited changed its name to
Shandong Hi-Speed Holdings Group Limited with effective from 15 July 2022.
And there was a share consolidation for 4 old shares into 1 new share will
effective from 29 July 2022.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company held 12,000 shares of Shandong HiSpeed
Holdings Group Limited (formerly China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group
Limited) and the same shares are consolidated into 3,000 new shares on 29
July 2022.

Alliance International Education Leasing Holdings Limited (Formerly
International Alliance Financing Leasing Company Limited) (“Alliance
International”) changed its name on 14 February 2023 and were principally
engaged in offering finance lease service and provide higher education
Services.

Pursuant to Alliance International’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022, Alliance International recorded revenue of approximately
RMB369 million and total comprehensive income of approximately RMB372
million.

The Group had approximately 27.5 million shares of Alliance International as
at 31 March 2022, and acquire approximately 0.5 million shares in the Year.
And held approximately 28 million shares at 31 March 2023.

Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (“Imperial Pacific”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Imperial Pacific Group”) were principally engaged
in the gaming and resort business, including the development of an integrated
resort on the Island of Saipan, Commonwealth of the Northern Marina Islands.

Pursuant to Imperial Pacific Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2021, Imperial Pacific Group recorded revenue of nil and total
comprehensive loss of approximately HK$1,087 million.

The Group held approximately 203 million shares as at 31 March 2022 and
2023.
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Virtual Mind Holding Company Limited (“Virtual Mind") and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Virtual Mind Group”) were principally engaged in the design,
manufacturing and trading of apparels and provision of money lending
services and sale of trendy and cultural products.

Pursuant to Virtual Mind Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022, Virtual Mind Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$90 million and total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$68 million.

The Group held approximately 284 million shares as at 31 March 2022 and
2023.

Bank of Qingdao Company Limited (“Bank of Qingdao”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Bank of Qingdao Group”) were principally engaged in the
provision of corporate and personal deposits, loans and advances, settlement,
financial market business, financial leasing, wealth management and other
services.

Pursuant to Bank of Qingdao annual report for the year ended 31 December
2022, Bank of Qingdao Group recorded operating income of approximately
RMB11,649 million and total comprehensive income of approximately
RMB2,504 million.

The Group had approximately 13.5 million shares of Bank of Qingdao Group
as at 31 March 2022 and disposed of approximately 0.4 million shares during
the Year.

Wealthking Investments Limited (“Wealthking”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Wealthking Group”) has a principal investment objective to
achieve earnings in the form of medium to long term capital appreciation
through investing in a diversified portfolio of global investments in listed and
unlisted enterprises.

Pursuant to Wealthking Group’s result announcement for the year ended 31
March 2023, Wealthking Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$192
million and total comprehensive income of approximately HK$27 million.

The Group had approximately 28 million shares of Wealthking as at 31 March
2022 and acquire approximately 2 million shares during the Year.

Grand Ocean Advances Resources Company Limited (“Grand Ocean”) and it
subsidiaries (collectively “Grand Ocean Group”) has a principal activities of
production and sale of coal.

Pursuant to Grand Ocean Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2022, Grand Ocean Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$191 million and total comprehensive income of approximately HK$14
million.

The Group had approximately 69 million shares of Grand Ocean as at 31
March 2022 and disposed approximately 9 million shares during the Year.
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9. Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited (“Asia Energy”) and it subsidiaries
(collectively “Asia Energy Group”) has a principal activities of shipping and
logistics and telecommunication related business.

Pursuant to Asia Energy Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2022, Asia Energy Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$106 million and total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$59
million.

The Group acquired approximately 31 million shares of Asia Energy during
the Year.

10.  HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund (formerly known as Riverwood MultiGrowth
Fund) (“Riverwood”) mainly invests in listed equities of companies located
in the Greater China Region (which includes Mainland China, Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan) or deriving income and/or assets from the Greater China
Region. Riverwood may invest in Exchange-Traded Funds (ETFs), U.S.
Treasury securities and derivative products.

11.  Atlantis China Fund (the “Atlantis Fund”) may invest in a wide range of listed
securities issued by listed companies established in or whose principal place
of business is located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Hong
Kong, including but not limited to listed equities, preferred stocks, convertible
securities, notes and other financial products. Atlantis Fund may hold ancillary
liquid assets, denominated principally in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi and
United States Dollars, including cash deposits and money market instruments.

12.  Tisé Equity SP-1 is a segregate portfolio of Tisé Opportunities SPC, an
exempted company incorporated with limited liability and registered as a
segregated portfolio company under the laws of the Cayman Islands in March
2021, with an investment objective to provide its investors with long-term
capital appreciation.

The Group had various securities in its investment portfolio such as listed equity
securities, unlisted equity securities, unlisted funds, unlisted debts, etc. A fair
value loss of approximately HK$82 million was recorded during the Year (2022:
fair value loss of approximately HK$510 million).

During the Year, in relation to fair value loss in FVTPL of approximately HK$82

million. A total of HK$30 million was related to investment in Tisé Opportunities
SPC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENRR TN

Impairment losses intangible assets

During the Year, the Group reversed impairment of approximately HK$13 million
(2022: impairment reversal of approximately HK$2 million) on certain intangible
assets as a result of reversal of impairment loss recognised in respective cash-
generating units.

Fair vale loss on investment properties

During the Year, a fair value loss of approximately HK$19 million (2022: gain
of approximately HK$85 million) was recognised for property investment of the
Group.

Provision for expected credit losses on financial assets

During the Year, the Group reversed provision for expected credit losses on
financial assets of approximately HK$35 million (2022: allowance reversal of
approximately HK$9 million). The reversal of provision was mainly attributable
to the settlement of loan receivables received during the year. The Group has
engaged an independent professional valuer for assessing the allowance for
expected credit losses on financial assets.

Administrative expenses

During the Year, the administrative expenses were approximately HK$123 million
(2022: approximately HK$146 million), representing a decrease of approximately
16% as compared with the year ended 31 March 2022 (the “Previous Year”).
Among the administrative expenses incurred during the Year, approximately
HK$16 million (2022: approximately HK$24 million) was related to depreciation
and non-cash in nature; while the remaining expenses of approximately HK$51
million (2022: approximately HK$58 million) were mainly related to staff costs.
The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly attributable to effective
implementation in cost-saving plans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Share of results of associates

During the Year, the share of losses of associates of approximately HK$131
million (2022: approximately HK$44 million).

Share-based payment expenses

The expense of approximately HK$3 million (2022: approximately HK$7 million).
was related to the share awards and emolument shares granted to certain
directors and employees.

Finance costs

During the Year, the finance costs were approximately HK$129 million (2022:
approximately HK$159 million), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$30 million as compared with the Previous Year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to (i) the reduction in interest expenses of approximately HK$15
million arising from corporate note payables and (ii) additional interest expenses
of approximately HK$2 million arising from the increase in bank and other
borrowings.

Taxation

During the Year, the net income tax credit was approximately HK$5 million
(2022: income tax expense of approximately HK$41 million). The decrease in the
amount was mainly attributable to the deferred tax credit of approximately HK$4
million on capital gain tax in relation to the investment properties in the UK.

20 Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/23

SEBEATFRR

RAEE @ DEHENREBROINEEBT(C
T F  MAMBEBTT) °

LAB& AR 3 71 FASZ

BERZABABAT(CE__F : (/a8
D) ERTETEZREEZBHEZEREME
R ERE o

B R A

RAFE  BEKRFN/IESEET( T
F:O0EEET)  REFRIHONEEL
T RAPEZHRN()ENERREBEELNFE
FISORAK15 8 B8 TT K& (i) 8R1T R H B &1
MELRIMNNEFRXA2BEEETHER -

]

RAEE - FIEHERFEARBEELET(Z
T _F:NNBEBTHAENRAX - BT
BRLEZHNEREREMRELNEHAE
B EETH IR R A4 B BB TTATEL °



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through other DAFEFEEHELHARMZEKS
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), net (R AFEAZEARSEHARM2EE
RIZEMFEZATFEGIREH

The details of the listed securities investments and the net fair value losses R AFE - L HEHFRERCOHERA FEEE
recognised during the Year are set out below: SFEEFHRHEYIAT ¢

Percentage of
Percentage of Percentage of total assets
shareholdings  shareholdings Fair value Fair value Fairvalue  of the Group
at31March  at31March  at31March  at31March lossfor  at31March

2022 2023 2022 2023 the Year 2023
R

- St}
R R R R =R
“B_CE IZBCSE ZEBCCE ZEBIZE =+-H
= = =R =R EEsER

=t-A2 =t-B¢  Zt-B  Zt-B REFREz  E#fEC
BRESE BREMML ZOAFE  ZO8FE AFEGR BSlt

Note HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$'million
[if:3 BEET EEET 2 OHET
Name 1)
Goodwill International (Holdings) Limited - Gooawill International (Holdings) 1 7.54% 7.54% 5 3 2 0.05%
Limited
Co-Lead Holdings Limited Co-Lead Holdings Limited 2 1.05% 1.04% p 15 ) 0.24%
Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited 2HZREBR A 3 15% 15% 373 %7 (86) 4.54%
Oshidori International Holdings Limited ~ FEZERARAF62) 4 127% 127% 3 )] (19) 0.32%
(622)
China Pearl Global Limited RAAGERERAR 5 = 10.00% = 42 = 6.74%
Tonsin Petrochemical Investment Ltd A AEEREER 6 - 16.67% - 4 9) 0.65%
G|
Empire Victory Hong Kong Limited HEERERAT 7 - 410% - 10 2 0.16%
44 801 (121 12.70%
Notes: B
1. Goodwill Internationgl (Holdings) I_'imiteq (“Goodwill Int'l") invested ina 1 Goodwill International (Holdings) Limited ([Goodwill
number. of property investment projects in Hong'Kong and the ERC. The It NESERDEIEES AR EREE
'propertleslwould' be sold tp ma‘rket upon co'mple'tlgn of each projects, and B - BAWESESEESRENTELEE -
investors (including Goodwill Int’l) would receive dividend. 4% 2 (B 3EGoodwill Intl) 4 U B iR 2. o

2. Co-lead Holdings Limited is principally engaged in trading of securities, ~ »  go-lead Holdings Limited = BREBLEX S - 12
provision of finance and holding of investments in financial services industry. HERBBERES S RMBELIZE o
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3. Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited holds 90% equity interest in He
Ying Tung Investments Company Limited (“He Ying Tung”). He Ying Tung,
through its various indirect wholly-owned or non-wholly owned subsidiaries,
is principally engaged in property development in the PRC. He Ying Tung
principally has 3 property projects under development located in the
municipalities of Changsha, Chenzhou and Hengyang of Hunan Province,
the PRC, mainly consisting of large-scale residential complex projects and
integrated commercial complex projects, as well as apartments, offices,
shopping arcades, cinemas and other supporting facilities.

4, Oshidori International Holdings Limited (“Oshidori”) principally engages in
investment holdings, tactical and/or strategical investment, and the provisions
of (i) securities brokerage services, (ii) margin financing services, (iii)
placing and underwriting services, (iv) corporate finance advisory services,
(iv) investment advisory and asset management services, and (vi) credit and
lending services. Pursuant to Oshidori’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022, Oshidori recorded revenue of approximately HK$109 million
and total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$483 million.

The Group held 77,500,000 shares of Oshidori as at 31 March 2022 and 2023.

5. China Pearl Global Limited (“CPG”) through its wholly owned subsidiary hold
a shopping mall in the Quanzhou, Fujiian Province, the People’s Republic of
China with approximately 97,000 square meters (available lease out area over
65,000 square meters) and 1,089 car parks, and it lease out the complex to
lessor and provides property management services to the shopping mall.

The Group acquired 10% of CPG during the Year at a consideration of
HK$425 million and completion took place on 7 November 2022.

6. Tonsin Petrochemical Investment Limited principally engages in the
development of EcoPark in South-East Asia which focus on waste management
and recycling industry with advanced technologies and value-add processes.

7. Empire Victory Hong Kong Limited principally engages in the provision of
trading in petroleum and aluminum products.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s current assets and current liabilities were
approximately HK$2,297 million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$2,266
million) and HK$2,855 million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$2,451
million) respectively.

The Group has established a treasury policy with the objective of lowering cost of
funds. Therefore, funding for all its operations have been centrally reviewed and
monitored at the Group level. To manage the Group’s exposure to fluctuations in
interest rates on project, appropriate funding policies will be applied including
the use of bank and other borrowings, corporate note payables, convertible note
payables and issue of placement shares. The management will continue its efforts
in obtaining the most privileged rates and favourable terms to the Group for its
financing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gearing ratio and indebtedness

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debts divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as
“equity” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net
debts. The capital structure (including its gearing ratio) as at 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022 was as follows:

BREARILERRK

AEBUEERGBHLERAEEEEREERG
B AR REBFERNEAEETE - &
RARFRIRR A M BAIOR KR T IR 2 [k | hnfE
BEEAE -R_T-_=F=-A=+—8BRK=
T F-A=t+-BNELER(BFEEEE
BELEX)WT

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

—E-= —EBF

=A=+—H =A=+—H

HK$’million HK$'million

BHEET BEAL

(audited) (audited)

(BE) (EZ)

Bank and other borrowings IRITREMEER 1,743 1,922

Corporate note payables FERT TR

— atamortised cost — IR SR 572 430
—at FVTPL — AR EEBEEBEIABE 578 629
Total borrowings BERTE 2,893 2,981
Less: cash and cash equivalents B Be MR EEY (187) (195)
pledged bank deposits EEIRIRITFR (30) (21)

Net debts B FRE 2,676 2,765
Total equity LR AEER 2,575 2,827
Total capital BR4REE 5,241 5,592
Gearing ratio BEAGELE 51% 49%
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As at 31 March 2023, the maturity and currency profile for the Group’s bank and
other borrowings and corporate note payables at amortised cost are set out as

R -_=F=A=+—H AEBFITEE
HEE RIZEEKANEMNCEZE 2 BIEA

follows: NLEBBEHIMT
Within 1 year 2nd year 3-5 years Total
—FRA - <t =ERF #st
HK$’million  HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
BHERET BEET BERAET BERET
GBP g 910 - - 910
Uss$ X 712 - - 712
HK$ BT 515 159 19 693
2,137 159 19 2,315

As at 31 March 2023, approximately 99% of the Group’s borrowings are secured
by (1) investment properties; (2) corporate note receivables; (3) property, plant
and equipment; (4) financial assets; and (5) bank deposits.

RZB-_=F=ZA=+—H  xXEEHN9%Z
EBETANREYE  QRKEERE : 3)Y
¥ BELRE: QEREE  RO)RITEX
TR o

The borrowings with aggregate amounts of approximately HK$1,092 million  42%8491,092' 8 B8 TS B JHIRE & M R &t
were carried at fixed interest rates, approximately HK$651 million were carried at =~ B » M 49651 & BB T HE BB Z B 7 R &t
floating interest rates. B

As at 31 March 2023, cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank depositswere M- ZT-=F=F=+—H BHENMELZHE
denominated in the following currencies: Y & B IRIRITIF KA T 5 E’EEHE -

HK$’ million

BEET

HK$ BT 117
GBP e 17
RMB AR 30
Us$ ETT 4
JPY HoT 11
EUR BT 1
217
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and finance lease receivables bear fixed
interest rates. The Group’s cash at bank balances bear floating interest rates.
The Group also has borrowings, obligation under finance leases. Exposure to
interest rate risk exists on those balances subject to floating interest rate when
there are unexpected adverse interest rate movements. The Group’s policy is to
manage its interest rate risk, working within an agreed framework, to ensure that
there are no undue exposures to significant interest rate movements and rates are
appropriately fixed when necessary.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$, US$ and GBP. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk primarily arises from certain financial instruments including trade
receivables, bank balances and cash, trade payables, borrowings and obligation
under finance leases which are denominated in US$ and EUR. The Group does
not adopt any hedging strategy in the long run but the management continuously
monitors the foreign exchange risk exposure and might enter into foreign
exchange forward contracts on a case-by-case basis. The Group has not used
any hedging contracts to engage in speculative activities.

Credit risk and liquidity risk

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards its
treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the
Year. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To
manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements.

Risk management

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk management
procedures to identify and control various types of risk within the organisation
and the external environment with active management participation and effective
internal control procedures in the best interest of the Group and its shareholders.

Major post-balance sheet date events
1. On 13 June 2023, True Well Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company, executed an order with Shanghai Commercial
Bank for a bond purchase at the consideration of HK$250,848,000.
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2. 0On 26 June 2023, Hao Tian Media & Culture Company Limited, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an agreement
for the disposal of 49% equity interest in Grand Peaceful Global Limited at
a consideration of HK$2 million.

3. 0On 26 June 2023, Victor Ocean Developments Limited, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an agreement for
the disposal of 49% equity interest in Lion Run Holdings Limited at a
consideration of HK$1 million.

4. 0On 26 June 2023, Hao Tian Media & Culture Company Limited, an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an agreement
for the disposal of 50% equity interest in Success View Global Limited at
a consideration of HK$2 million.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 153 staffs (31 March 2022: 166). The
Group generally recruits its employees from the open market or by referral and
enters into employment contracts with its employees. The Group offers attractive
remuneration packages to the employees. In addition to salaries, the employees
would be entitled to bonuses subject to the Company’s and employees’
performance. The Group provides a defined contribution to the Mandatory
Provident Fund as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the eligible employees.
The Group also adopted a share option scheme and share award scheme.

The operation staff consists of experienced machinery operators and mechanics.
While such employees are highly demanded in the market, the Group manages to
maintain a relatively stable workforce by continuous recruitment from the market
or through referrals. New employees are required to attend induction courses to
ensure that they are equipped with the necessary skills and knowledge to perform
their duties. In order to promote overall efficiency, the Group also offers technical
trainings to existing employees on the operation of more advanced construction
machinery from time to time. Selected operation staff are required to attend
external trainings which are conducted by the manufacturers of the construction
machines to acquire up-to-date technical skills and knowledge on the products
of the Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend to the
shareholders of the Company for the Year (2022: nil).
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS DURING
THE YEAR

1.

On 11 May 2022, Victory Bright Limited (the “Vendor”) and Alcott Global
Limited (the “Target Company”), both being indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Glaring Sand Holdings Limited (the
“Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell 15 issued shares of the
Target Company, representing 15% of the entire issued share capital of
the Target Company at a consideration of US$20 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$157 million). The transaction was completed on 16
May 2022.

The major asset of the Target Company is 22% of the issued share capital
of CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. a company incorporated in Cambodia
with limited liability which is principally engaged in investment in urban
complex development project. It has obtained approval from the Council
of Ministers to establish a special economic zone at Koh Kong Province,
Cambodia.

The Company issued fixed coupon notes with principal amount of HK$370
million (the “Fixed Coupon Notes”) in June 2022. The Fixed Coupon
Notes is due in September 2023.

On 22 June 2022, True Well Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, executed an order with Shanghai Commercial
Bank for a bond purchase at the consideration of approximately US$45
million (equivalent to approximately HK$355 million).

On 23 June 2022, Victor Ocean Developments Limited, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an agreement for the
disposal of 49% equity interest in Triple Blessing International Limited an
associated of the Group at a consideration of HK$44 million.

On 19 July 2022, Glory Century Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, received a statement confirming that the
redemption of 126,068.186 Participating Shares in HT Riverwood Multi-
Growth Fund (formerly Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund) at the aggregate
redemption price of approximately US$5.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$45 million) on 4 July 2022.

On 28 Qctober 2022, Novel Advice Limited, an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Leading Partner Group Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an agreement for the
acquisition of 6% and 4% equity interest in China Pearl Global Limited, at
a consideration of HK$255 million and HK$170 million, respectively. And
the acquisition was completed on 7 November 2022.

Save as disclosed herein, the Group had not made any other material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associates during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRR DN

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The past year was full of opportunities and challenges. The Russia-Ukraine
War, heightened geo-political tension, high global inflation and interest rate is
affecting the pace of global economic recovery and adds uncertainties to the
financial market. However, the Group implements prudent business strategies to
establish a diversified business portfolio that can survive the uncertain market
conditions while exploring high-quality asset investment opportunities to explore
the growth potential of profit and capital value for shareholders and investors of
the Company.

Looking ahead, the Group will remain cautious and sensibly uphold its risk
management policies, strengthen its capital management and implement
stringent cost control measures to uphold its profitability during downturn of
gconomy.

Money lending and financial services business

The Group will continue to expand the clients base and establish a strong track
record in order to strengthen the businesses of corporate financial advisory
services, asset management services and streamline the client base of money
lending services in the coming future. For the securities brokerage services
business, the Group will explore the involvement in the share placement activities
to enhance its revenue stream.

Property development business

Located in the Indo-China Peninsula, Cambodia is an important stop on the
ancient Maritime Silk Road and an important location for China to promote
the “One Belt, One Road” construction in the 21st century. Now Cambodia is
also preparing an economic transformation, with many business opportunities
emerging. Meanwhile, Cambodia has a decent investment environment and
the market is highly liberalised and internationalised, attracting the attention
and injection of global capital. While taking part in the development potential
of the land development project, the Group is also exploring more business
opportunities to invest in more business sectors in Cambodia and to share the
development dividend of this high growing emerging market in the future.

At the same time, Malaysia is one of the most popular countries in Asia. In
recent years, Malaysia's GDP has continued to rise, which proves that Malaysia
has strong investment potential. The Group is also deploying and looking for
local high-quality projects, following the layout along the “One Belt, One Road”
regions. Looking forward, the Group remains confident in its existing businesses
and will continue to monitor the performance in order to maximise the returns to
its shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEREREEEEEFTS

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Haiying, aged 69, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 1
January 2012 and was re-designated as an executive Director and became a
member of executive committee of the Company in February 2012. Mr. Xu
also acts as a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Xu is the
senior technical consultant and senior manager of China Jieneng Huangbao
Group Company Limited* (FR B &f 82 3R R & B A R 2 A), whose principal
business is the development of energy conservation technologies, clean and
new energy, and energy infrastructure construction. Mr. Xu has substantial
management experience and has been the manager of the representative offices
of Wallem & Company Limited (2275 £ BB BR 22 &) in Shanghai
and Tianjin, The People’s Republic of China and the chief representative of the
Shanghai representative office of Hong Kong Maritime Company Limited (&8
YA PR /A 7)) and has served other management positions. From May 2017
to February 2021, Mr. Xu served as an executive director of Fujian Nuogi Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose shares were delisted from the main board of The
Stock Exchange with effect from 8 February 2021).

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia), aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 11 June 2012 and was re-designated as an
Executive Director of the Company in August 2012. Dr. Qu is a member of
executive committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Dr. Qu holds a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Civil & Resource Engineering
from The University of Western Australia, Australia. He also holds two Bachelor
of Engineering degrees in Engineering Management & Structural Engineering
respectively from Tongji University ([F]72 A< 22). Dr. Ou has over 30 years of
professional engineering and management experience in oil & gas, mining and
infrastructure industries both in Australia and China. He has been a senior staff
member in the world’s leading energy & resource firms including Kellogg Brown
& Root (formerly known as KBR Halliburton), WorleyParsons Pty Ltd., as well
as Sedgman Ltd., which is specializing in coal processing and handling plants.
Dr. Ou was an independent non-executive director of Rey Resources Limited (a
company listed on ASX focusing on exploration and developing energy resources
in Australia). Dr. Ou participated in a number of key energy and resource projects
around the world such as acting as the Lead Civil and Structural Engineer for
BHP Billiton RGP6 Jimblebar project, Rio Tinto iron ore Dove Siding expansion
project; Chevron Wheatstone Domgas LNG Pipeline project, Yemen LNG Project
(in the Republic of Yemen) and Western Australia Dampier to Bunbury Natural
Gas Pipeline (Stage 5B) project, etc. Dr. Ou also has extensive experience and
network in China. He was the general manager of Fujian Liming Construction
Company* (1824 22RR2 5L T 72 /2 7)) from 1993 to 1997. He was a Guest
Professor for Inner Mongolia University (FI5< & A& )and Inner Mongolia
University of Science & Technology (AR5 & BHE A E2) in China. Currently,
Dr. Qu is an executive director of Hao Tian International Construction Investment
Group Limited (stock code: 1341), which is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Fok Chi Tak, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director and a
member of executive committee of the Company in September 2013. Mr. Fok
is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company and has been the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company since December 2010. In addition to the
responsibility to oversee the Group’s finance unit and functions, Mr. Fok also
involves in the formulation of strategic plans for the business development of
the Group, fund raising activities and potential merger and acquisition activities
of the Group. Mr. Fok holds a master degree in business administration from
The University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow member of The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries). Mr. Fok currently
serves as an executive director and the chief executive officer of Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), which is listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in March 2012. Mr. Chan is the
chairman of each of audit committee and remuneration committee and a
member of nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated from the
University of New South Wales, Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree
in Accounting and Computer Information Systems. He is a fellow member of
each of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified Practising
Accountants, Australia and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting, investment and financial
management. Mr. Chan is currently an investment manager of Sprint Asset
Management Limited. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director
of each of China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited (stock
code: 871), Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code: 3991) and Hao
Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), whose securities are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan resigned as independent non-
executive director of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 747) in September 2020. Mr. Chan was an independent non-executive
director of each of Fujian Nuoqi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose shares were
delisted from the main board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 8 February
2021) from April 2017 to February 2021, Grand Peace Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8108, whose shares were delisted from GEM of the Stock Exchange
with effect from 27 August 2021) from March 2021 to August 2021 and Up
Energy Development Group Limited (stock code: 307, whose shares were delisted
from the main board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 5 January 2022) from
April 2017 to January 2022.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Lam Kwan Sing, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-gxecutive
Director of the Company in August 2012. Mr. Lam is a member of each of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Lam has obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy degree from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has more than 24 years of working experience in
the commercial and corporate finance field. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock code: 102), which
is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. In addition, Mr. Lam is also a
director of China Natural Resources, Inc. (a company listed on NASDAQ) since
2003. Mr. Lam was an executive director of SFund International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1367, whose shares were delisted from the main board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 20 September 2022) from 2016 to 2022.

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 12 July 2021. Mr. Mak is the chairman of nomination committee and
a member of audit committee of the Company. Mr. Mak graduated from the China
University of Political Science and Law with a Bachelor of Law degree in 1998.
Mr. Mak is a legal executive of Chiu, Szeto & Cheng, a firm of solicitors in Hong
Kong. Mr. Mak has been working in the legal industry for over 30 years. Mr. Mak
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Talent Property
Group Limited (stock code: 760) and Hao Tian International Construction
Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company), whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Mak served as an independent non-executive director of each of Fujian
Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose shares were delisted from the main
board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 8 February 2021) from April 2017
to February 2021 and Up Energy Development Group Limited (stock code: 307,
whose shares were delisted from the main board of the Stock Exchange with
effect from 5 January 2022) from April 2017 to January 2022.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond was appointed as the company secretary on 26
August 2022 following the resignation of Ms. Chen Lai Ping as the company
secretary on 26 August 2022. Mr. Siu has been a practising solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong since 2005. Mr. Siu has over 17 years of experience in
corporate finance and regulatory compliance. He is the founder and the senior
partner of Raymond Siu & Lawyers. Prior to setting up and running his own
solicitors’ firm, he has been a partner of F. Zimmern & Co., Solicitors & Notaries
from July 2012 to August 2017. Mr. Siu obtained his Bachelor of Laws and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong. He obtained
his Master of Laws from University College London.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELWE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining sound and well- established corporate
governance practices and procedures that are consistent with the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise on a quality
board of directors, sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all relevant code
provisions of the CG Code throughout the Year, save and except Code Provisions
C.2.1 as described below:

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company has neither appointed a board member as the chairman
of the Board nor appointed a chief executive officer. Having considered the
business operation of the Group at the material time, it is believed that the Board,
which consists of experienced professionals, can function effectively as a whole,
and the executive Directors along with other members of senior management of
the Company are effective in overseeing the day-to-day operation of the Company
under the strong corporate governance structure in place.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERE

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of the Group and
for its leadership, strategic planning, risk management, corporate governance,
financial performance and culture. The Board has established audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
Nomination Committee and executive committee (the “Executive Committee”)
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, each with specific terms
of reference setting out their authority and duties. The terms of reference are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board
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Collectively responsible for promoting long-term success of the Company by providing leadership, strategic planning and
managing risk and supervising corporate governance, financial performance and culture
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Each committee has authority to obtain external professional advice and to seek
information from employees, and the Company will provide sufficient resources
to the committees for performance of its duties and responsibilities. Minutes of
the committees meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and all decisions
of the committees are reported to the Board. To further reinforce independence
and effectiveness, all Audit Committee members are independent non-executive
Directors, and the Nomination and Remuneration Committees have been
structured with a majority of independent non-executive Directors as members.
Details and reports of the committees are set out below.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
Role and function

The Board has the responsibility of promoting the success of the Company by
formulating its strategic direction and supervising its operations and affairs in an
effective manner. Each Director has a fiduciary duty and statutory responsibilities
towards the Company.

Each Director is aware of his collective and individual responsibilities to all
Shareholders and that he should give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company.

With the objective of enhancing shareholder value, the Board is responsible for
the formulation and approval of overall business strategies and policies of the
Group, management of the business and affairs of the Group, and monitoring of
the performance of the management of the Group and is charged with presenting
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in its annual and interim results, other announcements
containing inside information and financial disclosures of the Company required
under the Listing Rules and other applicable rules.

Some of the key responsibilities of the Board include:

° gstablishing and maintaining the strategic direction and objectives of the
Group

° gvaluating significant investment proposals, major acquisitions or
disposals

° appointment or re-appointment of Directors and members of the
committees

° ensuring the financial statements are prepared to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group

° ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to
enable risks to be assessed and managed

o monitoring major capital transactions or other significant operational or
financial matters

o monitoring the performance of management

Daily operations and management of the Group’s business are delegated to the
management.
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Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises three executive Directors and

three independent non-executive Directors.

A
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Membership of Board Committee(s)
EFZREZHA

Executive Directors:
BiTES:

Mr. Xu Haiying
FTEELA

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)
iSSR0

Mr. Fok Chi Tak
ESmiE

Independent Non-executive Directors:
WIERITESE -

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
PREELE T A

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing
MEBTLE

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
SRS

Member of the Executive Committee
HWITLZEEKE

Member of the Nomination Committee
REEBENKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEgXE

Member of the Executive Committee
WITEEgXE

Member of the Executive Committee
WITZEEKE

Chairman of the Audit Committee
EBZLEEER

Member of the Nomination Committee
REEBENXE

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

FHEEEER

Member of the Audit Committee
EZEZEENKE

Member of the Nomination Committee

REEZEEKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

FMEZEeXE

Member of the Audit Committee
BREEENE
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

RELZEGER

Their biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 29 to 31 of this ~ E R Z BEFBH N AR EF29E31H o

report.
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The three independent non-executive Directors, which represented more than
one-third of the entire Board, bring a wide range of business and financial
experience to the Board, which contributes to the effective direction of the Group
and the development of the Group’s strategies and policies and promotes checks
and balances of the management process to safeguard Shareholders’ interest.
The Board reviews regularly the Board’s composition and considers that the
composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and expertise relevant to the business operations and
development of the Group. The Board is also satisfied that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and are independent pursuant to the requirements of the guidelines and the
Company complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

A'list of Directors and their respective role and function has been published on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and is also disclosed
in relevant corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Formal procedures were adopted by the Board for governing the appointment, re-
election and removal of Directors in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles”).

Except for Mr. Fok Chi Tak, each Director has entered into a service contract or
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years. All Directors
are subject to the retirement by rotation at least once every three years under the
Articles. Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire by rotation and retiring Directors are
eligible for re- election in accordance with the Articles.

The Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a Director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing Board. The
Board may from time to time appoint a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for
re- election.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at a general
meeting of the Company, a Shareholder may serve the Company a written
notice and follow the designated procedures for nomination of Directors under
the Articles, which are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Director’s commitment

The Board meets at least four times a year at quarterly intervals and holds
additional meetings as and when the Board thinks appropriate to discuss matters
relating to the Group’s strategies, business operations, performance, governance
and material investments.

Attendance records of the Directors and committee members for the Year are set
out below:

ERCREE

ExeEFE I RFEETOREHE  URE
ZeR/EERBINEITER  WERI AR
REBRRE XHLE KRR BAREXRK
BFEZEEH -

EERLZESNERAEFE 2 HELHHTIA
T

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEERAY STFRRN
Executive Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee meeting

E¥FE HTEAT FURAT RERAT FHRRE HEEXe

Total number of meetings BERERY 13 4 2 1 2 1
Executive Directors: BiITEE

Mr. Xu Haiying TEERAE 12113 44 NATER  NATER  NATER i
Dr. Zhiliang Qu BErEL 13/13 A4 NATER 1 212 17
Mr. Fok Chi Tak ErErE 13/13 44 NATNER NATNER  NATER 1n
Independent Non-executive

Directors: BUERTESE:

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan BRERLE S 1213 NATER 22 17 212 17
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing MEBIE 1213 NATER 212 17 212 17
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong ERREEE 1313 NATER 22 n NATER 1

The Board reviews the performance of the Directors regularly to ensure the
Directors have adequately and effectively performed their roles and devoted
sufficient time to the Company’s affairs. The Board was satisfied that the Directors
had a strong commitment to the Company and positively contributed to the Board
through their participation in the Company’s affairs and the Board's discussions
and decisions, as reflected in their high attendance record on the Board and its
committee meetings during the Year.

ESerHRdESRE  UWRREFERS
BRETERR - WRARMEHEEANRQA
E%  EEZEEMBEFTHNREAQABHIR
% BRENAFERTCEEZENETERE
SEHRERSHER  RURRKREREGHS M
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T CFC=EFR EREGNEERERAT 37



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERARE

Board process

All Directors have full access to relevant information both at the meetings and at
regular intervals. Notice of not less than 14 days was given to Directors for the
reqular Board mestings. The Company Secretary assists the Board in preparing
the meeting agenda and, during which, the Directors are consulted for matters
to be included in the agenda for all regular meetings of the Board. It has been
the practice of the Board and accepted by all members of the Board that relevant
information of Board meetings will be sent to all Directors three days (or other
reasonable period) prior to the meetings.

Board meetings involve active participation, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication, by all of the Directors present.
Board minutes are prepared and kept by the Company Secretary recording in
sufficient details the matters considered and decisions reached by the Board
or Committees, including any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by
any Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
committees are sent to Directors or Board committees members as appropriate
for comments, approval and records. Board records are available for inspection
by any Director upon request.

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered having a conflict of
interest or material interests would not be dealt with by way of written resolutions
and a separate Board meeting shall be held where independent non- executive
Directors who have no material interests should be present at such meeting.
Directors having a conflict of interest or material interests in a transaction shall,
before the meeting of the Board, declare his interest(s) therein in accordance
with the Articles, and shall abstain from voting on the resolution(s) and shall not
be counted in the quorum present at such Board meeting. Such declaration of
interests will be duly noted in the minutes of the relevant Board meeting.

The Company Secretary shall provide professional advice on governance matters
to the Directors. Members of the management have been reminded that they
have an obligation to supply the Board and the Board committees with adequate
information on a timely basis to enable each of them to make informed decisions.
All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers, minutes and related
materials. The Board and each Director have separate and independent access
to the Group’s senior management. In addition, the Directors are able, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice under appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The Board may resolve to provide
appropriate independent professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant
Directors to discharge their duties.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the executive Directors seek to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
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Induction, information and ongoing professional development

Each newly-appointed Director is provided with a package of orientation materials
setting out the required duties and responsibilities of directors under the Listing
Rules and other relevant statutory requirements of Hong Kong and received an
induction training with external legal adviser on director’s duties and obligations
and meeting with management for an overview of the Group. The Directors are
kept informed from time to time on the latest development of any changes to the
regulatory requirements and the status of compliance of applicable rules and
regulations by the Company as well as business development and operation
plans of the Company.

In compliance with code provision C.1.4, the Company has arranged for, and
provided fund for, the Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company to
participate in continuous professional development organized in the form of in-
house training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep them refreshed
of their knowledge, skill and understanding on the Group and its business or to
update their skills and knowledge on the latest development or changes in the
relevant statutes, the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices.

All Directors are required to provide the Company with their training records on
an annual basis. For the Year, all Directors have participated in various training
and continuous professional development activities and/or were given speech or
training materials at external seminars/training sessions.

Liability insurance for the Directors

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
arranged and is in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from
their risk exposure arising from the businesses of the Group and potential
personal liabilities.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy. A summary of such board
diversity policy, the measurable objectives set for implementing such board
diversity policy, and the progress made towards achieving those objectives are
disclosed as below.

Summary of the board diversity policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All Board member's appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. The Board’s composition will be disclosed in the corporate
governance report annually in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Monitoring

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring implementation of the
board diversity policy.

Diversity of the Board

The existing Board members are of different backgrounds, qualifications and
experiences, including extensive experiences in resources, auditing, accounting,
investment, corporate finance, project development and management. In view of
the present size and complexities of the operations and the nature of the risks and
challenges the Group faces, the Nomination Committee considers the Company
has achieved a right balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity
among the present Board members.

All Board members are male. The Company will appoint at least a director of
different gender on or before 31 December 2024.

Among the 153 staffs of the Group, 123 are male and 30 are female.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was set up in June 2010. The Executive Committee
operates as a general management committee under the direct authority of the
Board to enhance the efficiency for business decisions. In accordance with
its terms of reference, the Executive Committee monitors the execution of the
Company’s strategic plans and operations of all business units of the Group and
discusses and makes decisions on matters relating to the management and day-
to-day operations of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Executive Committee is comprised of all existing
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu Haiying, Dr. Zhiliang Ou and Mr. Fok Chi
Tak.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in May 2006. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are (a) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing the
financial statements and material advice in respect of financial reporting; and (c)
overseeing the internal control procedures of the Company. Meetings shall be
held at least twice a year.

This report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee is comprised of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Lam Kwan Sing and Mr. Mak Yiu Tong.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is summarised as
follows:

(@)  reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the Previous
Year and unaudited interim financial statements of the Group for the six
months ended 30 September 2022 and the related results announcements;

(b)  reviewed the independence of the external auditor and engagement of
external auditor for annual audit;

(c)  reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and the compliance with relevant accounting standards, the Listing Rules
and other statutory requirements;

(d)  reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems; and

(e)  recommended on the re-appointment, remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor.
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During the Year, no issues brought to the attention of the management and the
Board were of significant importance to require disclosure in this annual report.

The Company has adopted a set of internal guidelines on whistle-blowing in
2013. Arrangement has been put in place by which employees can report any
concerns, including misconduct, impropriety or fraud in financial reporting
matters and accounting practices, in confidence and without fear of recrimination
for fair and independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-
up action.

In addition, the Company has also adopted a policy that subject to prior approval
by Audit Committee, no employees or former employees of external auditor can
be appointed as director or senior executive of internal audit or finance function
of the Group, within 12 months preceding their employment by the external
auditor to enhance independent reporting by external auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up the Nomination Committee in August 2009. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and making recommendations to the Board on any
proposed change to the Board; (b) identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board; (c) assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and (d) making recommendations on appointment, re-
election and removal of Directors and ensuring a succession plan is in place.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee is comprised of one
executive Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, Mr. Lam Kwan Sing and Mr.
Mak Yiu Tong (chairman of the committee).

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the Year is
summarised as follows:

(@)  reviewed and recommended on the structure, size and composition of
the Board including the diversity as well as the competence, experience,
academic background and qualification of its members;

(b)  reviewed and assessed the independence of each independent non-
executive Director;

(c)  considered and recommended the appointment of new Director appointed
during the Year; and

(d)  recommended on the nomination of Directors for re-glection at the annual
general meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in May 2006. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are (a) evaluating the performance
and making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policies and
structure for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the
Company; (b) establishing a formal and transparent procedure for developing
a policy on remuneration; (c) determining specific remuneration packages
for all executive Directors and senior management in the manner specified
in its terms of reference; (d) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of independent non-executive Directors; (e) reviewing the
appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy; and (f) reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board as to the fairness and reasonableness of
the terms of any Director’s service agreement, which are subject to the approval
of the Shareholders in general meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee is comprised of one
executive Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan (chairman of the committee) and
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the Year is
summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed and recommended on the remuneration packages of existing and
proposed Directors;

(b)  reviewed the terms of service contract of new Director appointed during
the Year;

(c)  reviewed the appropriateness of the remuneration policy of the Company;
and

(d)  reviewed the share schemes of the Company.

During the process of consideration, no individual Director was involved in
decisions relating to his own remuneration.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company including (a) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management; (c)
reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group on a going concern basis and in presenting the interim and annual
financial statements, announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules. Members of the management have provided the Board
with monthly updates and sufficient information for the Board to develop
and maintain a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects.

The Directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
is in accordance with the statutory requirements and the applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial
statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Year, the total fee paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided by the external auditors is set out below:

CE 9% 27
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EEMRAEE 2 MBMRDBIEEEKR
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B2 AT

ZBET BN &

RAEE - BLONEZBRED TR AR B K SRR K
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Fee paid/payable
for the year
ended 31 March
2023
BE_T-=
=B=+—H
LLEEER
EftzE8A
HK$’million
BRET

Audit services ZBARTS

Non-audit services

FEZBRT

Total Eat

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the Year is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 66 to 72 of this report.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates from Board
members for its consideration. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by Board members. The factors in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for director include:

e Dbusiness experience relevant and beneficial to the Company, diversity
in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, knowledge, professional experience and skills;

e character and integrity;

e accomplishments in personal careers;

° independence;

° willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board
member;

and such other perspectives relevant to the Company’s business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations of candidates for the Board’s
consideration and approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. Declaration and payment of
dividends are subject to the discretion of the Board. The Board would consider,
inter alia, the following factors before declaring or recommending dividend to the
Shareholders:

()

the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company;

the level of the Company’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the
relevant financial covenants;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the
Company’s contracting parties;

the Company’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the Company’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company; and

any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with applicable laws and
regulations including the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy from time to time and there
can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND THEIR  ARBECIE - MR EER R HEBEM

EFFECTIVENESS

The Board has the overall responsibility for overseeing sound and effective ~ EES/B2 M A & 25 E AN £ B N 2P ES 15 & ALK
internal controls and risk management for the Group to safeguard the interests & 3% 2 T2 1 M AR » LABB RS (REE EL AR R 2 1
of its shareholders and the assets of the Group at all times. In this connection, — FRAANEE 7 BE o ANE B[ &7 W ZLES
an internal control and risk management system has been established to provide ~ R ER EIRHIE - LA B (MIERE)RETE
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss ~ HIRERERIREIEKR 21BN - WEIRSRIE (M
and to manage or mitigate rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve the — FESEBR) R EBRANEB XK B IZZ AR ©

Group’s business objectives.

The Company has in place an integrated framework of internal control which ~ ANARIEHIE —EBEBMBE S ST A B M
is consistent with the principles outlined in the “Internal Control and Risk [ 3FES% B [EL e B 38 — HAZRE | Frs R Bl 2
Management — A Basic Framework” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of 4R34 PORBESIERAEZR - SFIEMMaNT ¢

Certified Public Accountants as illustrated below:

Monitoring
ER

Information and Communication
HiBGEA

Control Activities
BSyEEE

Risk Assessment
BBEEFAE

Control Environment
BERIRIE

Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance
FHERT BT HIE 2 R37

Internal audits performed by internal audit department
AP EZ AR PIETT N R

Information in sufficient details is provided to the right person timely
REFREEATRETDFEZER

Channels of communication across the Group and with customers, suppliers and external parties
RUAEBEANPARERS - HEFREINTZERERS

Channels of communication for people to report any suspected improprieties

B A BRI RN BT RBEERE

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out

) E AT R T B IR < Z BUR MR

Control activities include performance review, segregation of duties, authorization, physical count,
access control, documentation and records, etc.

EmRgeRERER  BEST X BEVRE  FHEEH - FEREE

sy

=T

Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risk factors affecting the achievement of the
Company’s objectives are performed regularly

EHEA - FTERTATEERARRIERZ FERARREE

Undertake proper actions to manage the risks so identified

KIS EITEI AB IR AT A 2 Bk

Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and high ethical standards to the
staff are established

R RBERE LEERARTNBNEFRHERRBEETE

Organizational chart and limits of authority are set and communicated to staff concerned

il E I RIAEEE B TiEE R R R B M AER

Reporting lines in accordance with organizational chart and line of authority are set
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The internal audit department is responsible for conducting independent
reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and
risk management system, reporting regularly the results to the Board through
the Audit Committee and making recommendations to the relevant department
management for necessary actions.

During the Year, the internal audit department had conducted reviews on
the effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material factors
related to financial, operational, compliance controls, various functions for risk
management and physical and information security. Internal control reports
containing its findings and results were reported to the Audit Committee during
the Audit Committee meetings and had been delivered to all Directors for review.

The internal audit department had reported during the Audit Committee meetings
the key findings identified by the Company’s external auditors in respect of
the Group’s internal controls and discussed findings and actions or measures
taken in addressing those findings. The Company considers the internal control
systems and risk management were effective during the Year. No material issues
on the Group’s internal control system have been identified by the Group’s
internal audit department and the Company’s external auditors during the Year
which required significant rectification measures.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for Directors’ securities transactions.
The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and all Directors
confirmed that they have fully complied with the Model Code for the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond was appointed as the company secretary on
26 August 2022 following the resignation of Ms. Chen Lai Ping as company
secretary on 26 August 2022. Mr. Siu has been a practising solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong since 2005. Mr. Siu has over 17 years of experience in
corporate finance and regulatory compliance. He is the founder and the senior
partner of Raymond Siu & Lawyers. Prior to setting up and running his own
solicitors’ firm, he has been a partner of F. Zimmern & Co., Solicitors & Notaries
from July 2012 to August 2017. Mr. Siu obtained his Bachelor of Laws and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong. He obtained
his Master of Laws from University College London.

During the Year, Mr. Siu has received no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintaining high degree of transparency to ensure
that the investors and the Shareholders receive accurate, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group by publication of announcements, circulars,
interim and annual reports. All shareholders’ communications are also available
on the Company’s website.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for
Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will make an effort
to attend and the external auditor is also available at the annual general meeting
to address Shareholders’ queries. In case of any extraordinary general meeting
to approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject
to independent Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address Shareholders’ queries.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of the Shargholders at
general meetings would be taken by poll.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Shareholders’ right to convene extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, an extraordinary general meetings of the
Company (the “EGM”) shall be convened on the requisition of any one or more
Shareholder(s) (the “Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and the
EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the Requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and shall
be entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s).
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Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the Shareholders,
the Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy (the “Policy”),
which is available on the website of the Company. Under the Policy, information
of the Group shall be communicated to the Shareholders mainly through annual
general meetings, extraordinary general meetings, financial reports, and its
corporate communications and other corporate publications on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may at any time make
a request for the Company’s information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary:

By post

Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F

Shui On Centre

6—8 Harbour Road, Wanchai Hong Kong

By email
Gavin.Kwai@acesogrouphk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the Shareholders’
meetings.

The Board conducted a review of the implementation and effectiveness of the
Policy during the year and is satisfied with the results thereof given the above
measures.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders shall follow Article 58 of the Articles for including a resolution
at any general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out above in
the paragraph headed “Shareholders’ right to convene extraordinary general
meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key
to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and public investors. The
Company updates the Shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual reports, interim reports, circulars and
announcements. The website of the Company (http://www.acesogrouphk.com)
has provided an effective communication platform to the public and the
Shareholders.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS EEXH
There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company during AR B ZRXHFRAFEE W EEF - K2

the Year. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available on the websites of the 4B B A] AR B KRB X P48 ut & 6 o
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. As at the date of this annual
report, its subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) securities investment;
(ii) provision of securities brokerage and other financial services; (iii) asset
management; (iv) rental and trading of construction machinery; (v) provision of
repair and maintenance and transportation service; (vi) property development;
(vii) property leasing; and (viii) money lending. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements for the
Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
A review of the Group’s financial and business performance

A review of the Group’s business and the analysis using the financial key
performance indicators are set out on pages 5 to 26 of this annual report under
the paragraphs headed “Business Review” and “Financial Review” in the section
headed “Management, Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. For the
Year, the Group had incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$264 million (2022 loss attributable to the owners of
approximately HK$370 million). The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2023 was
approximately 51% (31 March 2022: 49%).

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to operating in compliance with the applicable
environmental laws as well as protecting the environment by minimising the
negative impact of the Group’s existing business activities on the environment.
During the Year, the Group strived to build an environmentally friendly enterprise
with enhancement of energy usage efficiency, implementation of various emission
reduction measures and improvement in resource usage efficiency. Details of the
environmental policies and performance are set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company which is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises the importance of having good working relationship with
its employees. During the Year, the Group has not experienced any significant
problems with its staff or any significant labour disputes. As at 31 March 2023,
the Group had a total of approximately 153 employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated according to market
practices, experiences, skills and performance of individual employees and are
reviewed every year. The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a
share award scheme.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship with
its customers and suppliers to its immediate and long-term business goals.
During the Year, the aggregate revenue and purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers were approximately 21.4% and 66.7% of
the Group’s total revenue and purchases respectively. As at 31 March 2023, the
majority of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers have a length of
relationship with the Group for more than 10 years.

Compliance with laws and regulations with significant impact

Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied in all
material respect with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Principal risks and Uncertainties

The Group identified and determined the major risks which may affect
the operations results and financial conditions of the Group through risk
management process, which including the following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money lending
business

As at 31 March 2023, the outstanding loan receivables of the money lending
business of the Group (net of impairment) was approximately HK$145 million,
representing approximately 2.3% of the total assets of the Group. Any delay
or default in payment of the loans will have an adverse impact on the Group’s
working capital, cash flow and subsequently the profits of the Group.

To manage such risk, the Group requires borrowers to provide appropriate
security and closely monitors the loan receivable collection cycle from time to
time to ensure full and timely collection of the outstanding amounts due from the
borrowers. The Group will assess and decide to enforce the security provided by
the borrowers or take legal actions as appropriate. All exposures are subject to
regular review and assessment for possible impairment.
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Compliance risk

The Group operates financial services business through subsidiaries with
appropriate licenses to conduct regulated activities, insurance agency and money
lending. During the course of providing such financial services, the Group would
be exposed to compliance risk, including the risk of legal liability, being subject
to regulatory proceedings, disciplinary action, or loss of property or business
reputation arising from violation of laws, regulations and rules due to the
operation and management or practices of the Group or its personnel. In order
to effectively control compliance risk, the Group has put in place a practicable
compliance management system and provided resources and support to develop
lawful and compliance operations of the Group.

Financial risk
The Group’s diversified business is exposed to a variety of risks, such as
market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. Further details of the financial risk

management objectives and policies are set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the Year on pages 73 to 74 of

this annual report respectively.

No final dividend was recommended by the Directors for the Year (2022: nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available for distribution amounted
to approximately HK$1,843 million (2022: HK$1,878 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement of share capital of the Company are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 200 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, certain subsidiaries of the Company
purchased 52,980,000 (2022: 59,610,000) shares of the Company from the
market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares was HK$9 million (2022:
HK$5 million) and has been deducted from the shareholders’ equity. The related
weighted average price at the time of buy-back was HK$0.168 (2022: HK$0.08)
per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company cancelled 5,040,000 (2022:

nil) shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Haiying

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong

According to the Articles, Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and Mr. Lam Kwan Sing

shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for reelection at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Except Mr. Fok Chi Tak, the executive Director, all Directors have entered into a
service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years, which can be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other. No Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with any company
in the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Related Party Transactions” below, no
other transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company,
its ultimate holding company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Related Party Transactions” below,
at no time during the year under review was the Company, its controlling
shareholders, holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire bengfits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate, and neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in shares of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SF0), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EERFRITRASRELF RN
ﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ&#ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁhﬁﬁziﬁ
@R

RZEBE-=F=A=+—H0 EERAR
BITMA BN ARRHEM wﬂ&l(&%ﬁ
KBS GBI EXVER) 2 AR R B (TR ]) ~ 48
ARDREEZEY  BELARBIZEFRHE
&I AN B BFEBRMZER AR

SR R A B (T A1 G A2 B R B 52 T 2 18
ERARMT :

RELTRERRERKRGZFE

Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director/ Number of underlying Total total issued
chief executive Capacity Nature of interest Shares held Shares held interests  share capital
HERTT
Frisika iR BRE#E
EE TETHARKS 57 EQnE ®E RiT®A Egadd BWask
(Note 1)
(FrzE1)
Fok Chi Tak Beneficial owner Personal interest 60,871,152 - 60,871,152 0.82%
EEE EafEAA EAREzR
Xu Haiying Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 = 733,752 0.01%
TEE ExBEA EIN
Zhiliang Ou Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
%5 BHBEAA BN 3
Chan Ming Sun Jonathan Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
F37gd BRBEA B3
Lam Kwan Sing Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 = 733,752 0.01%
HEH BRBEEA BNz
Note: B EE -
1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 7,381,776,805 1. =R ESHIIBER - ZT-_=F=A=+—H

Shares in issue as at 31 March 2023.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors or
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SF0) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME

a.

98

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme which was adopted by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25
September 2015 and remains valid for a period of 10 years commencing
on 25 September 2015 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The major terms of
the Share Option Scheme are set out below:

(1)
)

(iif)

(iv)

Aceso Life Science Group Limited

The purpose is to provide incentives to the participants.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, the participants
include any full-time or part-time employees, executives and
officers of the Company and any of its subsidiaries (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors of the Company and any of its subsidiaries) and
business consultants and legal and other professional advisors of
the Company or its subsidiaries which, in the opinion of the Board,
has or had made contribution to the Group.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, the maximum
number of Shares in respect of which options might be granted
under the Share Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The number of
Shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share
capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme, the right of the grantee to exercise the option shall
be in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the Listing Rules and the period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee which shall not exceed 10 years from the date upon which
the options is deemed to be granted and accepted.

The exercise price of an option will be determined by the Board
and will not be less than the highest of: (1) the closing price of
the Share on the date of grant; (2) the average closing price of the
Share for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (3) the nominal value of the Share.

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of
grant of options.
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b. Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) on 27 September 2013 and the scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of ten years commencing from 27 September 2013.
The major terms of the Share Award Scheme are set out below:

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

The purpose is to recognise the contributions by certain employees
of the Group and to give incentives to retain employees and to
attract suitable talents for the continual operation and future
development and expansion of the Group.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, the participants
include any individual being a director (including executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive
director), employee, officer, agent or consultant of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or any other person as determined by the
Board who the Board considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, the aggregate
value of the Shares which may be issued to any individual at any
one time shall not exceed HK$5 million as at the date of such award
granted under the Share Award Scheme. The number of Shares
to satisfy the awards granted shall be allotted and issued by the
Board by obtaining a separate Shareholders’ approval at a general
meeting of the Company or utilising the general mandate granted
by the Shareholders at a general meeting of the Company from time
to time.

Subject to the restrictions under the Listing Rules, in relation to
each grantee of the awards granted under the Share Award Scheme,
the awards shall vest in a period to be determined by the Directors
where the period must be at least six months, save for awards
granted to employees of the Group.

The number of shares to be granted will be determined by the
Board by reference to: (1) monthly salary of eligible employee;
(2) the average closing price of the share for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (3) duration of
employment of eligible employee.
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c. Share Schemes adopted by HTICI

HTICI, the non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1341), has adopted a
share option scheme and a share award scheme on 23 October 2015 and
24 April 2021 respectively. For details of the schemes adopted by HTICI,
please refer to the 2022/23 annual report published by HTICI.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the Year or subsisted
at the end of the Year are set out below:

Options
Share options granted to Co-High

In the year 2020, the Group has been actively seeking opportunities to diversify
its businesses and to expand its businesses into bioscience industry. By
partnering with Co-High Investment Management Limited (“Co- High”), the
Group can tap into the bioscience industry. Apart from forming a joint venture,
the Company and Co-High entered into a conditional option deed (the “Share
Option Deed”) on 9 July 2020 in respect of the grant of the 609,188,681 options
(the “Co-High Share Option(s)”) to Co-High for subscription of an aggregate of
609,188,681 new Shares (the “Co-High Option Share(s)”) at the initial exercise
price of HK$0.25 per Co-High Option Share (subject to adjustments) during
the period commencing from the date of the Share Option Deed and ending on
the third anniversary of that date. The Share Option Deed, the grant of Co- High
Share Options and the issue of the Co-High Option Shares were approved by the
Shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on 3 September 2020 and
the other conditions precedent were also fulfilled. As of the date of this report,
none of the subscription rights attaching to the Co-High Share Options has been
exercised by Co-High. For more details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 5 June 2020 and 3 September 2020, and the circular of the
Company dated 14 August 2020.

Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 25 September 2015 and
a share award scheme on 27 September 2013, respectively. Particulars of the
schemes are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme and Share
Award Scheme”.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
Year set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related
party transactions do not constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND EEBRRN A2 T D B HRR B 5 R

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING BECHESRER

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of @ HR-ZT-_=ZF=ZA=+—H  ®EFHARF
the Company, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executives ~ EZBITHRABAA M NTA T (ESEHARFE

ZTBRABBRINRARF IR KRR & 7
BN L2 EBHTRE - ARERIKED
AL PR B 5 B ERDIEIBIRREFELZ

of the Company) had interests or short positions of 5% or more in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERFEFLMA
Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary Shares underlying Total total issued
Name of Shareholder held Shares held  Capacity interests share capital
HERT
Fris @R Friz R 2301
BRte 2R e BRiZ®E =K Hae #Bwask
(Note 1)
(zE1)
Li Shao Yu (*Ms. Li") (Note 2) 3,742,366,773 - Interest of controlled corporations 4 353,651,115 58.98%
Z0F(Ft ) (Er2) P VNGl 3
611,284,342 — Beneficial owner
ERBEAA
Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings 3,357,578,773 — Beneficial owner 3,465,128,773 46.94%
Limited (“Asia Link") (Note 2) ERBA
DHEIEERAR AR (35 ]) 107,550,000 — Interest of controlled corporations
(ﬁﬁuﬂ) P VNGl 3
Huang Shiying (Note 3) 800,000,000 —  Interest of controlled corporations 800,000,000 10.83%
A () P NGl 3
Huang Tao (Note 3) 800,000,000 - Interest of controlled corporations 800,000,000 10.83%
(o)) P NGl 3
Century Golden Resources Investment 800,000,000 — Beneficial owner 800,000,000 10.83%

Co., Ltd. (“Century Golden”) (Note 3)

Century Golden Resources Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Century Golden”)
(FfF7E3)

ERBAA

== == =G AT
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Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary Shares underlying Total total issued
Name of Shareholder held Shares held  Capacity interests share capital
HERT
FrisE B FrisHE BF @8
BRKE 2R #H Bh®E S ot Brask
(Note 1)
(FtzE1)
Haitong Securities Co., Limited - 1,948,333,333  Security interest 1,948,333,338 26.38%
("HSCL") (Note 4) iR
BREFRHERRA
(gmEs]) ()
Co-High Investment Management - 609,188,681  Beneficial owner 609,188,681 8.25%
Limited (“Co-High") (Note 5) ExBEA
NBBEEERARAR(HS)
(Fr5E5)
Atlantis Capital Group Holdings Limited 139,278,000 609,188,681  Interest of controlled corporation 748,466,681 10.13%
(“Atlantis Capital Group”) (Note 6) QLTI UNGI: Sy
mEEAEEERAR AT
(FEEREE]) (Fi:H6)
Liu Yang (Note 7) 139,278,000 609,188,681  Interest of controlled corporation 748,466,681 10.13%
215 (2T RS EE R
Dong Zimeng (Note 8) 5,004,000 — Beneficial owner 614,192,681 8.31%
e (iR ERBEBA
= 609,188,681  Interest of controlled corporation

et VNGl Eo
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Notes:

1.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 7,381,776,805
Shares in issue as at 31 March 2023

Ms. Li was beneficially interested in a total of 4,353,651,115 Shares, among
which, 611,284,342 Shares were held by Ms. Li as beneficial owner, and
3,689,320,773 Shares were held by (i) Asia Link as to 3,357,578,773 Shares,
(ii) Team Success Venture Holdings Limited as to 230,900,000 Shares, (iii)
TRXY Development (HK) Limited as to 46,338,000 Shares, and (iv) Glory
Century Limited as to 107,550,000 Shares, all of which were beneficially
owned by Ms. Li.

Each of Mr. Huang Shiying and Mr. Huang Tao was deemed to be interested in
800,000,000 Shares held by Century Golden pursuant to the SFO by virtue of
his controlling interest in Century Golden.

HSCL, through Haitong International Holdings Limited, which is its directly
wholly-owned subsidiary, held 64.4% of the issued shares in Haitong
International Securities Group Limited, which in turn held 100% of the issued
shares in Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd (“HIFP
Singapore”). HIFP Singapore held the security interest in those 1,948,333,333
Shares.

Co-High has entered into a share option deed with the Company for the grant
of 609,188,681 options to subscribe for 609,188,681 new Shares at the
exercise price of HK$0.25 each.

Atlantis Capital Group owns 60% of the total issued share capital in Co-
High and wholly owns Atlantis Investment Management Limited (“Atlantis
Investment”). Therefore, Atlantis Capital Group was deemed or taken to be
interested in the 609,188,681 Shares held by Co-High and in the 139,278,000
Shares held by Atlantis Investment by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Atlantis Capital Group is accustomed to act in accordance with the director,
Ms. Liu Yang, so Ms. Liu Yang was deemed or taken to be interested in the
interest in the 748,466,681 Shares that Atlantis Capital Group is interested in
by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Dong Zimeng owns 40% of the total issued share capital in Co— High and
was deemed or taken to be interested in the interest in the 609,188,681 Shares
held by Co-High by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

—F— —
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G
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2397 27,381,776,805 % Ak 19 2 ELEEH E o
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B HA611,284 342080 YT T 1E
AEDESAFAR - 1M3,689,320,7738% M%7 Al
f(i)2e B3 53,357,578, 7730 A% 1 & (ii) Team
Success Venture Holdings Limited# 4 230,900,000
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Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who have interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the
Company, which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and determined by the Board on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and determined by the Board having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market standards.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme as incentives to the Directors and eligible employees.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue and purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers were approximately 21.4% and 66.7% of the
Group'’s total revenue and purchases respectively and the revenue and purchase
attributable to the Group’s largest customer and supplier were approximately 5.4%
and 35.4% of the Group’s total revenue and purchases respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

According to the Articles, the Directors for the time being of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty in
their respective offices.

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against the Directors during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any donations to charitable and non-
profit-making organisations.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, during the Year, at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares were held by the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year were audited by
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA LIMITED (“ZHONGHUI ANDA”), whose term of office will
retire at the close of the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI ANDA as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Fok Chi Tak
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

il

ZHONGHUI

To the shareholders of Aceso Life Science Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Aceso Life Science
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 199, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Interests in associates

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of interests in associates for impairment. This
impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance of interests
in associates of HK$1,130,000,000 as at 31 March 2023 is material to the

consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test
involves application of judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

QOur audit procedures included, among others:

Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
—  Assessing the financial information of the associates;

= Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the external
valuer engaged by the Company;

= Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with the external
valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation process, methodologies used
and market evidence to support significant judgments and assumptions
applied in the valuation model;

= Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation model to
supporting evidence; and
= Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for interests in associates is
supported by the available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) P EIE (1)
Corporate note receivables Bl ERE

Refer to note 25 and to the consolidated financial statements BHERReMBEERME2S

The Group tested the amount of corporate note receivables for impairment. This ~ HHREFERCEZHRSBEITRENR - /@

impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance of corporate M -ZE-_=F=A=+—HEWK P EZE L%

note receivables of HK$507,000,000 as at 31 March 2023 is material to the ~ 73507,000,000/87C © $Iir A BHRERAEBEAE

consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test 3+ BGZREB A E R FIET 2B IIEM S

involves application of judgement and is based on estimates. BEEER 1IN BEEEZREARSRE
FR¥IE - WEAMEE -

Our audit procedures included, among others: BB RREFEPRIE

—  Assessing the Group's procedures on granting credit limits and credit — — FHE SEBAEBEARBEERELE
periods to debtors; EHCRRF

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history with the — — #Ff{EF SEEBHBEBFAZEERENMR S
debtors; 8

—  Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment and expected credit loss ~ — FHMB SEBZREF EMEHEEEIE
assessment; 2

- Assessing ageing of the debts; —  FHAEERE

—  Assessing creditworthiness of the debtors and guarantors; — FHEEBARERAZEE:

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the debtors; and — BREBAZHRELEEL R

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit risk inthe  — FHLE4RAMERERANER S£EFTEY
consolidated financial statements. EERR ZHEEIE -

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for corporate note receivables is B ffiR A BSEERERCESZEETZRIE
supported by the available evidence. RIHER BB BRI -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Investment properties
Refer to notes 18 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its investment properties at fair value with the changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. This fair value
measurement is significant to our audit because the balance of investment
properties of HK$1,518,000,000 as at 31 March 2023 and the fair value loss of
HK$19,000,000 for the year then ended are material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s fair value measurement involves application
of judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

QOur audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the external
valuer engaged by the Company;

= Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with the external
valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation process, methodologies used
and market evidence to support significant judgments and assumptions
applied in the valuation model;

= Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation model to
supporting evidence;

= Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in the consolidated
financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of the investment properties
is supported by the available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Refer to notes 38 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at
fair value with the changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss. This fair value measurement is significant to our audit because the balance
of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss of HK$578,000,000 as at
31 March 2023 and the fair value gain of HK$51,000,000 for the year then ended
are material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
fair value measurement involves application of judgement and is based on
assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the external
valuer engaged by the Company;

= Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with the external
valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation process, methodologies used
and market evidence to support significant judgments and assumptions
applied in the valuation model;

= Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation model to
supporting evidence;

= Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in the consolidated
financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of the financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss is supported by the available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determing is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-setting/standards/our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Shun Fai

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P05498

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

iy B LN D=
FelEEREMZEKER
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE
2023 2022
—E_=% —E-F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BaE BEET BEET
Revenue ON 7 312 315
Cost of revenue WA AR (171) (153)
Gross profit EH 141 162
Other income EHUA 8 49 28
Fair value (losses)/gains: AEEER), s (50) (396)
— investment properties —REME (19) 85
— financial assets at fair value through profitor ~ — AR F{EFE B E &bt
loss (“FVTPL”) ABH(ARFEH=E
BE# i ABR]DZ
SREE (82) (510)
— financial liabilities at FVTPL — AT EFTE B S LA
AERzemBaE 51 29
Other gains, net E bl 558 9 63 24
Administrative expenses TERAX (123) (146)
Reversal of impairment losses: BEEERE 48 13
— property, plant and equipment —ME - BE REE - 2
—intangible assets —EBEE 13 2
— financial assets (expected credit losses) —SMEEFEHEEER) 35 9
Share-based payment expenses A R KA (3) @)
Share of results of associates DIEEE R RIEE (131) (44)
Share of results of joint ventures DMEBEDEEE (78) (30)
Finance costs A A 10 (129) (159)
Loss hefore taxation FRIRBIESIR 11 (213) (555)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigfis e, (F) 13 5 (41)
Loss for the year FRNEBR (208) (596)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEBERRHMEEKER
Forthe year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE—ZT-_=F=A=+—HILFE
2023 2022
—E=HF —EICF
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BRE BEET BEAT
Other comprehensive (loss)/income after E 12 (E5H) IS » IR
tax: #®:
lterms that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: & E#H FiEE 8z 2 HH -
Fair value (loss)/gain on investments inequity AR F(ETEHEE
instruments at fair value through other EfemEles ((AAFE
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) FrER HBEHAEME
HEWe]) 2w T ARE
Z XA (BB, W (127) 41
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: ~ AJREEFT 72 E B a2 THH
Share of associates’ exchange differences on DI E A RIREIGINETS
translating foreign operation EEZER =T 3 11
Exchange differences on translating foreign MEGINEREE Y
operations EH Z5E (70) (26)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year, & A E Ath 2 (E518) Uk 25 -
net of tax BR1& (194) 26
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEGREHA (402) (570)
Loss for the year attributable to: B{EFERBIR -
Owners of the Company RARESZHEEA (264) (370)
Non-controlling interests EiSliligr 56 (226)
(208) (596)
Total comprehensive loss for the year BEFEAZEEGIREE -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RAElE=FEA (438) (341)
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAE A 36 229
(402) (570)
Loss per share W|EEER 14
Basic (HK cents per share) AR (B (3.61) (5.14)
Diluted (HK cents per share) BE (BR0BI) (3.61) (5.55)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MEIKRERE

Asat31 March2023 M-ZTE-_=F=HA=+—H

2023 2022
—E_=F T F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BIsE BEEET BEAT
Non-current assets FRENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - REREE 16 254 254
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 27 29
Investment properties wKEMZE 18 1,518 1,625
Intangible assets mEE 19 171 158
Interests in associates NGl 20 1,130 1,308
Interests in joint ventures REEE R 21 2 80
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT EEREHEZETA
HivzHliams SREE 22 801 44
Loan receivables FEWE K 23 - 16
Finance lease receivables R E S EGRIE 24 - 2
Corporate note receivables eI (> RIR 25 42 =
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 26 54 53
Pledged bank deposits BHIRRITIER 27 - 21
Other receivables and deposits HE Rl EIE R 2 28 5 10
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 4,004 3,997
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 29 2 6
Properties under development ERERAYE 30 352 368
Trade receivables B 5 W EIR 31 115 149
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EMpEWEIE - 512 RFER
IE 28 30 124
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EEEHEZETA
Bz emEE 32 415 522
Loan receivables FEE K 23 145 331
Finance lease receivables BB E R GRIE 24 2 4
Corporate note receivables eI (>R IR 25 465 471
Pledged bank deposits BIRARITER 27 30 -
Trusted and segregated bank accounts SRR IRITIRP 27 554 9%
Cash and cash equivalents e MRSEEY 27 187 195
Total current assets mEEE#E 2,297 2,266
Total assets HE#E 6,301 6,263
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FRE MR RERE
Asat31March2023 R-—ZE-=F=A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
M5 HEET BHEBT
Current liabilities mENAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 14 12
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 34 1,702 1,734
Corporate note payables ERTERE 35 435 390
Trade payables B SRR 36 13 6
Other payables, deposits received and accruals ~— EL b B~ 7K I8
BUET & R ERTFRIE 37 666 289
Income tax payables FERTFTSEL 25 20
Total current liabilities mEAEERE 2,855 2,451
Net current liabilities REAEERE (558) (185)
Total assets less current liabilities EERERTDARB 3,446 3,812
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 15 17
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEGE 26 100 111
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 34 M 188
Corporate note payables FERTE R 35 137 40
Financial liabilities at FVTPL WAFEEFEBEE(LETA
BasamaE 38 578 629
Total non-current liabilities ERBARHRE 871 985
NET ASSETS EESE 2,575 2,827
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
wRE PR R

Asat31 March2023 M-ZTE-_=F=HA=+—H

2023 2022
—E_=% T F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BIsE BEEET BEAT

EQUITY #E
Share capital &N 39 73 74
Reserves {5 1,476 1,928
1,549 2,002
Non-controlling interests FEFE R A 1,026 825
TOTAL EQUITY WA 2,575 2,827

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 199 were approved and FNRE1PE VGV ERROCHESZeN =

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2023 and are signed — = F,xH -+ \BEH A TZE - W5
on its behalf by: EEREREEZo
Fok Chi Tak Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
EEE PRER S
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEERERE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

Rtibutabl to owners of he Company

BATHEARS
Share-tased ~ Convertile Non-
Shae  Shae  Treaswy  pament ol FVIOC Translafin Accumulaled  Other conbollng~~ Total
oapltll  pemim  shares resene reseme resene  msene  losses oresene  Tolal  ilenests equiy
HATER
BRRg(
AR

WBAYS  WER 2ENEC
B BREE EEBR AREE REEE 0 R ARME  ZMER RMEE € AURNE
Nos~ HKS'million HKSmillion HKSmilion HKSmilion  HKS'millon HKS'millon HKS'millon ~ HKSmillion HKS'million K milion HKS milion  HKS milion
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REER2BR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

Rtibutabl to owners of he Company

BATHEABE
Share-tased ~ Convertile Non-
Shae  Shae  Treaswy  pament ol FVIOC Translafion Accumulaled  Other wontolling - Tolal
optal  premium  shaes vesewe resene resene  resene losses reseme  Toll  ilenests equiy
HATER
BRRg(
A2

WRAYR  WER  EW8L
B ROER EFRR HRER GEEE 0 HF MENER  RMER RMEE &t ARBEE gEEE
loes~ HKS'million HKSmilion HKSmilion HKSmillon  HKS'millon HKS'millon HKS'million ~ HKSmilion HKSmilion K milion HKS milion  HKSmilion
i FEET ERET ERET FEET FEET GEET GEET  EEET BEET EEMT EEET EEET
(nte41) (e 41 {noe 1) (nte41()
(et (et i) Ot (Watui)

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZBCZEZRZt-RR-
-8R~ oA f 0w - % m @ e %
Totd compretesie s RRFRLE - - - - -6 m - () ¥ ()
Transactons with eqity hlders HEgREALE:
Careonf s Bt ) l - f
Renuchass s EaRkh M) - - 1] 1] (]
Erloyestae s sed by iy —AHELT%A 2 EERS
B 03 b 3 3
Dipos o a sy itou s o o HE-FHBAAmUEREY
F¥AL iy (6 (6] 12 156
() ) (S T
31 Merch 2003 RE-=F=f=1-A [N (f9)* 3 - 2 7 N A | A/ O N [ O A ]
Note: MIEE -
() *These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of () *ZERBERERESGAGVBKRIRA
HK$1,476,000,000 (2022: HK$1,928,000,000) in the consolidated statement AR A E1,476,000,0008 (==
of financial position. £ :1,928,000,000/87T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FEeReRE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E_=% —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Cash flows from operating activities BEXERBAERE
Loss before taxation BR7% B ES 1R (213) (555)
Adjustments for; AT S BIELRFAE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y% - BENREETE 40 57
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 12 11
Extinguishment gain on early redemption of convertible 12 F-i& Ol JE I AR Z 18 2 (B fE
note payables Wz - 9)
Fair value losses/(gains): ANEEEE (W)
— investment properties —REYHE 19 (85)
— financial assets at FVTPL AT EFEBHEZ A
BRcemEE 82 510
—financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EFEBHEZ A
BnzemaE (51) (29)
Finance costs ELEID%N 129 159
Interest earned on corporate note receivables FEWI D RIRBRERF 2 (28) (19)
Interest earned on bank deposits SRITIERURERF & (2) )
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - B K& Was (6) )
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FWBAE .z Was (1) -
Gain on disposal of associates HERE R A2 W (1) -
Gain on early settlement of corporate note payables IRRIEEENPEE s K (54) =
Reversal of impairment losses: RE R E:
— property, plant and equipment o JERN N - )
— intangible assets -BREE (13) )
— financial assets (expected credit loss) -2REEGFEHEEER) (35) (9)
Share-based payment expenses AR R KA 3 7
Share of results of associates DG E AR EE 131 44
Share of results of joint ventures DEEEDEREE 78 30
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n'l_\éiﬁlﬁsﬁ.;%%

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
—E_=% —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Operating profit before working capital changes LIEESFERILE EN 90 105
Change in working capital HEESH
Finance lease receivables BE A E R KEIR 4 1
Financial assets at FVTPL A EFERHEBETAE
mEREE 24 (52)
Inventories rE 4 9
Loans receivables FEWE R 67 245
Other payables, deposits received, accruals and HibEftzas - eET€ - &
contract liabilities STERRAEYEE 444 104
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAEUWRRIE - 51 & RFERR
b1 (3) 8
Trade receivables B S5 EWRIR 43 (23)
Trade payables Z SN FIR 7 2
Trusted and segregated bank accounts ERENRBIIRITERF (458) (80)
Cash generated from operations KEEIFSRE 222 319
Income tax paid B FE R - (3)
Net cash generated from operating activities BEXGRERELPHE 222 316
Cash flows from investing activities BRETEHREALRE
Consideration paid for acquisition of a corporate note WIBEKCERER 2 ENRE
receivable (396) (402)
Acquisition of financial assets at FVTOCI WHEA A HESTE BEEEETA
Hith2EWE SREE (112) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE - BEREE (47) (57)
Placement in pledged bank deposits FHREEIRIRITIF R (9) (21)
Repayment of corporate note receivables EEEWTESEEASHIR 392 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment & #ZE - S MBS A 23 14
Proceeds from disposal of associates & — B = A RIS F0R 16 —
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HE—HermEEMSHKIE 10 =
Interest received EFIE 2 16
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—EWB A RFEHIA 1 =
Withdraw of pledged deposits R E IR - 5
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture HE—EEeETEMEHRIEA - 4
Net cash used in investing activities BREEEFARESE (120) (441)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

“‘I_\éiﬁlﬁiﬁliﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

—=E=A=t—HItEE

2023 2022
—E_=% —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT

Cash flows from financing activities MEEBRERERE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERERTREMEE (506) (352)
Interest paid BT E (113) (152)
Repayment of corporate note payables EERNTERE (73) (222)
Repayment of a loan from a director of a subsidiary EE—ZNBRARESEZER (20) -
Lease liabilities paid BEfEEaE (14) (14)
Repurchase of shares B EIRR D (9) (5)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMEEMSHRIE 381 882
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries without loss of &5 B /B8 /2 = if I 4 Sk =45 1 4

control Fr{S 50 156 32
Proceeds from issue of corporate note payables BITERBRISHE 100 —
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary from non-controlling 713 E4%2 B A% B2 U BE B B A BIAE RS

shareholders - (55)
Repayment to a director of a subsidiary m—&HBARESER = (12)
Advance from a director of a subsidiary KE—BMBARES BN - 24
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BB EE(FRA), MERESH

activities (98) 126
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BReRREEEMIEM 4 1
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RENz2BeRESEEY 195 198
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INESTE RSB FRE B (12) (4)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REXRZEERASEEY 187 195
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BeRBEF/BMZAR
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS MR 187 195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Aceso Life Science Group Limited (the “Company” together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an exempted limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Its immediate and ultimate holding
company is Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings Limited, which
is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), and the ultimate
controlling shareholder is Ms. Li Shao Yu. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.0. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business in Hong
Kong is Rooms 25012509, 25/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the Group include: (i) securities investment; (ii) provision of
securities brokerage and financial services; (iii) asset management; (iv)
rental and trading of construction machinery; (v) provision of repair and
maintenance and transportation service; (vi) property development; (vii)
property leasing; and (viii) money lending.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$") and rounded to the nearest million (“million”), unless
otherwise stated.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 April 2022. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS™);
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s financial statements and amounts reported for
the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet
in a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
material impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

3.

84

T=FEZA=t+—HIEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL and
financial liabilities at FVTPL which is carried at its fair value. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
(“HK$") and rounded to the nearest million (“million”), unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors of the Company to exercise their judgements in the
process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities,
i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity's returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights as
well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine whether
it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
gvidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

FREAHRE (18)

e AR (1)

SIBEKIEHEZMBARILEMEELZ
Wes sk B BRIEATMIEZ 258 : ()HER
B2 AFEM_EZWE QR PRE Z EM[
BREZ NHE - R(i)ARRADEZMER
mEEFE N L EZ M B AR AR 2 A
RAEBBREMBER BEHNER B
o

SEARFRZRS - RS AREERE N
TASH o REREBITT AL - BRIk
RopRHMEBREERECER - MEF
2 MERRZ G BRCIELES - U
PR BRI RABERER — 2K

IR S RIE Y IFM AR R B R R
BEMBARER - FFERERELRS
AN R LIRSS e R 2 IR A
FIR o IR EENGE B R EME
B R Z2VNRAARBEERBR R ER
Az FRER R RS EEDE -

BEakHEtemla s SBEERBTAR
AR A MSEEIRARR - BIfE UL E B
P et IR B AL 4B R o

ARBNMBRB2ERZES (T8
BHREENEIERRAZRZ H AR (B1HE
BBEANAREZFEBEANSNETRS) °
PR e FE AR A 2 2 R T (B AR R B DA S R
HNK B A e AR 2 B8 o FRIEAE
BRAEZ cREACNKERREQTFE
ZBEZ A ERAE RN ER R R
BRARFEEA -

T CF=EFR EREGRNEEEERAT 85



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting rights
held by other entities, are considered when assessing whether the Group
has significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right
contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the
profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss of
significant influence represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group’s share of the net assets of that associate
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the Group continues
to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
gvidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
Relevant activities are activities that significantly affect the returns of
the arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has joint control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture. A joint
operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group recognises in
its consolidated financial statements, its assets, including its share of
any assets held jointly; its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly; its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising
from the joint operation; its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly, in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to
the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

3.

88

T=FEZA=t+—HIEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONTINUED)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
|dentifiable assets and liabilities of the joint venture in an acquisition
are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its
share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that results in a loss
of joint control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that joint venture and (i) the Group’s share of the net assets of that joint
venture plus any remaining goodwill relating to that joint venture and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate, the Group
continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the joint ventures.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
gvidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company’s functional currency and the Group's
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation
policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
oss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the group entities that have
a functional currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

(i)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

(iii) Al resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

Annual Report 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Property,
plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% t0 25%
Motor vehicles 10% to 25%
Machinery 10%
Yacht 5%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or 0ss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are buildings held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. An investment property is measured initially at its cost
including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its fair
value based on valuation by an external independent valuer. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of the investment property are
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the Group.
Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated at
rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rate is as follows:

Over the lease term
Over the lease term
Over the lease term

Land and buildings
Machinery
Motor vehicles

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid,
initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expenses in profit or 10ss on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial lease term of
12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value below US$5, 000
(approximately equivalent to HK$38,000).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Properties under development

Properties for sale under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease
payments, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to sale proceeds received after the reporting period less selling
expenses, or by estimates based on prevailing market condition. On
completion, the properties are reclassified to properties held for sale at the
then carrying amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Intangible assets
Customer list

Customer list acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their expected life of 5 years.

Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. They have an indefinite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less impairment losses.

Securities brokerage licenses

Securities brokerage licenses acquired in a business combination are

recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have an indefinite
useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less impairment losses.
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94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or l0ss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair
value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or 10ss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following categories:
- Financial assets at amortised cost

— Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income; and

— Investments at fair value through profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade, loan and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected credit
losses.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election
(on an instrument-by- instrument basis) to designate investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading as at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair values recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the equity investment
revaluation reserve. On derecognition of an investment, the
cumulative gains or losses previously accumulated in the equity
investment revaluation reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in profit or loss,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do
not meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and
the conditions of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising from
changes in fair values recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest
income and dividend income. Interest income and dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost and lease receivables. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks
of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for trade
receivables or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that result from
default events on that financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or 10ss.

Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/23

3.

FRE AR (18)

SR E (1)
(i) BAFEAARRZER

BR IF AN 5% B 50 17) 20 T SR B 45 TE IR %
EEBE 2 BRAKRERIB A FERFA
Hitt2mE W  Bfe@EEL T
NEWBMHR AT E RN - TR
HEBAPEFAEMEEKEZ
BREZ G-I - RIZIAKRLER

BAFEFABRREERER
FEAE MATFEZHELZE
i E B RN ERER - NIR&E
MR A EWE I E R T GRE
A A B AR BE WA o FEHA
Ko B AR B ZR TR,

FRERBRZEGIREH

RE B R HK A NEE R IARR S
MEECEMEEER ZBIRRE - BH
EEEBERINETHEERE - WARLE
MR K < Bl fE R IERIE -

RERERRAMERTRAZERERE
VIAFERBIARKIRIZ NN - NEE L E FE
WkIE - RSN A A e AN EM
ZEHERBERAZERIA ZEFF
HIEHMBEHERERD2SHE  tES
BT RZEBERME -

MR SRR BT A(E 5 EUWHRIER
51N 2 15 P LR B )46 FE A8 DA SR I 8 KR
N AIREEZRESESNRRZ SR TR
ARERNBERMR T —EARBELEZELY
S BERERER 2 MEMER
BRIDZCHETESHIAZEERE
o

BEHEREESHAEERRERRZE
BREREEMTE R BEE 2 SENE
5 P RERR AR E W e s BT S
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s share (treasury
shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially recognised and subsequently
measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair values recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract
with a customer with reference to the customary business practices and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring control over a product or service to a customer. Depending
on the terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A
performance obligation is satisfied over time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance;

—  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

= the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the product or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all employees. Contributions to the schemes
by the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged to profit or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution retirement
scheme organised by the government in the PRC. The Group is
required to contribute a specific percentage of the payroll of its
employees to the retirement scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the retirement scheme. No forfeited contributions may be
used by the employers to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-bhased payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain directors
and employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of
the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are
outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to it and that the grant
will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in profit
or loss over the period to match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are deducted from
the carrying amount of the assets. The grant is recognised in profit or
loss over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model of the
Group whose business objective is to consume substantially all of the
gconomic benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the expected manner as to
how the properties will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the performance of the
Group’s various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A)  Anperson or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A) (i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available for
use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets except goodwill,
deferred tax assets, inventories and receivables to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of cash-generating units (“CGU”)
to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or CGU in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or those that
indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATION

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Consolidation of entity of less than 50% equity interest

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the equity interest in
Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited
(“HTICI"), HTICI is treated as a subsidiary because the directors
consider that the Group has de facto control of HTICI. The Group
is the majority shareholder of HTICI with a 47.57% (2022:
47.13%) equity interest, The second, third and fourth substantial
shareholders hold 11.74% (2022: 13.23%), 7.62% (2022:
9.97%) and less than 5% (2022: 6.02%) equity interest of HTICI
respectively. All other shareholders individually own less than 5%
of equity interest of HTICI. There is no history of other shareholders
forming a group to exercise their votes collectively.

Accounted for 49% equity interest in Kingdom Future
Limited (“Kingdom Future”) as fair value through profit
or loss

The Group and the controlling shareholder of Kingdom Future hold
49% and 51% equity interest of Kingdom Future respectively. The
Group is not entitle to appoint director of Kingdom Future and is
not able to vote against the controlling shareholder of Kingdom
Future. Hence, the directors of the Company considered that the
Group has no significant influence over Kingdom Future and it is
more appropriate to account for Kingdom Future as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.
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4.

108 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

—=E=A=t—HItEE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATION
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
gstimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and investments accounted for using equity
method

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested annually
for impairment; or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs
of disposal. These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates. Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group’s financial condition and results of operations.

Annual Report 2022/23

4.

o 82 FI R B £ F 45T (1)

{HEHREABBERZ E BRI

BRARRZEERK

RN HmEBRGET

AR 2 Kt T 2R FER T EHT
—EFRFEzEERBERIABELERA
R 2 EARB) BN TX

(a)

W%  BERRMW BEEERE
HREARZRRREE

BEEERAGEAFHCEETGFE
TREANR  KBEFEHLBRLE
MR R AT g BB E R 1T
BTHREBEZRENH - ERFFMHLR
ﬁ‘\%iﬁaﬁzﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁfﬁ—m%ﬂ/ﬂ&
O 6 - & % H i & 2 3 17 R(E A
A o TH&Z@@%&B*&E@%EE%
Zﬁ NP ERBERAzBSEE
o B FE AT HAGE R HIEr K Ak ET o
é‘?ﬂ@ﬁﬁmﬁéﬁfﬂ’ﬁﬁ#ﬂ
B - CHERE : (REEEEREE
%ﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁé%ﬁﬂ%éﬁiﬂkﬁz
=4 5 (i) AT 4 Bl & R (B2 TER
’%&$Eﬁi$ﬁdf§#¥%‘zﬂtﬂ%%§ﬁﬁﬁi§
MEEt 2 AKRREREFREZ
;‘Tm%)TTEZﬁéfFEEETE ;R (i)
mEBeRERAMAZEE X
@j*n ! FL%EEZ:IE%/ME E/ﬁ”%é
LALE.??F‘JTEEEE - BIRE R ARE
ZRZBR(BERRETRAR
Zﬁﬁfﬁfii‘ﬁﬂﬁ“’i)z B ]
CEESDERIEY ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ% 2R EEKE
KE/%%: & BN EE 2 Bk
/R&%‘“A%A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATION
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group estimates the allowances for expected credit loss for
its trade receivables, finance lease receivables, loan receivables,
corporate note receivables and other receivables. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements which are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, possibility of default adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions at the
end of reporting period. Where the estimation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the carrying amounts
of the financial assets and will affect the result of allowance for loss
recognised and results of operations.

Fair value of other financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL or
FVTOCI were determined by using various valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions, including the discount rates, which are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in assumptions used could materially affect
the fair value of these balances and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operation.

Fair value of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the fair
values, the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

4.

110 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

—=E=A=t—HItEE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATION
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
The Group estimated the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
based on the terms of the rental agreements and the Group’s

incremental borrowing rate. Estimates are required in determining
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

5.

FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

(b) Price risk

The Group’s investments at fair value through profit or loss and
equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity security price
risk. The directors manage this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with difference risk profiles.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.

(CONTINUED)
(b) Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to listed equity securities price risks at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis included those financial
assets at FVTPL and financial assets at FVTOCI. If the prices of the
respective equity investment included in financial assets at FVTPL
had been 10% higher/lower, assuming all other variables were held
constant, the impact to the Group would be as follows:

Rk REFEREEE ()

(b)

{F 4% B (48)

AT 8RR E DA TOAR IR 3 & B R A
A FIBRARFERRAREE °
GRERBRBFENANTFEFEAR
B ABR 2 SREERARF
BEfE AR AR EE RS
ZERMEE - WARNTEFEAHR
S ABRcEREEMB S
B AR E 2 BRI, A 10%

BREMBEMBEBRTE  HY
REBZHENT
2023 2022
—E-= —E-CF
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEATL
Impact on loss/profit after tax i F & BB, Sam F 2 & +10% 24 23
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFEAHZETA
Bz emEE -10% (24) (23)
Impact on FVTOCI reserve HARNTFEAEHEHEE( LA
Htvemb a2 ARz oE +10% 2 4
Financial assets at FVTOCI UAFEFEAHEZETA
EtrEmiae erREE -10% (2) (4)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIFmEpE

The Group’s certain bank deposits and borrowings bear interests
at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest
rate risks.

The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank borrowings. These deposits and borrowings
bear interests at variable rates varied with the then prevailing
market condition.

The sensitivity analysis below demonstrates the effect of the interest
differences by a 0.5% change on floating-rate borrowings and
bank and pledged deposits, assuming all other variables were held
constant.

Carrying amount

ARENETRAERREEUE
EAE S - WL AYATEFE
Al -

4 EE G 2 I AR B £ 81T
FRBBITEE - REEARMEE
HEER TR FBRET R -

Ttz R DA SRR SR PR A E
MEBERFIE  FEMEENRLER
17 R B IRTF R BH0.5% L B =5

By 488
LRE o

Impact on post-tax loss

IREE HREFERZTE
2023 2022 2023 2022
e = o CF B =F T
HK$’million HK$'million HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BE5T HEET BEAT
Floating-rate borrowings FEEE (651) (55) (3) -
Bank and pledged deposits IR1T R EHEIER 30 21 - =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, finance lease receivables, corporate note receivables,
deposits and bank balances included in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has concentration of credit risk in
respect of its loan receivables and corporate note receivables. The
number of counterparties from these receivables are as follows:

5.

EREREFEREEE (R

(d)

(S5 mBe
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2023 2022

ol Sl - —E-F

Loan receivables R E R 16 26
Corporate note receivables R R 5 4

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit- ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The credit risk on investments is limited because the counterparty is
a well-established securities broker firm in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis throughout
gach reporting period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding- looking information. Especially the following
information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations;

= actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower;

- significant changes in the value of the collateral or in the
quality of guarantees or credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the payment
status of borrower.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment. A
default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make
contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally categorises
a receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 365 days past due. Where receivables
have been written off, the Group, if practicable and economical,
continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover
the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade receivables which
reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for
each of the categories. In calculating the expected credit loss rates,
the Group considers historical loss rates for each category and
adjusts for forward looking data.

5.
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Category Definition Loss provision

xR EH BR300

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses
ES) KB AR RSN 12 & A e RS 18

Non-performing
FEEX

Significant increase in credit risk
= E R R EREIE N

Lifetime expected losses
FHITE AR 1R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBmRME
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE
5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. L RtREXEEEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Liquidity risk (e) FRENE & EPE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected AEBrHRERTEHERNEAKE
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves A RBESF R NBREFT
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer EReFBREREARRREZ
term. mBEEFR -
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the rEBESREABERARUBERERE
Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: ElD 2 BHADFAT -
Between Between Total
Less than 1 year to 210 Over undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5 years 5years  cash flows
£33
RekE
PIME  1EEF 2ESE BlSE 1]
HK$’million  HK$'million HK$'million HK$’million  HK$’million
BEET SHRET ©HRET HEET BEER
As at 31 March 2023 R-E-=%=RA=+-H
Trade payables BAENFR 13 - - - 13
Other payables, deposits received and ~ Etb B A ~ BEAGT & K
accruals &R 662 - - - 662
Bank and other borrowings and RITREMEEUAR
corresponding interests TRRERIE 1,708 24 20 - 1,752
Corporate note payables and ERTEZRRARETE
corresponding interests 463 143 - - 606
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 10 - 30
2,861 177 25 - 3,063
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. &@MREFEEEE (@
(CONTINUED)

(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) MENEE & BP% (1)
Between Between Total
Less than 1yearto 210 Over  undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5years Syears  cashflows
R
Bang

DRE AFREMF 2E5F HE@sF k]
HkSmillion ~ HK$million  HK$million ~ HK$million  HK$'million
BEET BEST BEST BEAT BEARL

As at 31 March 2022 R-E-_"_f#=RA=1+—-H
Trade payables B HENFR 6 - - - 6
Other payables, deposits received and ~ EtbE A ~ BEURGT & K

accruals FEF B 283 - - - 283
Bank and other borrowings and RITRAMEENR

corresponding interests TR E 1,809 180 14 - 2,003
Corporate note payables and ENt%ZBRARFE

corresponding interests 421 42 - - 463
Lease liabilities HEBE 13 10 8 - 3

2,532 232 22 = 2,786
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

5.

118 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(f)

Categories of financial instruments at 31 March

5.

Rk REFEREEE ()

( R=RA=t+—Hz&mIAMH

2023 2022
—=E-=F —E-F
HK$ million HK$'million
BHERET BEET
Financial assets SMEE
Financial assets at FVTOCI AAFEFEBES AT AR
PEWNGECEREE 801 41
Financial assets at FVTPL UAFEFEBEE T ABRZ
Mandatorily measured RHIFTE 415 522
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ 1ZERSHAK ANFIBR » SRV E E
Loan receivables FEUE X 145 347
Finance lease receivables BB E R GRIE 2 6
Corporate note receivables R TR 507 471
Cash and cash equivalents and REMRESZEMUR
pledged bank deposits BEEPIRITER 771 312
Trade receivables B 5B GRIE 115 149
Other receivables and deposits B FIE RET & 26 118
2,782 2,366
Financial liabilities SMAR
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EFEEHEBE ABES
TRIBE
Designated as such upon initial AR IBIEE
recognition 578 629
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1R #k 4R ATIBE - & BB &
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER 1,743 1,922
Corporate note payables ERNTERE 572 430
Trade payables B S E IR 13 6
Other payables and accruals HtENRIERETER 662 283
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 29
3,597 3,299
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

5.

FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(g) Fairvalues

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances
that caused the transfer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. AFEHHEGE
(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy: (@) 2FERIBEFHEE -
Description R
Fair value measurements using:
OFEFEER -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 March 2023 R-E_=f=A=+—H B1R BB SR et

HK$’million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$’million
BEEET BEEET BEET BEEET

Assets oE
Recurring fair value REMNTEE
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL AT ETEEHEE(L
FTABRCEREE
— Listed securities — LFhESH 290 - - 290
— Unlisted fund investment —JELEMESKE - 78 29 107
— Unlisted debt instruments —FLEMEBIAR - - 15 15
— Convertible note — WA RE
receivable - - 3 3
Financial assets at FVTOC| AT EEEEEY
AR EEREZ
~ Listed securities — &S 20 - - 20
— Private equity —EREERE
investments - - 781 781
Investment properties REMZE
— Commercial S
— United Kingdom — B - - 1,518 1,518

Total recurring fairvalue  EFMOFEFEEHE

measurements 310 18 2,346 2,734
Liabilities =L
Recurring fair value REMNTEE
measurements:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EFEEHZE
FFABRCeRARE
— Corporate note payable -ENCERE - - 578 578

Total recurring fairvalue  EFMOFEEEEHE
measurements - - 578 578
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. 2F(EE ()
(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy: (Continued) (@) 2FERBEFHREE - (7)
Description (Continued) R (1)
Fair value measurements using:
NEEFTEER :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 March 2022 R-E-_“#=RA=+—H EE FoR F3IM faEt

HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEBT BEAT BEBT BEBT

Assets gE
Recurring fair value REMNTEE
measurements:
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EEEEE(L
FTABRCEREE
— Listed securities — L mESH 275 - = 275
— Unlisted fund investment —FLETESEKE - 164 59 223
— Unlisted debt instruments —FEMEBIE - - 20 20
— Convertible note — AR RE
receivable - - 4 4
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT ETEREEEL
STAEMEERE
— Listed securities — Lm@ESH 39 - - 39
— Private equity —LERERE
investments - - 402 402
Investment properties REME
— Commercial lES
— United Kingdom — B - - 1,625 1,625

Total recurring fairvalue  EFMLAFEEEHEE

measurements 314 164 2,110 2,588
Liahilities =K
Recurring fair value REMNTEE
measurements:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EFEBEHEZE
FFABRCeRARE
— Corporate note payable -ERERE - - 629 629

Total recurring fairvalue  EFMLATFEEEHEHE
measurements = = 629 629
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. AFEHHEGE
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b)) ERFBIMZILTFEHEZEEHE -
on level 3:
Financial Financial Financial
Investment assets at assetsat liabilities at
properties FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL
UAFEMNE
DAaFEE BR&{ LAFEHE
BRE( AR BE&(
HARE2 2EK&82 HARSZ
REME EMEE EMEE eMARE
HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$’million
HRET HEET BEET BRET
As at 1 April 2022 R-E_"®#MA—AH 1,625 83 402 (629)
Acquisitions or additions WEESRE - - 487 -
Total gains or losses recognised B R Sk ES 1B 48 5R
—in profit or loss # — Rt (19) (35) - 51
—REM2EkE
—in other comprehensive income - - (108) -
Exchange alignment fE 5 S (88) (1) - -
As at 31 March 2023 R-EB_=%=F=+-H 1,518 47 781 (578)
® Include gains or losses for @ BIERREHKEES
assets/liabilities held at end of BE/BECRE
reporting period (19) (35) - 51
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

(b)

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. 2F(EE ()
Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) BREBIBBATFEIEZSEY
on level 3: (Continued) IR - (1)
Financial Financial Financial
Investment assets at assets at liabilities at
properties FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL
WATER E
WATERE BES MNWATEE
BEZ FTAEA BEZ(
AABREZ 2E%Ez  FAABRZ
REME PREE TREE cHEaRE
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BHEBT BEBT BEBT BEAT
As at 1 April 2021 R-E_—f$mA—H 1,603 19 346 (74)
Acquisitions or additions WEESRE - 329 - -
Exercise of call option 1T R R - = = 83
Total gains or losses recognised B HERU S EBESE
—in profit or loss # —Rians 85 (263) = 29
—in other comprehensive income  — A E M 2 EURES - - 56 -
Exchange alignment BEE 5 A (63) ?) - -
As at 31 March 2022 R-E_"_§=RA=1+—H 1,625 83 402 (629)
@ Include gains or losses for @ BIERREBRMBEE
assets/liabilities held at end of E/BECBE
reporting period 85 (263) - (29)

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including
those for assets/liabilities held at end of reporting period are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The total gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive
income are presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

RiBm P RERNED AR (BRENE
SHRRAFHANEE BB ERRS
REMEEKERF 25 -

REMEEPE SRR BRERE
BakEMEmRERP 2T -

I F-=EFR EREGREEEERAT 123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

—=E=A=t—HItEE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements:

The Group’s management is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements.
The management reports directly to the board of directors for these
fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the management and the board of directors
at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised professional
qualifications and recent experience to perform the valuations.

The following table gives information about how the fair value
of the Group’s investments at fair value through profit or loss is
determined.

6.

DF(ERE ()

(c)

HEFKEMERZEEEFLR
LFEIEMERZ HERT R &
ABHR

AEE Y EI2E A A A
(ERMAERBEATENE 8
EEMRATEN 2 - BEEEER
EERLRYSATHEIE - B
BREFRTFELRTMAAM
BB R SR -

MERAFEFEME - AEEB
ERERREAGERTERERA
B RaINEMEERTETRH
(=30

TRIREBMAREAEEAR
FEHEEABHABEZRE
AFEZER -

Level 2 fair value measurements FE2RAOFERTE
Description Valuation technique Inputs Fair Value
9373 & {EF: i WARE LFEHE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEAT
Financial assets at FVTPL
IR AERTE A B AT
ABRZeMEE
— Unlisted fund investment Asset-based approach  Net assets 78 164
—FLMESKRE BEEMZE BEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 6.

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements: (Continued)

DFERME ()

(c)

HESKEMERZGEEFLR
LFEFIEMERZ (H{ER RS
ABE : (1)

Level 3 fair value measurements EIMAOFERE
As at 31 March 2023 R—F—=F=H=+—H
Effect
on fair
value for
increase
of key
Description Valuation technique  Unobservable inputs  Range input Fair value
BmEA
HEHL
FEZ
iR {HERE FABRRBANE 28 X8 LFE
HK$’million
BEET
Investment properties Income-based approach  Term yield 4.75% Decrease 1,518
REMF WAE T HA A 3 o
Reversionary Yield 5.25% Decrease
Bl = Y
Financial assets at FVTPL
AT EGERHEB LT ABRZ
EREE
— Unlisted debt instruments Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 11.5% Decrease 15
—FrmEKIA BRFLRE BEIRE o
— Convertible note receivable Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 26.00% Decrease 3
— AT HRIR R MRFERE BEIRE o
— Unlisted fund investment Asset-based approach ~ Marketability Discount 15.7% Decrease 29
—JELmESKRE BEEME TR TR ey
Minority Discount 30% Decrease
DERESE ey
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. AFEHHEGE
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used hy the Group (c) HEFKEFEAZHEEFUR

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value AFEERER G ER TR S

126 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

measurements: (Continued) ABE - (18)
Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued) EIMOFEHRE (18)

As at 31 March 2023 (Continued)

R-CE_=F=HA=+—H#&E

Effect
on fair
value for
increase
of key
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs  Range input Fair value
BmEA
BigH o
FEZ
iR {HERE FaARBABE 28 xE LFEE
HK$’million
BEET
Financial assets at FVTOCI
AATFERtE RS AR S
Hkzms eREE
— Goodwill International Holdings Limited ~ Asset-based Approach ~ Marketability Discount
(“Goodwill International”) 15.7% Decrease 3
BERR BT E o
— Goodwill International Holdings Limited Minority Discount 30% Decrease
(“Goodwill International”) DERIEYTE o
— Co-Lead Holdings Limited Asset-based Approach  Marketability Discount 15.7% Decrease 15
BEEWE TR Y
Minority Discount 30% Decrease
DEPRAE TR L
— Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited ~ Market-based Approach  Price to book 1.18 Increase 287
—ERERERRAR] RS AR 12
Marketability Discount 15.7% Decrease
BT Y
— Tonsin Petrochemical Investment Limited ~ Asset-based approach  Minority discount 16.81% Decrease Ly
—RNAEXRERRAR] BEEME DERETE ny
— China Pearl Global Limited Asset-based approach ~ Minority discount 16.00% Decrease 425
— R RARRHARAT BEEME DERAETTE ny
— Empire Victory Hong Kong Limited Asset-based approach ~ Minority discount 16.81% Decrease 10
—HEBEFERRAT BEEME DE RIS E ny
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
AT EtE B R AR
TREE
— Corporate note payable Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 12.22% - Decrease 578
12.44%
—ERNEERE MIRRERE BRI E b 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. AFEEHEGFE
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c) EEFEKEMEAZEHERFUR
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value AFEMEMERAZEERTRE
measurements: (Continued) ABE - (1)
Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued) EIMOFEHE(18)
As at 31 March 2022 R—F - —F=H=+—H
Effect
on fair
value for
increase
of key
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range input Fair value
12 hnga A
BRE A
FEZ
AR (LS TRAIBRHAME #HE g2 NS
HK$'million
BEAT
Investment properties Income-based approach  Term yield 55%  Decrease 1,625
REME WAE T HAL A 3 V8
Reversionary Yield 6%  Decrease
ER = Ve
Financial assets at FVTPL
ARFEFEAEBEGA
BazemEE
— Unlisted debt instruments Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 11.50%  Decrease 20
—FEMEKIA MRRERE BRI E G
— Gonvertible note receivable Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 21.00%  Decrease 4
— AT IR R MIRRERE BRI % D
— Unlisted fund investment Asset-based approach  Marketability discount 15.8%  Decrease 59
—JELmESKRE BEEME TR D
Minority discount 23.8%  Decrease
DERRHETT R D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements: (Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022 (Continued)

6. XF{ETE(HE)

(c)

HEFKEMERZEEEFLR
LFERIEMERZ HERT RS
ABE : (1)

MO FEEHE (W)

R—E-——F=H=+—H#E

Effect
on fair
value for
increase
of key
Description Valuation technique Unabservable inputs Range input Fair value
IIEUN
L6 SN
FEZ
AR fh{E M TAIBEB AR #E P2 NS
HK$'million
BEBTL
Financial assets at FVTOCI
URATHEFERRER Lt ARMMEE
Wz emERE
— Goodwill International Income-based Approach  Marketability discount 15.8%  Decrease 5
Holdings Limited WAE BT A
— Goodwill International Discount rate 15.92%  Decrease
Holdings Limited BRI X D
— Co-Lead Holdings Limited Asset-based approach ~ Marketability discount 15.80%  Decrease 24
— Co-Lead Holdings Limited BEEM BT A
Minority discount 23.84%  Decrease
DYRETE D
— Quan Yu Tai Investment Market-based approach  Price to book 125  Increase 373
Company Limited mimE MR 0
—EMEREBRAA] Marketability discount 15.8%  Decrease
TN TR D
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
URTHEEREB (Lt ABRZ®
BMEE
— Corporate note payable Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 8.7%-9.8%  Decrease 629
—EREERE MRRERE BRI & D

During the two years, there were no changes in the valuation

techniques used except valuation technique for Goodwil

International was changed from income-based approach to asset

REZMEE » B 7 Goodwill International 91

I BT E Goodwill International 9 IE B 2 245

-based approach due the projects of Goodwill International was =2

ended during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—Z—

1.

=FZA=1+—HLFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Description of segments and principal activities

The Group has identified six reportable segments of its business:

(1)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

Rental and sale of construction machinery and spare parts
business: The Group offers crawler cranes of different
sizes, other mobile cranes, aerial platforms and foundation
equipment in its construction machinery rental fleet in Hong
Kong. The Group also sells construction machinery and
spare parts in Hong Kong and Macau.

Provision of repair and maintenance and transportation
service business: The Group provides repair and
maintenance service for construction machinery, in
particular the crawler cranes, in Hong Kong. The Group
also provides transportation services which include local
container delivery, construction site delivery and heavy
machinery transport in Hong Kong.

Money lending business: The Group holds money lending
licenses and offers mortgaged loan and personal loan
businesses in Hong Kong.

Provision of asset management, securities brokerage and
other financial service business: The Group holds Securities
and Future Commission licenses for conducting type 1
(dealing in securities), type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and provides a wide range
of financial services in Hong Kong.

Property leasing business: The Group holds a commercial
property in London, the United Kingdom (the “UK"), for
leasing.

Property development business: The Group holds properties
under development in Malaysia through a subsidiary and in
Cambodia through an associate.

Segment profit or loss

The segment profit or loss for the reportable segments provided
0 the chief operating decision maker and reconciliation to loss
before taxation for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as
follows:

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

e Y

1.

A B 5 E F

(a) HBREBZWIMN
FEMERE LB RN BT 2R
P

(b)

() RN ERTHEE M
EX%  AKBEETNZBBR
SEHWHEE R RME TR B
RNhzBEwmHE - HRsm
# TR TS RIOERE o
REBNMAEREMRFIHER
SN ERTN -

(i) IREHERREASERRE
27 REBREBEEK
WCERBE D) IREEE
MRERY - AEBEIRRES
RIEEHRE - EPEELR
EEER  EEMBERNE
R A B gy o

(iii) WE%% AEBFHEHRER
C WIERBREIZIBER R

ﬂA%ﬁ%ﬁ
(v REEEER  FHELIHE
m%ﬂ%ﬁ%% AEERH
%&%“%% RZBaR
Tm%m%&%fﬁﬂ

17%1*5( BEAER ) - BAEGE

BEREER)RFIBERMEE
Fﬁﬁ&ﬁaé@ WERD
R 2B RR o

(v) PEEEXR: AEBRERE
([RED®BETHE —ERmAY
XEHERE -

Vi) MEBRER: AKEBEB—
BN RS R 5 A %
BFEME BB —RBER
AERBRFAERTYE -

SRR

BE_ZE_—FRK-_"FT-_—"F=H4
=+—HLFE RETFEZELE
RRANBREAI 2R D 2o 3F1ER
FRTRRTE BRI T ¢

SHEME REANESERE=
FR5ZER  EEBRTHRE
GES R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBmRME
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDEEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment profit or loss (Continued) (b) SEBIRR (18)
2023
~BIzE
Provision
of asset
Rental and  Provision of management,
saleof  repairand securities
construction  maintenance brokerage
machinery and and other
and spare transportation Money financial ~ Property  Property
parts service lending  services easing development Total
RitRE
BEGHR RUEKER EE.
EESHER  REUR BHELR
R¥E  EBEH BE EtemEE WEER  WREE #it
FRET EAET BAET BRET BRET  BEET  BRET
HKS million KRS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million KRS million ~ HKS million  HKS million
Segment revenue FBEA
External revenue SRIA 25 § 14 10 55 - 32
Seqment results before the ollowing flems: B DA TR IBRI 2 D £ 10 9 2 10 30 - 140
- Depreciation and amortisaton ~-HEREH (38) - - - - - (38)
~Reversal of impairment osses: - HEEEED :
- intangible assets -BYEE 13 - - - - - 13
~financial asses (expected credit losses)  — 2 BEE (BHEEEE) 5 - 17 4 - - 2%
- Interest income ~HMEBA - - - 1 - - 1
-~ Finance costs ~BARNA (3) - (1) - (24) - (26)
Seqment resulls AH%E 4 9 3 15 i - 114
Unallocated: AOR:
- (ther income ~EfhA 36
- Fairvalue losses - AT ERE (31)
~ Other gains - Efthg 56
— Administrative expenses ~TBEx (84)
~Reversal of impaiment osses of financial — 2R EE(BEEESE)
assets (ewpected credt osses) HEBRRE g
— Share-based payment expenses —MJM PR (3)
— Share of results of associates MEBENARE (131)
— Share of results of joint ventures MERELERE (18)
~ Finance coss —mﬁﬁm (101)
Loss befoe taxaion REER (213)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment profit or loss (Continued)

1. WARSEBEH (R

(b) SEBAR ()

2022
—EICE
Provision
of asset
management,
Provision of securities
Tepair and brokerage,
Rentaland sale  maintenance commoditis,
0f construction an futures and
machinery and ~ transportation other financial Property
spare parts service Mongy lending services Property leasing  development Total
REEE
BE-
R
RERRL RUEER m-
BRSHE RENRE BE R
EREE  BRE WE  cRERE  NEHE NEER ECH)
BEAT BEET EEET BEAT  BEET  BEAT  BERT
mSmillon— HSmillon — AkSmillon— HKSmillon - AKSmilion - KSmillion kS milion
Segment revenue ABRA
Extemal revenue SRIA m 10 4 18 7 - 315
Seqment results before the ollowing flems:  HBR DA T & BRI 29 BEE - il 5 2 1 14 - 1
- Depreciation and amortisation -FEREH (50) - - - - - (50)
~ Reversal/(provisional) of impairment
losses: -REEERR/ (B) :
~ property, plant and equipment -0% - BRRRE 2 - - - - - 2
- intangible assels -BlVEE 2 - - - - - 2
~ financial assets (expected creditlosses) -~ £ BEE (BHEEER) Ui - 6 () 1 - ()
- Finance costs ~BARA () - (1) - 21) - (%)
Seqment results PHEE 2 5 3 [l 116 - 164
Unallocated: AAR:
- Other income ~EflA )
- Fairvalue losses -RTERE (41)
~ Other gains - Eftilz %
~ Administative expenses G (90)
~Reversal of impairment osses: -WEFRAD -
~financial assets (expected creditlosses)  — S REE BHEEHE) 11
- Share-based payment expenses ~DRGHRAAREL (7)
— Share of results of asociates LN S (44)
- Share of results ofjoint ventures -MERELERE (30)
-~ Finance costs ~BERE (126)
Loss before tarafion RHAER (355)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDEEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Geographical information (c) HEBEHE
The geographical information about the Group’s revenue from RSB BN R AFEA (R
external customers by location of operations and the non-current KA B D) ARIEREBEE (2R
assets other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets in TARIN REEFHIBEE(BEER
which the assets are physically located is detailed below: FIiE) 2 @ E R FFl T -
Revenue Non-current assets (note)
KA JERENEE (P &)
For the year ended 31 March As at 31 March
HE=A=1+—HL=%EE R=A=+—H
2023 2022 2023 2022

—EI=E o ZEBI=HE —_E-—F
HK$’million HK$'million  HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEET BSET BEET

Hong Kong BB 256 243 433 449
UK W 55 4l 1,540 1,625
The People’s Republic of HREE A RHME
China (the “PRC") ([RELD) = = 5 261
Macau JBPY 1 1 - -
Cambodia RIFEE - - 1,127 1127
312 315 3,105 3,462
Note: P 3E -
Non-current assets excluded financial assets at FVTOCI, loan ERHEETBEIAANTEAE B HEE
receivables, financial lease receivables, deferred tax assets, pledged L AEMEZEKRE SRIEE - BIR
bank deposits, corporate note receivables and financial assets included EX mERERWEIE  ELTHEE
in other receivables and deposits. E - BEARTER  BREEZRERIN
Rt AEMERRERTE2E/ME
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. MARSEBEH (18)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Information about major customers (d) RAREEERZEH
There is no external customer over 10% of the total revenue of the W L AR E E AU AR E10% .2 MR
Group. - S
e
(e) Revenue summary (e) AR
2023 2022
ZBZ= S
HK$'million HKSmillion
HRET BEAT
Revenue from contracts with customers (natg} — REAKIZMA ML)
— Sale of construction machinery and spare pars  — W R ERTHHE 65 49
— Repair and maintenance and transportation —EERREUES R
service income 8 10
— Commission income generated from asset -BEBE BAERE Bwh BHER
management, securities brokerage, HemREEEs 2 BElA
commodities, futures and other financial
Services b 9
19 68
Revenue from other sources: Hi R 2 A -
— Rental income generated from construction —RERREL 7SI
machinery 160 128
— Rental income generated from leasing of investment  —FE &% A MEES v BE WA
properties 99 n
~ Interest income generated from money lending ~ —MEELZFIBYA 14 41
~ Interest income generated from margin financing  —RESBEEL 2 FIBYA 4 7
233 U7
312 315
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSEBEH (18)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Revenue summary (Continued) (e) MW ABIE(18)
Note: &
Disaggregated revenue from contract with customers FHREREHIBA

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B ECCF == —HIFFE

134 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Provision of

Sale of repair and
construction maintenance and
machinery and  transportation

Provision

of asset
management,
securities
brokerage and
other financial

spare parts service services Total
REZFETE -
BREER REHERGEE BSFELREM
RASHHE LRIGERE SRR #Et
HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million HK$’million
BEET BEET BEET HEET
Sale of construction machinery — Z2 S I
and spare parts BRTHHEE 65 - - 65
Repair and maintenance and #E RIRE I KB R
transportation service income BUA - 8 - 8
Commission income generated ~ EEERE - BHLELK
from asset management, Hit epRBEE
securities brokerage and other ZREHA
financial services - - ] ]
65 8 6 79
Timing of revenue recognition YR A FEFRAS
At a point in time AT — B 81 2 65 - 6 !
Over time I B i - 8 - 8
Total et 65 8 6 79
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDEBEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Revenue summary (Continued) (e) MWr ABEE(18)
Note: (Continued) PisE - ()
Disaggregated revenue from contract with customers SIHERSHIWA (18)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 He—F - —F=H=+—HIFFE
Provision of asset
management,
securities brokerage,

Sale of construction  Provision of repair - commodities, futures

machinery and spare - and maintenance and  and other financial
parts transportation service services Total

REBEER -

b o]

BEMEE RESERERE @ HERAM

BRATHEE  RERRE SRRS Bt
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Sale of construction machinery and 2 SEHH%,
spare parts ERTHEE 49 - - 49
Repair and maintenance and BERREARERR
fransportation service income B - 10 - 10
Commission income generaed from BEEE « FHLL -
asset management, securities Bm- BERAMS
brokerage, commodities, futures  BRERISEA
and other financial services EELON - - 9 9
49 10 9 68
Timing of revenue recognition W \HE R ]
Ata point in time RE— R 49 - 9 58
Over time BERS - 10 - 10
Total st 49 10 9 68
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HMtkA
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-CF
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEBTL
Interest earned on: FUAT S BRI FIE
— corporate note receivables — R EEE 28 19
— bank deposits —iRITER 2 2
Government grant BT BN 1 1
Rental income HEUWA 5 3
Compensation received for termination 4% IEFA%) 2 HES
of a lease 6 =
Others Hih 7 3
49 28
9. OTHER GAINS, NET 9. Hks2HE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-CF
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Extinguishment gain on early principal 2 F & Bl B AT AR ZRIE A€ 2
redemption of convertible note EEW S (i 7Fa)
payables (note a) - 9
Foreign exchange gain AP UK 2 1 14
Gain on disposal of property, plantand & « BE K& HE 2 W
equipment
Gain on disposal of associates HERE N R Z W 1 —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERNB ARz s 1 =
Gain on early settlement of a corporate  +& Al il [o] FE < 1 2 & 2 W &%
note payable (note 35) (Pff5E35) 54 -
63 24

Note: BsE -

(@)  The Group has consideration receivables of HK$16 million secured (a) AEEFIAESBTZEMUFRIBETIA
by convertible note payables issued by the Company with principal A RIVEEBTZAIBRRERER
amount of HK$30 million (the “CB”). During the year ended 31 March HeoBE_TE-_—_F=A=+—HIF
2022, the debtor of other receivables defaulted and the Group seized B EthERGHRIEZHEBAZELD - A
the CB and extinguishment gain on early principal redemption of SERELERIA B SRR EE AR
convertible note payables of HK$9 million was recognised accordingly. BEEAE 2 EEWRE

136 Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BT E
2023 2022
—E=E-=F —E-F
HK$ million HK$'million
BHERET BEAL
Interest expenses arising from: N TEIEZHNERAX
— bank and other borrowings —RITRHEMEE 99 97
— corporate note payables —ERTEEE 40 55
— convertible note payables — AT R R - 1
— |ease liabilities —HEHE 1 1
Exchange difference on borrowings BECIERZRE (11) 5
129 159
11. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 11. FRIRAEIR
This is stated at after charging/(crediting) the following: BT, GEA AT RIRFH -
2023 2022
= =3 T4
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BEAT
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET NS 2 2
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKRA 58 44
Depreciation of: e -
— property, plant and equipment —M%E - BEREE 40 57
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 12 11
Direct operating expenses from WEMEMEEZ BEERLEERY
investment properties 36 40
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BE&BHEEER 2K
plant and equipment = (6) (1)
Staff costs (including director's BIRA(BREESEME) :
remuneration):
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances — %% - TEALRORRL 90 97
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIRREAIFT IR
contributions 2 2
— Share based payments — AR FE T 3R 3 7
95 106
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12. EEREETHRARZEI &R
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS #
(a) The emoluments of each director are as follows: (a) FEEFZEBELMT :
2023
ZEZCF

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Share-based
Fees inkind contributions payments Total
e Bl BRWER BB {n
ne REWET HBER EAGR it
Notes HK$’'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$’million
fist EEET HEET BHE#ET BHEET HEET

Executive directors BiTES
Xu Haiying TEE - 0.6 - - 0.6
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. BEsEt ATt - 0.6 - - 0.6
Fok Chi Tak EEE - 4.8 - 1.3 6.1
- 6.0 - 1.3 1.3
Independent non-executive  BWIJEHITES
directors
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan Prép st 0.2 - - - 0.2
Mak Yiu Tong R () 0.2 - - - 0.2
Lam Kwan Sing MEH 0.2 - - - 0.2
0.6 - - - 0.6
Senior consultant EiRERN
Ms. Li Shao Yu FhEh+ (i £ 13.2 £ . 13.2
Total st 0.6 19.2 - 1.3 21.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12. EERFETRARBZHERTE
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (CONTINUED) F (48)
(a) The emoluments of each director are as follows: (a) HFEFZEBILWMT - (@)
(Continued)
2022
—E-CF
Salaries,  Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees inkind  contributions payments Total
e 2l RIKER PARB (7
we REDEHN FEHR PAAK @&t
Notes  HK$million ~ HK$million ~ HK§million ~ HK$million  HK$million
st BE%AT BEAT BEAT BEAT BAEAR
Executive directors RTES
Xu Haiying TBE - 06 - - 06
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. BEsET ATt - 06 - - 06
Fok Chi Tak ExE = 46 - 3.2 78
8 58 g 32 90
Non-executive directors FBTES
Li Yao 512 i) - 01 - - 01
Wang Yu IF (iv) - 03 - - 03
: 04 = = 04
Independent non-executive
directors BIBTES
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan BRénsk 02 - - - 02
Mak Yiu Tong BRR (i) 0.1 - - - 0.1
Lam Kwan Sing MEH 02 - - - 02
Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua FRE (v) 0.1 - - - 0.1
06 . & d 06
Senior consultant EiREM
Ms. Li Shao Yu )it (i - 127 - - 127
Total @it 06 189 - 32 27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 12. EEREETHARZE &R
EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (CONTINUED) F(#8)
(a) The emoluments of each director are as follows: (a) BFEFZEILWMT - ()

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) Mak Yiu Tong was appointed as an independent non- executive
director on 12 July 2021.

(i) Ms. Li Shao Yu is a controlling shareholder of the Company.

(iii)  Li Yao resigned as a non-executive director on 30 June 2021.

(iv)  Wang Yu resigned as a non-executive director on 15 October
2021.

(v)  Lee ChiHwa Joshua resigned as an independent non- executive
director on 12 July 2021.

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b)

0Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2022: one) was the director of the Company and one (2022:
one) was the senior consultant of the Company, whose emoluments
are included in the disclosure set out in Note 12(a). The emolument
of the highest paid individual except directors and senior consultant
is as follows:

Bt

() ZEBERBRER-_Z-_—F+A+=H
EREABIIENTES -

(i) FLFRLERRRANERER -

(i) ZTRR-_E-——E~A=+HE
EIERITES -

vy EFW-_BE-_—+A+HBE
EIERNITES -

v ZFEER-_T-_—FtA+=H
BB IFHITES o

AEFMREZENET

EAEEFNEa2AZ@ERE T
BER . —R(CEZF: —R)AK
NAEE  Z—H(ZE==—F : —
B)EBANREAER  HMeE®
FEEA T2 FTIREER - hE
EREHRERI - HFi & 2 @R
BT :

2023 2022

—E-= —E-CF

HK$’million HK$'million

BEET BEAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind & « 2B R EYWEF] 3 4
Share-based payment AR AT 1 1
4 5
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REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’

13.

EMOLUMENTS AND BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

I (#8)

12. EERFRTHARZHME KIS

(b) EEFHESZMENETI )

M THIER

2023 2022

—E-=E —E- 4

HK$’ million HK$'million

BEAET BEET

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7t—1,500,0007% 7t 3 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,0015% 7t—2,000,0007% 7t - 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017% 712,500,000 7T - 1
3 3

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the directors of the Company or five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2022: nil). There was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: nil).

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

BE_Z-_=F=A=+—BI*F
B AEEYERAQRESEHA
EFEMEE 2 ERNE T NME
EB AR EE R AR 2 5B %
BBEECE_—F 8  -HE—
TE_—FZAZ+—HILEE - #&
BEEENERREREZETAHE 2
TH(CTZZF : &) -

13. FAIRIRGER) BAX

2023 2022
== —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BEAT
Current income tax BNERFT1S T
— Current year —REE
—Hong Kong —B8 9 2
- UK — - 6
— Over-provision in prior years —BEFEBREEE (4) (6)
5 2
Deferred tax (note 26) BT PSR (B 5E26)
— Current year —REE (10) 39
(5) 41
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REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 13. FRSR(ESR) BAX (1)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of loss REBERAEHRAIBES R 2BHEBEE R
before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows: FRBEBNENNEELECEREE 1B
AN -
2023 2022
—EZ= TE-F
HK$’million HK$'million
HEET BEATL
Loss before income tax BRATISTAIE B (213) (599)
Less: Share of results of associates B MBS ATEER 131 44
Share of results of joint ventures MEBRELEER 78 30
(4) (481)
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2022: RI65%HEF R (S5 -
16.5%) 16.5%) (1) (79)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries Hip R A ERMNBARRETR &
operating in other jurisdictions = (1) 6
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes THHBAX 30 115
Income not subject to tax BEFHUA (30) (9)
Tax loss for which no deferred income tax ABRELFEN B L HBER
amount was recognised 3 15
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax BRI AER 2 BIEEE
losses (2) 1
Over-provision in prior years BEFERERE (4) (6)
Income tax (credit)/expense Frisf (%) A () 41
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 8.25% on the estimated HEFTERNENEZ28E8BTME -
assessable profit up to HK$2 million and 16.5% on any part of estimated BEMNEBRMEF RS ILTH E8.25% 5T
assessable profit over HK$2 million for both years. Taxation arising in B RASERNENEE2eEE T
other jurisdiction are calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant oME  BIIE165%TE - Efb Rl AR
jurisdictions. FREAZ BB B @R AR 2 RITH X
UK Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 19% (2022: 19%) on the RBEMEHZGFERTEN9%(ZF
estimated assessable profit. ToF 9% R E o
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REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic loss per share was calculated by dividing the loss for the year
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average

14. BIREGIA
(a) E=F
BEREAEBEARAEZEEA

A5 4 OB 1R R DS O E B T
B EFIBGHE -

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted

2023 2022
—E_=f B F
Loss for the year attributable to the owners ANA Bz 15 A ATE(RF R EE
of the Company (HK$'million) (BEHBT) (264) (370)
Weighted average number of ordinary BT S AR 2 Nk 8
shares in issue (million shares) (B8R 7,318 7,203
Basic loss per share (HK cents) BRREAREE B (3.61) (5.14)
(b) #F
Notes 2023 2022
LhEs —BZ= —ECCF
Adjusted loss for the year RAUEESREEEE 2 ART
attributable to owners of the BB AEEFALHEER
Company used to determine the (B & 7T)
diluted loss per share
(HK$' million) (i) (264) (413)
Weighted average number of BEITE @R 2 T
ordinary shares in issue (BER)
(million shares) (if) 7,318 7,439
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) A& #& 518 (&) (3.61) (5.55)
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 14. BERESIE (18)
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) % (4

Notes: PisE -

(i) Adjusted loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company () FAUNErTESRBEEBEZARNR
used to determine the diluted loss per share is calculated as BEARMFEREAREE 2
follows: =RONNE

2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$’million HK$'million
BHE#ET BEBIT
Loss for the year attributable to the ~ ANA &R A JE(HF A& 18
owners of the Company (264) (370)
Adjustments for: BAT B IHFE -
— Assumed exercise of call option — B RATE R A = (35)
— Assumed conversion of convertible  — B2 38 i, #2 fE{~ AT #R AR 2= 4%
note payables = (8)
Adjusted loss for the year attributable FAAZE E SR EEIBE 2 N ARIEE
to owners of the Company used to ANERFREAZERE
determine the diluted loss per share (264) (413)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose (i) BE %ﬁﬁﬁ%&\%)ﬁﬂéz TR

of diluted loss per share is calculated as follows: IMEFHEZFTERNT -
2023 2022
—E-= —F- =
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEET
Weighted average number of ordinary FIAGT E SRR EAEIE 2 L@
shares for the purpose of basic loss  flfEF9#
per share 7,318 7,203
Adjustment for: KA BIERAE
— Assumed exercise of call option —BRRATE R B = 181
— Assumed conversion of convertible  — B &% 3 FE 1S AT R AR = 4R
note payables - 55
Weighted average number of ordinary FhatE SR E S E 18 2 L @A %
shares for the purpose of HE
diluted loss per share 7,318 7,439
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. B2
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year HE_ZT-_=ZF=ZA=Z=+—HILFER
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil). AR EENKEREMRE(ZE=Z
F:m)e
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BEREH
Furniture,
Leasehold land Leasehold ~fixtures and
and buildings  improvements equipment Artworks Motor vehicles  Machinery Yacht Total
ARLHR fifl

B HENREE RERER Bfn RE #i i1 b
HKS million HK$ million HiSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilon — HKSmillon — HKSmilon — HKSmillion
BEAT BEAT BEET BEEL  AEET  BERT AEAn BEER

Cost BF
Asat1 April 2021 RZE--FmA-H il 1 1 19 3 3N K] 7
Additions ME 2 1 = = = 5 - 5
Trnster fromright-of-use assets.  BBERREEE = - - - - 1 - 1
Disposa i3 - - - - - (19) - (19
s at 31 March 2022 and RZEZZF=H
1 Apil 2022 =t-Bk

RZB--%

mA-H 2 16 1 19 3 40 15 569
Additions AE A - - - - 2 - 53
Disposa & (1) - - - - (83) - (44)
Transfer from right-of-use assets. BB ERREEE - - - - 1 4 - 5
Bxchange alignment B A - - - = - (1) - (1)
As at 31 Merch 2023 R-B-=4=R

St LA 16 1 19 4 409 1 582
Accumulated depreciation and BiHHFERHE

impairment

Asat 1 April 2021 RZB-—%FNA-H 2 12 5 - - il 5 5
Charge for the year ik - 1 1 - - 5 2 o
Reversalof impairment FEEE - - - - - Q - 2
Transfer fromright-of-use assets. BB S FREAE = - - - - 3 - 3
Disposal i - - - - - @ - ]
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REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

—=E=A=t—HItEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. W3 - B R Ex i (48)

(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
Leasehold land Leasehold ~fixtures and
and buildings ~ improvements  equipment  Artworks Motor vehicles  Machinery Yacht Total
BELHR fifl
BF BEWERE RERRG &g RE 1] i it
HK§ million Hk$ million Hkmilion — HKSmilion — HKSmilion — HKSmilion — HKSmilion — HKSmillion
BEST  BEAT  BEET  BEAT BEAT BERT EERT BEMR
As at 31 March 2022 and S Sy
1 April 2022 =t+-BEk
i
mA-A Al 13 b - - 23 5 35
Charge for the year ik 1 1 1 - - 3% 2 40
Transfer fromight-ofuse assels.  BRE FRELE - = = = = 1 = 1
Disposd e (1) = = - - (26) - 27
Bxchange lignment ErE - - - - = (1) - (1)
Aot 31 March 2023 RZEZ=§=H
=t+-H 4l 14 1 - - 232 54 328
Carrying amount REE
As at 31 March 2023 i
=1-A Bi| 2 - 19 4 11 Al 254
Asat 31 March 2022 s
=+-H 8 3 1 19 3 197 PA] 54
Notes: BT 5T -
(i) Non-current assets pledged as security (i) BEMERDEEIEREIR

(i)
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As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$125 million (2022: HK$114 million)
was pledged to secure borrowings.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
property, plant and equipment in 2022 as a result of the change of the
markets of the Group’s products and services. These assets are used in
the Group’s rental and sale of construction machinery and spare parts
segment and certain assets are corporate assets. The reviews led to
the recognition of a reversal of impairment loss of HK$2 million, that
has been recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the
relevant assets of HK$212 million has been determined on the basis
of value in use using discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair value
measurements).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

17. LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. HERERHESEE

2023 2022
—E_-= —EBE-F
HK$’million HK$'million
HEET BEETT

Right-of-use assets FREEE
— Offices NS 8 13
— Warehouses —BE 19 12
— Machinery — HEAR - 3
— Motor vehicles —RE - 1
27 29
Lease commitments of short-term leases RHE o HEAE - 1

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the Group's BERUMRBASREBETASEHREGR

lease liabilities is as follows: ZEBIERAITT
2023 2022
—E-= T4
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
— Less than 1 year —LEF 15 13
— Between 1 and 2 years —-1324F 10 10
— Between 2 and 5 years —-2%&5F 5 8
30 31

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ~ {FFAEEETE

— Offices VN 5 6
— Warehouses —RE 7 4
— Motor vehicles — &= - 1
12 11
Lease interests HEF S 1 1
Expenses related to short-term leases HRHAEEAA A 4 2
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R TR 19 17
Additions to right-of-use assets RNEFRAEEE 11 14

AEEERSBRAE  BFE - RS
B HEAHN REREERMEF (T
— —F AESF)FIN - ERFIRERER
BRER - BE SRR G RIEMT -
HEwHR T SENEARE  MHEHEEE
TEREEEER -

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, machinery and motor
vehicles. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 6
years (2022: 1 to 5 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRERM T
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. |REWME
2023 2022
—=E-=F —E-F
HK$ million HK$'million
BRET BEBTT
At beginning of year F9] 1,625 1,603
Fair value gains N ERE (19) 85
Exchange differences MEHZR (88) (63)
End of the year FR 1,518 1,625
Notes: MTEE .
(@) Investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2023 and 2022 on (a) BEVER-_ZT_=FR-_FT-_—F=

the open market value basis by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties by Roma Appraisals Limited, an
independent firm of chartered surveyors.

The Group leases out its investment properties under operating leases.
The lease terms range from 5 to 99 years (2022: 6 to 99 years). All
leases are on a fixed rental basis and do not include variable lease
payments.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of investment properties
of approximately HK$1,518 million (2022: HK$1,625 million) was
pledged to secure borrowings.

The Group’s future undiscounted lease payments under operating
leases are receivable as follows:

A=t BHBIEXREMESHEEK
HEERARSZRUNE LSRG
MISEERAFAMSEEREESR -

FERREEEEENRERENE -
BB FH N FEF (B4 : 65
99%) - AR OREFASLE T
EARAEMK -

RIE-_=F=A=+—H  REHEY
B1518EEBT(ZE-—F : 16258
BRI 2 REMEBIKFERER -

AEBRNEEHEE THARICKRIREE
TIPS 51 ERFE R

2023 2022

—E-=F =EE— ks

HK$’million HK$'million

BEERT BEET

Less than 1 year LIME 55 62
Between 1 and 2 years 1226 58 62
Between 2 and 3 years 25 3F 56 62
Between 3 and 4 years 3E4F 52 62
Between 4 and 5 years 4ZB5F 18 51
QOver 5 years HBIBSF 2 21
24 320
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRERM T
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE
19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. | EE
Securities
brokerage Customer
Goodwill ~ Brand name licenses list Total
i} REER BHELME 0 ZREE &t
HK§ million HK§ million HK§ million Hk$ million Hk$ million
BEAL  BEET  BEEAT  BERR BEAT
Nots (3] Nots (o) Nots (3]
L) Fitb) HiE(a)
Cost BE
Asat 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, R-E--¥MWA-B-
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 “EoCESAET-R
“ECCEMA-RAR
“2-=F=A=1-H 45 167 4 8 594
Accumulated amortisation and impairment FHERREE
Asat 1 April 2021 R=F_—FNA—H i1 1 - § 438
Reversal ofimpairment RERE - @ - - @
s at 31 March 2022 and R-E-—F=A=+-Hk
1 April 2022 "B "FNA-H 415 13 - 8 436
Reversalofimpaiment RERE = (13) - - (13)
As at 31 March 2023 sy gl 415 - - 8 123
Cartying amount EEE
As at 31 March 2023 R-E-=%=A=1-H - 167 4 - il
Ao at 31 March 2022 j s I gl - 194 4 - 138
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REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

19.

150 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

—=E=A=t—HItEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

Brand name and customer list

The amount arose on the acquisitions of crawler crane business in
HTICI in February 2017.

The Group’s brand name of HK$167 million (2022: HK$154 million)
at 31 March 2023 is assessed as having indefinite useful life because
there is no time limit that the Group can use the brand name.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
intangible assets in 2023 and 2022 as a result of the change of the
markets of the Group’s products and services. These assets are used
in the Group’s rental and sale of construction machinery and spare
parts segment. The reviews led to the recognition of a reversal of
impairment loss of HK$13 million (2022: reversal of impairment
loss of HK$2 million), that has been recognised in profit or loss. The
recoverable amount of the relevant assets of HK$167 million (2022:
HK$154 million) has been determined on the basis of value in use using
discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair value measurements).

The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin
and revenue during the period. The Group estimates discount rates
of 11% (2022: 11%) using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The growth rates are based on long-term average economic
growth rate of the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on past
practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five years with
the residual period using the growth rate of 2.5% (2022: 2.5%). This
rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets.
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GEX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(b)

(Continued)
Securities brokerage licenses

The amount arose on the acquisitions of Hao Tian International
Securities Limited (“HTIS”) in February 2017.

The Group’s securities brokerage licenses of HK$4 million (2022:
HK$4 million) at 31 March 2023 is assessed as having indefinite
useful life because th Group can renew the securities brokerage license
without substantial costs.

The recoverable amount of HTIS has been determined based on a value
in use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period with a pre-tax discount rate of 17% (2022: 17%). Cash flow
after the five-year period are extrapolated at 3% (2022: 3%) growth
rate. Another key assumption for the value in use calculation is the
budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is determined based on the
unit’s past performance and management’s expectations for the market
development.

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. | RE ()

B
(0

(&)
EHRARLIER

ZeEE T+t F - AREEXBR
EFERAB(EXRERRESDESE °

AEER-_ZT-_=F=A=+—HHK
ZEFREEBREERIBEAET(CE
——F4REETTCHERRERA
ERAEH  ERARAKEATERARFK
A2 R BR i B ZR A L KRR AR

SRBIRE S 2 e & B IREE S
BEFEET - X EEAAEIEE
B AFRUBRERERIASRE
TR - RATAEIRE BTN (ZE - —F
17%) - AFHPR 2B RBIAI%(ZF
TCF 3R BRERYE - HAEE
AEZS—EERBERAEERARE
ME - IRIBEEG 2BERRNEEE
HMISRRIPLEETE -

20 RBELFZHEE

2023 2022
—E-=E —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEAT
Unlisted investments: JELEMIRE
Share of net assets DGEEFE 1,130 1,308
Notes: BT -
(@)  Associates material to the Group () HAREMEBERZBELR
(i) Set out below are the associates which, in the opinion of the (i) g%%ﬁ_‘]%ifﬂ zi%éii
directors, are material to the Group as at 31 March 2023 and o ﬂjﬁ;%i% A ZM/_\ﬂ#: sy
2022. These associates are accounted for in the consolidated ;fﬁﬂ w Gl *Zii)?‘;/*\ E;f
financial statements using the equity method. The summarised %?:é; % NEE © Eﬁ;éﬂﬂggﬂ
financial information presented is based on the HKFRS financial 1S T3 ) Hﬁ%%’é A % 18 ?E%M%\i% Bt 7
statements of the associates. 5 2 O Bl 45 B > B IS R £ ﬁﬁ 2
3l
Place of % of
Name of entity establishment ownership interest Principal activity
HEaE X 3L 25 FRARESAES L ETEXH
2023 2022
—=E-= =ER===
CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd (“CESIZ") Cambodia 22% 22% Property development
CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd([CESIZ]) EE S YRR

== = hE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

—=E=A=t—HItEE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

152 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Associates material to the Group (Continued)

(i)

20 MBELFIZER(E)

BsE - (8

(a)

HAKEMSBERN B E AR ()

Financial information of CESIZ (i) CESIZZBHIs&E
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHE#ET BEET
At 31 March: R=ZA=+—8:
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,147 5141
Current assets MENEE = 1
Current liabilities TENAEE (23) (18)
Net assets BEFE 5,124 5,124
Group’s % of ownership interest REBEFFEEERA DL 22% 22%
Group’s share of carrying amount of
interests REES (G REE 1,127 1,127
Year ended 31 March: BE=—A=+—RHLFE:
Revenue WA = =
Loss 58 (13) =
Other comprehensive income HE 2wk 13 50
Total comprehensive income 2HKERTE - 50

CESIZ is principally engaged in investment in urban complex
development project. Under the sub-decree 122/2019 (the
“Sub-decree”) on the establishment of CESIZ Special Economic
Zone granted by the Council of Ministers to CESIZ, the Council
of Ministers approved CESIZ to establish a special economic
zone (the “Special Economic Zone”) with a size of 17,252,519
square meters at Koh Kong Province, Cambodia (the “Project”).
Under the Sub-Decree, CESIZ shall have the sole and exclusive
right to develop the Special Economic Zone with all the
necessary land use rights, including those for residential,
industrial and commercial development purpose. The principal
assets of CESIZ is a land for development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRKMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  Associates not material to the Group

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are accounted for

20 MBELFZERE)

BizE - (8

(b)

HAREM S L TEAZHERT]

TR A 75 25 R AR B AR
AEZ BRI EABSA AR S

using the equity method. B o
2023 2022
—E_=f —EF
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET AEAT
At 31 March: ®=RA=+—H
Carrying amounts of interests w2 BREE 3 181
Year ended 31 March: BE=A=1+—HL=FE:
Loss and total comprehensive loss w N R 2R A (128) (44)

On 23 June 2022, Victor Ocean Developments Limited, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an
agreement for the disposal of 49% equity interest in Triple Blessing
International Limited at a consideration of HK$44 million.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Kaiyin Fund Management
Limited was disposed at a consideration of HK$7 million resulted
in gain on disposal of an associate of HK$1 million.

RZBE-__FXAZ+=H " AR
RIFEIEEENBAREFREESR
RAREZEHE HE-REKRA
R AA49% A% - KB R4,4008 5

ﬁo

e Z-_—_F#=RA=-+—HI*F
B HREESEEARATNRE

0EBTHE - HEMERREE

W 1008 & T

T F-=EFR EREGHNEEEERAT 153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

21. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REELEZHER
2023 2022
k- =i —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BERAT AEBT
Unlisted investments: FELETRE -
Share of net assets DMEBEFE 2 80
Notes: BT -
(a)  Joint venture not material to the Group () BHAEEMSETIBEAZALDE

154 Aceso

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the

TRAERT AR B E R RE

amounts of all individually immaterial joint ventures that are accounted AEZHERERMIEERELLEMES
for using the equity method. ZE o
2023 2022
—EBC=H T
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BEET
At 31 March: ®W=A=+—H
Carrying amounts of interests w2 REE 2 80
Year ended 31 March: BE=A=1+—HLFE:
Loss and total comprehensive loss EiE Rk 2HEEIBATE (78) (30)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a joint venture was disposed at
a consideration of HK$4 million.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 22. m’&zlsﬁﬁ'l'ig.ﬁﬁfbﬁ'l'lﬁfm
2HBBZEMEE
2023 2022
== —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEET
Unlisted equity securities (note a) Ik E TR AR F (B 5Ta)
Goodwill International Holdings Limited Goodwill International Holdings Limited 3 5
Co-lead Holdings Limited Co-lead Holdings Limited 15 24
Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited EUMHEREBRAR 287 373
Tonsin Petrochemical Investment Limited RATALEZEREBR AR M =
China Pearl Global Limited RARKRRIKEBR A A 425 -
Empire Victory Hong Kong Limited HEEEBRAR] 10 -
Listed equity securities (note b) Ll ARES (fFED) 20 39
801 441
Notes: 5T -
(a)  The above investments are intended to be held for the medium to long- (a) AEEBRATFERHANEZEELMIIEE -

term. Designation of these investments as equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income can avoid the volatility of
the fair value changes of these investments to the profit or loss.

The Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise
the fair value of this equity instrument, which is not held for trading
but a strategic investment, through other comprehensive income. No
dividend income was received during the year (2022: Nil).

On disposal of these equity investments, any related balance within the
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to retained earnings.

The Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise
the fair value of this equity instrument, which is not held for trading
but a strategic investment, through other comprehensive income.

—F— —

=

EERBRABAATEI LS
BT M R E S 2 R IR B %

AN B B R VIR FE R B N 0] S R 12
BREMEEARSERZRATAZA
TE BERATATIEFEEE M
BRI E - FRIEKREURE K
ANZEZ=F : H|) -

HEZSRARER  WAFEER
HE(Cet AR EEK s 2 FEiRARZE
REERER D BRRE AT -

(b) 7% 8 B R YA TR T AT i i 12
#ziER TANATES AL 2 EK
% RERTALEARSMESE @
£ REEGE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBHRERM T
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE
23. LOAN RECEIVABLES 23. BIrE®
2023 2022
—=E-=F —E-F
HK$ million HK$'million
BEAET BEBTT
Non-current FETRED
Secured fixed-rate loan receivables BEPETE N EERER - 20
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 3l : TEHA(E B BB B > 4)
- 16
Current &
Secured fixed-rate loan receivables BEIFEE I EEWER 107 89
Unsecured fixed-rate loan receivables IR EE R B E R 150 400
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses I : TEEME S BB RS (112) (158)
145 331
145 347
Notes: BT 5E
(a) Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss for loan (a) REWEREEEFBEREZE
receivables:
HK$'million
BEBIT
As at 1 April 2021 RZZE-_—FMH—H 210
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ F4RA& Bz R RHER 13
Amount written-off as uncollectible s AR e £ 5 (61)
As at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R-ZE-_—F=A=+—HK
—ET-—_FMA—H 162
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ R4R& BE R NIER (22)
Amount written-off as uncollectible eI N T (25)
Exchange alignment PE 5 3)
As at 31 March 2023 R—ZE_=%=A=+—H 112

For loan receivables that are not credit-impaired without significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition (“Stage 1”), ECLs is
measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECLs that result
from default events possible within the next 12 months. If a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified (“Stage
2") but not yet deemed to be credit impaired, ECL is measured based
on lifetime ECLs. In general, when loan receivables or its related
instalments are overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase
in credit risk. In general, loan receivables are considered as default
(“Stage 3") when they are overdue by over 90 days.

156 Aceso Life Science Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/23

HRFEERERBNRERAREER
R B E IR ((E1E R ) 2 R E
K BHREEBEBRZASHAKIEA
WA RERE B OBz 2HEME
EBBRHO 2B E o A VG HER
VAZR B 38 5l (= B e 7 2 4 o ([ 55 2%
BDEREADHBREERE - QIR
EEEERE2PBNEEBEFE - —
s - i EYE SR EARRE 0 B K
BHI0R - AEERMABEEN - — &
mE - HEKEREHBEBE - B
BRENTFEIEER]) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

24. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 24. MEHEREKRIE
Lease payments Present value of lease payments
HEMAR HEARZHRE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EBC=g T ZEI=ZHE —T-—-F
HK$’million HK$'million ~ HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT HEET BEBT
Less than 1 year PR 2 4 2 4
Between 1and 2 years 1526 - 2 - 2
2
Less: Unearned finance income o RERERELE WA - -
Present value of lease payments HENRZHE 2 6 2 6
Less: Amount within 12 months B RREARN 58
(shown under current assets) (RRBEEE THIR) (2) (4)
Amount receivable after 12 months #1218 B 18 UL & 58 - 2

Notes:

(@)

The Group leases out certain of its machineries under finance leases.
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have
been entered into for variable lease payments. At the end of each lease
term, the lessees have the options to purchase the plant and machinery
at nominal prices.

Disclosures of finance lease-related items:

GEE

(@) AKBEzZETHMORERERE N
H-MBEEARBEEER TN » Y&
AT EE N KT L EA LY - RBHE
BHR  AHAGRNZRERBER
5 R et o

(b) REHEEHEMERZHEE

2023 2022
—E-= e
HK$’ million HK$'million

BE#ET BEBT

Finance income on net investment
in the leases FHERE Z@MERA

T F-=EFR EREGREERERAT 157



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

—=E=A=t—HItEE

25. CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES

25. MEUH R

2023 2022
—EZ=HE B F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BsE BHRET BEAL
Non-Current assets FRENEE
Future World Holdings Limited R M FIZRR R A A (a)

(“Future World”) ([ARBRHES) 42 -
Current assets mENEE
Imperial Pacific International Holdings 152 K £ BIFR I iE B BR A &) (b)

Limited (“Imperial Pacific”) (MEERFF]D 262 262
CISI Investment Limited (“CISI") CISI Investment Limited ([CISI ) (©) 167 167
Nanshan Capital Holding Limited mILEAZERAERAB(FEL]) (d)

(“Nanshan”) 361 360

Central Wealth Group Holdings FESEIERABRAR(HE]D) (e)

Limited (“Central Wealth”) 42 51
Less: Allowance for expected credit & : TEER(E B /BB EE
losses (367) (369)
465 47
507 471
Notes: Bie -
(@)  On 30 December 2022, the Group purchased notes (the “Future @ R-ZTE-_—_F+-A=+—H X&§

158 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

World Notes”) issued by Future World, with principal amount of
HK$42,000,000, at a consideration of HK$42,000,000. The Future
World Notes is interest bearing at prime rate plus 2.5% per annum,
unsecured and due on 4 January 2025.

In June 2018, the Group purchased notes issued by Imperial Pacific,
with the principal amount of US$30,000,000, at a consideration of
US$27,800,000 from Asia Link Capital Investment Holding Limited
(“Asia Link"), the controlling shareholder of the Company. Such
notes were issued in January 2017 with three years tenure and bears
interests of 8.5% per annum.

In March 2020, the Group entered into the amendment with Asia Link
to modify the terms of such notes. Major amendments are (i) increase
in the principal amount of the Notes to US$32,550,000, by way of
capitalisation of accrued interests of US$2,550,000; (ii) extend the
maturity date of the notes to 25 April 2021; and (iii) increase in the
interest rate of the Notes from 8.5% per annum to 10.5% per annum
with effect from 25 January 2020. Imperial Pacific defaulted on the
notes. Full allowance for expected credit loss was provided as at 31
March 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—Z—

=FZA=1+—HLFE

25. CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(©)

In January 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with CISI to
invest the corporate note issued by CISI with the principal amount of
US$20,000,000 (the “CISI Note") (equivalent to HK$156,760,000).
The CISI Note was matured on 17 December 2020 and bore interest
of 11.0% per annum. CISI Note was default and is undergoing its
restructuring plan. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$103 million
(2022: HK$104 million) was provided as at 31 March 2023.

On 25 June 2021, the Group executed an order with Shanghai
Commercial Bank Limited (“SCB”) for the purchase of notes, with
principal amount of US$45,000,000 (the “Nanshan Notes”) at a
consideration of US$45,337,500 (approximately HK$352 million). The
Nanshan Notes were offered by Nanshan Capital Holdings Limited to
SCB in a private placement. The Nanshan Notes is interest bearing at
7% per annum, guaranteed by Nanshan Group Co., Ltd and due on
28 June 2022. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$2 million was
provided as at 31 March 2022.

On 22 June 2022, the Group executed an order with SCB for the
purchase of notes, with principal amount of US$45,000,000 (the
“Nanshan Notes”) at a consideration of US$45,000,000 (approximately
HK$354 million). The Nanshan Notes were offered by Nanshan Capital
Holdings Limited to SCB in a private placement. The Nanshan Notes is
interest bearing at 7% per annum, guaranteed by Nanshan Group Co.,
Ltd and due on 23 June 2023. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$1
million was provided as at 31 March 2023.

In 7 September 2021, the Group purchased notes (the “Central
Wealth Notes”) issued by Central Wealth, with principal amount of
HK$50,000,000, at a consideration of HK$50,000,000. The Central
Wealth Notes is interest bearing at 9% per annum, unsecured and due
on 7 September 2022. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$1 million
was provided as at 31 March 2022.

On 7 September 2022, the Group signed a subscription agreement with
Central Wealth, pursuant to which Central Wealth (1) partially repays
a lump sum of HK$8,250,000, comprising principal of HK$6,000,000
and the interest accrued of HK$2,250,000; and (2) issues notes in the
principal amount of HK$44,000,000 (the “2nd Central Wealth Notes”)
to settle the Central Wealth Notes of HK$44,000,000. The 2nd Central
Wealth Notes is interest bearing at 15% per annum, unsecured and due
on 6 February 2023. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$1 million
was provided as at 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of corporate note
receivables of approximately HK$360 million (2022: HK$358 million)
was pledged to secure borrowings.

e Y

25. PRI HETRIE (48)

BIEE

(©)

(®)

RZZE_ZF—F - REBEBECISIFTAZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

26. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised

26. EIEIRIR

AT RAEEMER T RREEHBERE

by the Group. NEE -
Fair value
adjustments on
property, plant
and equipment,
intangible assets  Fair value change
Acceleratedtax ~ and investment  of investment held
Tax losses depreciation properties for trading Total
g BER
i EREE
mE REEENE  BERERE
HEGR REHE  COTEEE  ZOTEED it
HK§ million Hk$million HK§ million HK$ million Hk$million
BEAT BEAT BEATL BEAT BEAT
R at 1 April 2021 KRB —ERmA-H 5 (30) (69) Pl (2
Credt(charge) toproftor oss for theyear — ERRMBEEEA/ (H0B) () 1 (14 2
Bichange alignment B AR - - 2 -
As at 31 March 2022 and 1 Aprl 2022 R-E-—5-A=1-HEk
“S-"ENA-A 5 (29) (81) (1) (58)
Creet(charge) o proftor oss fortheyear —— ERRBEFEA/ (B) (5) 3 3 9 10
Exchange alignment 5 AR = - 9 - ?
Rs at 31 March 2023 R-B-=F=A=1-H 48 (26) (76) 8 (46)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for
consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

REAMBHRREME - ETH LS
GE415) 2 DT -

2023 2022

—=E=—= —E-—4F

HK$’million HK$'million

BEET BEBIT

Deferred tax assets TRIERIIEE B 54 53
Deferred tax liabilities B BAE (100) (111)
(46) (58)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$202 million
(2022: HK$190 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$54 million (2022:
HK$50 million) that will expire in one to five years. Other tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 21. g,ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%lﬂ& EEREF

DEPOSITS
2023 2022
—EZZ= —E-4F
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEBIT

Non-current FETRED

Pledged deposits (note a) 2 HFR (5T > 21

Current RE

Pledged deposits (note a) B F R 5Fa) 30 -

Trusted and segregated bank accounts (note b) {57t X IB 87 78R F (FT3Eh) 554 9%

Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 187 195

771 291

Total 5t m 312

Notes: BEE -

(@)  The Group’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to (a) ANEEZDIEPERIELRE T ERERH
banks to secure borrowings as set out in note 34 to the consolidated MFIEHAESEEMEEFRITZE
financial statements. E/

(b)  Trusted and segregated bank accounts represented clients’ accounts in (b) EFEERBIYRITRPIEREEEEE

the provision of asset management, securities brokerage, commodities,
futures and other financial service business segment.

(c)  Asat 31 March 2023, the bank and cash balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$30 million (2022:
HK$34 million). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

BHERL B HERECSRRS
EBDBROEF A

R-E-—=—#=FA=+—0 AEEH
ARBETAREDHEZHIRESE
HANEEBT(CE-—F  UEEHS
IT) o ¥ A RS H IR AHNE B R B INE
EHEBIFTIRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

28. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS

28. HtEWKRIARET&

2023 2022
—=E-=F —E-F
Notes HK$’million HK$'million
BsE BHRET BEET
Non-current assets FRENEE
Prepayment for acquisition of WHEMIZE - BB kB2
property, SENECE
plant and equipment 2 8
Other non-current assets HinIEmeEE 3 2
5 10
Current assets IRENEE
Other receivables H A U RIE 18 24
Consideration receivables for HESREERINE
disposal of financial assets (a) - 66
Consideration receivables for HERKEREWRE
disposal of loan receivables - 26
Deposits to financial institutions T RIEBT R (b) 5 3
Deposits and prepayments HESENEEE 8 11
Less: Allowance for expected credit ~ J&% : TEHRZ B ES1E BB
loss () (1) (6)
30 124
Total BE 35 134
Notes: 5T
(@)  During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group disposed financial () BEZZE-—F=A=+—HLEFE"

assets at FVTOCI at a cash consideration of HK$66 million which
is guaranteed by an independent third party and secured by equity
interest over a private entity.

(b)  Deposits to financial institutions represented deposits for securities
investment and trading of futures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

28. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS
(CONTINUED)

29.

30.

Notes: (Continued)

28.

H it FE MG R IR e BT & (48)

MsE - (8)

()  Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss for other () EHiEUFRZBHEEBREGED
receivables
HK$'million
BEBT
As at 1 April 2021 R-ZE-_—FImWA—H 61
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profitor loss ~ P4RA R R NIER (40)
Amount written-off as uncollectible MsH AT A e & 58 (19)
Exchange alignment ME 5, 58 B 4
As at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZE-_—F#=A=+—HK
—E-__FmMA—H 6
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ R4RA B R NHER (2
Amount written-off as uncollectible MsH AT AT U Bl & 58 3)
As at 31 March 2023 R—_E-—=F=A=+—H 1
INVENTORIES 29. &8
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBTT
Spare parts HEREH 2 6
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 30. EEPYE
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEATT
Land use rights TP AR 352 368
Note: Btsr

The properties under development were related to a residential and
commercial mixed property development project located at Port Dickson,
Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia comprising 267,500 square meters (or
2,879,343 square feet). The property is held from the government for a
lease term of 99 years expiring on 8 February 2097 for residential and
commercial building uses.

B A W) 3R BR T A7 B 2R P8 GE AR SE B R 7B FR E
18 /5267,500°F 75 7K (382,879,343 F 5 IR) 2 (X =
MEEEEMERRBRGH - MEHBRA
BB HERYF RZBEALF-_ANRE
o EEEREEETRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

31. TRADE RECEIVABLES

31. WHEBKHRIEA

2023 2022
—E=E-=F —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHERET BEET
Trade receivables 2 5 W IR
Rental income from construction machinery
business REMBEB 2ESKBA 56 66
Securities brokerage FHELL 48 82
Rental income from leasing of investment
properties HAKEYE 2 HEWA 25 24
129 172
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses B B EEEERE (14) (23)
115 149

Notes:

(@  The Group allows an average credit period of 0-30 days to its
trade customers arising from construction machinery and sales
of construction materials business. The credit period provided to
customers can be longer based on a number of factors including
the customer’s credit profile and relationship with the customers.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. The Group has a
policy for allowance for expected credit losses which is based on the
evaluation of the collectability and aging analysis of accounts on every
individual trade debtor basis and on the management's judgement
including creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer.

For those securities trading clients, it normally takes two to three
days to settle after trade date of those transactions. These outstanding
unsettled trades due from clients are reported as trade receivables from
clients.

Trade receivables from cash and margin clients arising from
commodities, futures and securities brokerage business are repayable
on demand subsequent to settlement date. The margin clients of the
securities brokerage business are required to pledge their investments
to the Group for credit facilities for commodities, futures and securities
trading. The settlement terms of trade receivables from clearing houses
are usually one to two days after the trade date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

31. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 31. 525 ME Uk IE ()
Notes: (Continued) i €Y
(b)  The aging analysis by invoice date of trade receivables (other than (b) EZEKFE(EHEREMEZBSIWA
rental income from leasing of investment properties) before allowance BROMNIBIBEZHERBES 2R DT CR
for expected credit losses is as follows: HMBREMEEEERE T
2023 2022
—EBC=H T
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BEET
0-30 days 0-30H 17 27
31-60 days 31-60H 20 22
61-90 days 61-90H 4 16
91-180 days 91-180H 21 19
181-365 days 181-365H 11 32
Over 365 days HB8360 H 31 32
104 148
(c)  Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss for trade c) BIREKZBzEHEEBEERES
receivables: & :
HK$'million
BEBT
As at 1 April 2021 RZZE-_—FWHA—H 15
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ fE4R & Bz R P HER 9
Amount written-off as uncollectible 8 A EE R U B Y SR (1
As at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 KRB —F=A=+—HKk=-ZT==
FA—H 23
Recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ 7E4R & B R P ER (9)
As at 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=A=+—H 14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

31. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to provide for
expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss provision for all

trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking

. RAERIA (1)

AEBERBEBEMBHRELMNESREAET
2Bk ERE BB ERERAE
B I RMGIEF REREEERRE - &
AEEMEEEE  BZRUGRRERR
HKEEERARKH AR NE - BH

information. EEEENBENEEELR -
Past due
.
Curent  1t030days  31to90days 91to180days  Over181 days Total
k] 1308 HENA 91Z180R 100R5.E ait

As at 31 March 2023 RZBZZEZ=+-H
Weighted average expected loss ate ML ESEER 20% 11.1% 125% 0% 0% 109%
Receivable amount (HKSmillon) ThEEE(EE#TL) ) 18 8 15 0 129
Loss allowance (HKSmilion) FEREEREST) 2 2 1 3 b 1
As at 31 March 2022 RZBZZFZR=1-H
Weighted average expected loss ate MEBEEEER 5% 125% 175% 8% 40% 134%
Receivable amount (HKSmilon) hEL%EEET) Gl ] 4 18 1 n
Loss alowance (HKSmilion) EBREEESAT) 4 3 7 5 4 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

32. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 32. DJ.’REFE%"I‘EEE@fIS%‘I‘lEﬁ
ZEMEE
2023 2022
=== —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEAET BEBIT
Listed equity securities ETRAES 290 275
Unlisted fund investment (note a) FEMESREFTa) 107 223
Unlisted debt instruments JELETERTA 15 20
Convertible note receivable (note b) SRR ES (D) 3 4
415 522
Notes: MIEE -
(a)  Amount represented the investments in fund: () ZeBERESZKE:
2023 2022
—=-= —EF-=
HK$’million HK$'million
BEEET BEBT
Atlantis China Fund mAEFHES 15 23
Riverwood Umbrella Fund Riverwood Umbrella Fund 7 12
HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund 25 129
Kingdom Future Limited (“Kingdom Future”) wIEHR A A (7 ) (Ffske)
(note ¢) 29 59
Finance Lease Investment SP Finance Lease Investment SP 31 -
107 223
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

—=E=A=t—HItEE

32. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (CONTINUED)

*

168 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In June 2020, the Group entered into a subscription agreement and
shareholders’ agreement with Co-High Investment Management
Limited (“Co-High”), an independent third party, for the formation of
a joint venture (“JV 17) to undertake the business of development,
manufacture, sales and distribution of therapeutic and diagnostic assets
in the Greater China and South East Asia. The Group holds 51% in
this joint venture and the financial results will be consolidated into
the financial statements of the Group. In July 2020, JV 1 entered into
a JV Agreement with Promethera Biosciences S.A./N.V. (“Promethera
Biosciences”), an independent third party which was incorporated
under the laws of Belgium, for the formation of a joint venture (“JV
2"), which will have the exclusive right to engage in the development,
commercialisation, sell and distribution of cell-based and biological
therapies for the treatment of liver diseases, autoimmune diseases and
various types of cancer based on the applications and development of
contributed intellectual property of Promethera Biosciences in the Asia.
At the same time, the Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for convertible bonds of Promethera Biosciences in the principal
amount of up to Euro 10 million (equivalent to approximately HK$88
million) in two equal tranches. In July 2020, the Group subscribed
the first tranche of Euro 5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$44
million). The Group did not subscribe the second tranche of Euro 5
million convertible bond subscription.

As Promethera Biosciences faced with litigations of claims and failed
to obtain sufficient funding to support its research and development
activities, by application lodged in January 2021, it requested
that a judicial reorganisation procedure be changed by collective
agreement of creditors in order to ensure that the continuity of its
business is preserved under the supervision of a delegated judge. The
reorganisation plan was approved by the Third Chamber of the Court
of the Enterprise of the Walloon Brabant in Belgium in March 2021.
Included in the reorganisation plan was the reduction of the rights of
creditors by 80% or provision for a payment of 20% payable in 5 years
(2% per year for the first 4 years and 12% in the fifth year), but with a
better fortune clause of up to 100% of the value as soon as the value
of Promethera Biosciences exceeds Euro 400 million at the time of its
monetisation.

In April 2021, HTICI entered into an acquisition agreement with an
independent third party to acquire 49% equity interests in Kingdom
Future with a consideration of approximately HK$321 million.
Kingdom Future, through its interests in a segregated portfolio of Tisé
Opportunities SPC, acquired shares of New Gains Group Limited, a
subsidiary of China Evergrande Group, which owns Fangchebao Group
Co. Ltd*(FEEEEAR MK B MR A A). The consideration was
settled by the allotment and issue of approximately 867 million shares
of HTICI. The transaction was completed in May 2021.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of listed equity securities of
approximately HK$103 million (2022: HK$24 million) was pledged to
secure borrowings.

for identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. HEARE
Present value of lease
Lease payments payments
HEMR HEMRZHE
2023 2022 2023 2022

—EC=E o ZEI=HE —_E-—F
HK$’million HK$'million  HK$’million HK$'million
BEAET BEET BEET BEATT

Within one year —FR 15 13 14 12
In the second to fifth years, inclusive B -—FZ2FRF(ERE

WEBIFLENA) 15 18 15 17

30 31 29 29

Less: Future finance charges B RRRMEER (1) () NAFER NATER

Present value of lease obligations HEEFTZRE 29 29 29 29

Less: Amount due for settlement within & : 72 {& B A 2| HAE

12 months(shown under current Rz 2RBPRED
liabilities) BEETIIT) (14) (12)
Amount due for settlement after 12 FA12 @l A& B HR(E 2
months G| 15 17
At 31 March 2023, the average effective borrowing rate was 1.78% to R-T_=F=A=+—H FHERE
4.84% (2022: 1.4% to 4.34%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates BERE1T8%E484%(ZE-—F 1 14%=
and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. 4.34%) - FIZRENBHET - A5H

AR EF EER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 4. BTREMEER
2023 2022
—E-=E B 4F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BEBITT
Bank borrowings RITIBE 663 654
Loans from other financial institutions Hih o piig > B 1,080 1,228
Loans from a director of subsidiaries —ZWBRRIEEZER - 40
1,743 1,922
Representing: 5 -
Current Mk 1,702 1,734
Non-current JEmB 41 188
1,743 1,922
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BEERBEAAT
On demand or within one year BERIR—FR 1,702 1734
Between 1 and 2 years 13226 22 174
Between 2 and 5 years 2EB5F 19 14
1,743 1,922
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months 3, : #M2 1@ A REIEAERT 2 £ 58
(shown under current liabilities) (RREAFEIETIITR) (1,702) (1,734)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months B2 @A EIBEN 225 M 188
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 34. SRITREMEE (1)

Notes: BEE -

(@)  The average interest rates at 31 March were as follows: (a) M=ZA=t+—HZFHFRMOT :

2023 2022

=== =2
Bank borrowings RITIEE 6.03% 3.50%
Loans from other financial institutions Eith & phirE 2 B3 4.92% 5.18%
Loans from a director of subsidiaries —EWBRARIEEZER N/AT & 3.00%

(b)  Borrowings arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the Group to e e I R S A £ [E] o

fair value interest rate risk are as follows: (b) E\lfgﬁg I;;T“ . AR E AT AR
- oS .
2023 2022
—E-= —E- 4
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEBT
Bank borrowings RITIEE 12 593
Loans from other financial institutions Efemigs BN 1,080 1,234
Loans from a director of subsidiaries —HWBRARIEEZER - 40
1,092 1,867
Other borrowings are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Hip S e er=sts  KReEERAEM
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. EEBS REMNEER

(c)  The directors estimate the fair value of the Group's borrowings c) ZEEH AEEESEATEAES
approximate the carrying value of the borrowings. CEEEREE -

(d)  Bank and other borrowings of HK$1,731 million (2022: HK$1,864 (d FAREMESIEEST(CSE-—
million) are secured. As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amounts of F1SMEEST)BEE R E - =
financial and non-financial assets pledged as security for certain bank E=A=+—0  EAETHRTEER
borrowings and loans from other financial institutions are as follows: Hih S gt > SR B IES

MEEREENT

2023 2022

—E-=F T
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BEET
Investment properties BB 1,518 1,625
Corporate note receivables FEUR D S R 360 358
Property, plant and equipment Y%~ B R 125 114

Financial assets at FVTPL LAY EZBEE it AlBs
2T REE 103 24
Pledged bank deposits DR ITIER 30 21
Total assets pledged as security EREM R EELE 2,136 2,142
(e)  Certain bank and other borrowings of the Group are secured by equity (6) ANEMEE T IRITRE M & Ty E T Mt

interest of certain subsidiaries.

== = hE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(f) As at 31 March 2023, certain financial covenant on bank borrowings (f)

—=E=A=t—HItEE

34. |ITRAMMERGR)
FirsE : (80

RZZEZ=F=RA=+—H  £50088

at HK$500 million were not meet. A financial covenant waiver letter in
respect of HK$367 million was received on 20 June 2023. The Board
of Directors considers such incident did not have any materiel impact
to the financial position and operation of the Group.

BITHRTT R B S B R R LR 5 R4
ERLBERIME E-_FT-_=FA
—+H - BRI -HERBTAEE
TN BROIERHRRE - EFEAR
REMHEENMERMELEREE
MERFE -

35. EMLERE

35. CORPORATE NOTE PAYABLES

2023 2022

== —E-—F

HK$’million HK$'million

BHERET BEBT

Current portion MENER 435 390
Non-current portion EmehE o 137 40
572 430

Notes:

In January 2018, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with
an independent third party (the “2018 Noteholder”) for the note with
principal amount of HK$350 million (the “2018 Note”). The maturity
date of the 2018 Note were is five years after the issue date and bore
fixed coupon rate at 9.75% per annum. Pursuant to the terms of the
subscription agreement, the Group may redeem the 2018 Note within
five years from the issue date. The 2018 Note was secured by certain
equity interests in subsidiaries. The redemption amount of the 2018
Note will be:

if the redemption is made on the date falling:

G

@@ —ZT-NF—A AEEE-FLBIE
=H(ZZ2-N\EEFBEADRAEER
RI0EEBETHNRER L RE (=
Z-N\ER] - EENZH B ABTA
HERAF  WIREERHEFMNEI75%
R o REBERBHZOIRK - AEEF
RETAHEFAFABR —T—-N\F
B-Z-_Z- \EBUAETHBRRZ
IRIEEER - RENEOESRRA

A PAT B EAE M

applicable rate

HALE
the first anniversary of the issue date BITHHE —(ERAF 103.00%
the second anniversary of the issue date BITHEE —(@BF 106.35%
the third anniversary of the issue date BITHHE=(EREF 110.15%
the fourth anniversary of the issue date 17 B BRI M {ERAF 114.35%
the fifth anniversary of the issue date BITHHERERS 119.10%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &HZE_—=

—=FE=A=t—HItEE

35. CORPORATE NOTE PAYABLES (Continued)

36.

35. FEfT &R (M)

Note: (Continued) MI5E : (8)
(a)  (Continued) @ (&
The Group entered into an early redemption agreement (the AEBR _ZE-_—_FA+HHE_FT
“Redemption Agreement”) with the 2018 Noteholder on 10 June 2022, —NRBEFE ARG TRERAER WHZE
pursuant to which the Group and the 2018 Noteholder agreed to the (EEmZD Bt AEERE_-F
early repayment of the 2018 Note at the principal amount and interest —N\EBRFBEARBRINEE=-Z—N
payables of HK$350 million and HK$20 million respectively and the ZBROAES RERFE - H5/A3508 &
2018 Noteholder agreed to waive the redemption premium. On 17 BITK2,0008E T - HZE—N\RER
June 2022, date of settlement of the 2018 Note, the Group recognised EARERERBESEE RZT-_=F
interest payable and redemption premium payable of HK$20 million ANATER - -AZE-N\EEBREEAR
and HK$54 million respectively. Pursuant to the Redemption AEBRERENFEREMBERSED
Agreement, the redemption premium payable of HK$54 million has B 52,0008 %8 7T &5,4008 7 7T - IRIEE
been waived resulted in gain on early redemption of HK$54 million for B % - EAERREL 08B TEE
the year ended 31 March 2023. e BEREE2023F3IANAILFER
FHEE Y 5540088 T ©
On 17 June 2022, the Group issued a note with principal amount of RZZEZZFRA++EH REEBT
HK$370 million (the “2022 Note”) to settle the 2018 Note. The 2022 ReBAINESEATHNER(ZZ
Note is repayable on 16 September 2023, interest bearing at 8.5% and TCERDUGEE T N\EE =T
secured by certain equity interests in subsidiaries. T oEBRER-ZE_=FNAA+AE
2 1R8.5%ET B W IAE T AR AE R I
NN
(b)  Remaining notes bear interests ranging from 7% to 9.75% (2022: 4% b) FHBHRFMENTI%EILTS%(=
t0 9.75%) per annum and will mature in 2023 (2022; 2023). T F 4%EIT5%)EHE  BR =
o= (B ZF - ZT=F)F
Hi
TRADE PAYABLES 36. BHEMRIRA
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date of receipt of o ENFERERKEAHEN 2 Rikn
goods, is as follows: A
2023 2022
—E== T F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEATT
Within 30 days 0B A 2 2
3110 60 days 31ZE60H 2 2
61 to 180 days 612180H 7 2
181 to 360 days 1812360 H 2 -
13 6

—F— —

=

FIZ=FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

37. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 37. HWEMRIA - ST & R ER
ACCRUALS -4}
2023 2022
—EZ= T _F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHERET BEET
Margin deposits payable to clients arising from  EAB &M - HIEREHFLLHE
commodities, futures and securities brokerage B RE D (M:Fa)

(note a) 555 108
Contract liabilities (note b) A8 EFIEED) 4 2
Accruals FEFTE A 18 17
Interests payables FERTF S 44 91
Others EAh 45 51
Amount due to a director of subsidiaries N —BWBARESRIA - 20

666 289

174 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Notes:

(a)  Margin deposits received from clients for their trading of commodities

@ HEEFRMIEANCEREPRER

and futures contracts were payable on demand. WERL A o
(b) (b)
As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2023 2022 2021
RIB-=F R-ZT-=—F RZZT=_—-F
=B=+—HB =R=t+-—H MA—H
HK$’million HK$'million HK$'million
BRAET BEAT BEAT
Contract liabilities — advances received from A B E- AR EF KA
customers 4 2 1
2023 2022
R-EBE_=%F RZE—_—
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEATT
Revenue recognised in the year that was included in  REFFF A AL E B 2 FAHER
contract liabilities at beginning of year A 2 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

37. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND  37.

ACCRUALS (CONTINUED)

Note: (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations unsatisfied at

end of year and expected to be recognised as revenue in:

HAtfEf IR - CUET & & FEat
BAGR

BizE - (8
(b) (&)

RERDBEERERBOEELTBHR
UNTEEERBBAZRZHE :

2023 2022
W-=EZ=% R-ZTE——
HK$’million HK$'million
BE#ET BEBT
2023 —E-=% -
2024 —E U 18 =
18 2
Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: FREHNEBEZENES) :
2023 2022
R-E-=%F RZZB__F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEET
Increase due to operations in the year REGREREEMZ M 40 2
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue ERAENBERRA 38 1

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
products to a customer for which the Group has received consideration

(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

BHREREARERWEEFRE (K
Bz MESB) MABEERTEP
ZEE-

T F-=EFR EREGREEBAERAT 175



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

38. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL 38. l&’&fFiE%i-EﬂEﬁﬂ: Bt A
ZemaR
2023 2022
—EZ= —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEBTT
Non-current FETEED
Corporate note payable (note a) FEfS 2R (FiaEa) 578 629
Notes: BT5E -
(@) InJanuary 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of Alcott Global () ZZF=Z—F—A8 K~NEEZTKBKEACC
Limited and issued note with principal amount of HK$850 million Global Limited X 31T A ¢ 58 A8508 &8
as part of the consideration. The note has a maturity date of 3 years TZEZBIERTHRE - RHRME A
from the date of issue, subject to the extension at the option by HTICI. BETHERA=F - AR KEERE
The note bears 5% interests per annum, subject to the satisfaction BIEEERELER - 2R BIEFB5%5T
of (i) having received audited financial statement of CESIZ prepared B EARFEUTERGE : ()2 /BRI
under HKFRS; and (ii) the return on net assets of CESIZ, calculated by R SRR CESIZE &%
dividing net profit after tax over net assets, for the previous financial Bk - R(i) E—B EREFECESIZFFE
year achieved 20% or more. The corporate note is carried at fair value. ERRGERBREFNERFEE
H)EF20%HIA L - RRZBIZAFE
ATHE -
39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. B&E
Number of shares
[ grar 2 4E]
Notes (‘million) HK$'million
BRE (B8R BEATT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & }%0.01 & 7T 2 @A
Authorised: ERE
Asat1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, A —E——F M A—H « =&
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 ——F=A=+—H  —&Z=-—
FUA—HRZZE-_=F=H
=+—~H 50,000 500
Issued and fully paid: ERITRBE :
As at 1 April 2021 R—ZE-_—FMA—H 6,932 69
Exercise of call option IR (a) 455 5
As at 31 March 2022 and RZEZZF=H=+—HK
1 April 2022 —E-—HA—H 7,387 74
Cancellation of share B fn s 88 (b) (5) (1)
As at 31 March 2023 =B == B =—E 7,382 73
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

39. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

40.

Notes.

()

In August 2021, the Company issued 455 million shares upon exercise
of call option granted to Vandi Investments Limited. The exercise price
was HK$0.69 per share. The consideration was settled by transfer of a
subsidiary’s shares.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, certain subsidiaries of the
Company purchased 52,980,000 (2022: 59,610,000) shares of the
Company from the market. The total amount paid to acquire the shares
was HK$9 million (2022: HK$5 million) and has been deducted from
the shareholders’ equity. The related weighted average price at the time
of buy-back was HK$0.168 (2022: HK$0.08) per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company cancelled
5,040,000 (2022: nil) shares of the Company.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the

return

to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity

balance.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Share award

HTICI adopted a share award scheme(the “Share Award Scheme”)
on 24 April 2020. The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are
(a) to recognise the contributions by selected participants and to
provide them with incentives in order to retain them; and (b) to
attract the right talents for promoting the future development and
expansion of the group, with a view to achieving the objective of
increasing the value of the group by motivating the participants
to strive for the continual operation and future development and
expansion of the group and aligning the interests of the participants
and the shareholders of HTICI.

Pursuant to the scheme rules, the board of HTICI may determine
other specific vesting criteria, conditions and the time when the
awards shall vest. The award share (the “Award Shares”) are vested
in three equal tranches of which: (a) 1/3 of the Award Shares under
the award shall be vested in the first calendar year after the offer
date during a period of continuous service with the group; (b) 1/3
of the Award Shares under the award shall be vested in the second
calendar year of continuous service with the group after the offer
date; (c) 1/3 of the Award Shares under the award shall be vested
in the third calendar year of continuous service with the group after
the offer date.

—F— —

=

39. B (i#)

40.

BsE
(@)

R-ZZ-—F N\ A ZXARER FVandi
Investments Limited 2 57 8% 24 J& 17 {50 1M 2%
17455 BB (D © 1T B A E%0.697
fu;ﬁ%ﬁ@?@ﬁ%%—%ﬁﬁﬁ}%@EZ%
VNI=NN I

RZEBE_=ZF=ZA=+—HLEFE -
AARETHBARETS LERD
52,980,000(=Z& = —4F : 59,610,000) I& A
NERD - WERNENBSEEIAE
BL(ZE-_ZF :5@8BL)EARE
P o BRI ZAABEMNEFSE
WAEK168EIL(ZZT - —4F : 0.08%
JT) °

BE_ZT-_=F=A=+—HILFE "

AN E)FEE5,040,0000 (=2 = =45 : #f
)RR

AEBEREARZ BRRREAEERE
REZED  WBRBEIERRBRAF
& BERFEEAEE

LIR& {5 Fe X 8k

(a)

AR {7 SE

EREBEERBREER_ZE_ZFF
P9 A =00 B R BT 21 (%
M EREEED) - BRIDEEEETEIE M A
QETRTLHEEEH 2R - I
BRERESEABERS 0 kb
Wal &z AT » RHEREE K
REREETER  BESBEE
2 EEBRNEFEBZER LA RKE
FREBTEREME DEBIRARN
SEEBENLEER  TEAEFESHESE
%%%ﬁ%%&&ﬁ%%Zﬂéﬁ
e

RIFFHERA - EREEREERKRE
ExenEFTHMRERBRE
iRt &SRB SR B A - BB AR (D D
“HERERE - K (EEE N2
1/3 2B FE TN 15 48 /R AR SR B IR 7%
HEEZNAHNREEAEFRE
(b)EERNIA T 2 1/3 R I 0 FEE B 4
AMREERAESBREZE @
EFERE ¢ (c)=EIR 2 1/35E X
MEEZHBEMREESANEER
BZE=(AEFRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. BB {n e ARk (1)

(a) Share award (Continued) (a) B{mEEEh (48)

Movement and details of the award shares during the year are as NE R RZEAR (0 (THEEIAR (0 ) B Ehan

178 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

follows: T
Number of award shares
EmkHA®E
24 April 2020 29 June 2020 Total
—E-Ef ot Jon 3
mA=+mA ~BZ+hAH #t
million million million
BER BER BER
Ouistanding as at 1 April 2021 R=Z=—FMA—HEARE 2% 64 90
Vested during the year AEERE 9) (21) (30)
Ouistanding as at 31 March 2022 R=ZE-_—F=A=+—HK
and 1 April 2022 “E-FNA-BRARE 17 43 60
Vested during the year AEERB 8) (22) (30)
Lapsed/cancelled during the year 2RSSR/ 45 84 (2) - )
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 R=ZE-—F=A=+—HHEARE 7 21 28
Share price at date of grant (HKS) 7 H B El 2 BR(B (A TT) 0.246 0.148
Fair value at date of grant REHAHZ AEE
(HK$ million) Em 48 10
2023 2022
—E-= —E-CF
HK$’million HK$ million
BEET BEAT
Share-based payment expenses KR AARAS 2 6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. LIB& {7 X TR (§8)
(a) Share award (Continued) (@) B{nEEEh (48)

Details of the specific categories of award shares are as follows: BEaR 2 SRERMOFFIFAT -
2023 2022
—BC=F —T_-_—fF
Numbers of Numbers of
Date of grant Vesting period share awards  share awards
BRIREEMmIBY AR {n) SEE)EX

/A BB B =

(million) (million)

(B®ER) (BER)

24 April 2020 —EB-FF 24 April 2020— —ECTFNATEABE
MAZ=+mHE 24 April 2022 “E-_FPPA=+EA - 9
24 April 2020 —EB-FF 24 April 2020— —ECEFNAFTEABE
WMAZ+MHE 24 April 2023 —E-=FPA=+MA 7 9
29June2020 —E-FF 29 June 2020— —E-EFRAZTARE
NAZTAB 29 June 2022 —E--FRAZT B - 21
29June2020 —ET-FF 29 June 2020— —E-EFRAZTARE
NAZTAB 29 June 2023 —E-=FA=ThH 21 21
28 60
As at 31 March 2023, Fok Chi Tak, the executive director of the HZ2023FE38318 F ARTIRER
Company and HTICI, holds 20 million (2022: 40 million) share B2 AT e S EiEs
awards. 2,000 8% (20224 : 4,000% %) Bk 17 £2
Ej] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. LB {n s 13k (48)
(b) Emolument shares (b) MiB{n
Movement of the emolument shares granted by HTICI during the FA - 2REBEZIEER T 2 M
year are as follows: SROHEBIT -
Emolument
Shares
BA & B%
6 October
2020
t- Jad- 32
+A7KH
Qutstanding as at 1 April 2021 KRB —FMA—BEARRT 9
Granted during the year AEZRE (3)
QOutstanding as at 31 March 2022 RZBE-_—_F=A=1+—HK
and 1 April 2022 —E-FMNA—HEAERE 6
Vested during the year AEERD (3)
Qutstanding as at 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=HA=+—HEREH 3
Share price at date of grant (HK$) REL BB RECET) 0.395
Fair value at date of grant (HK$ million) REHBHz A FEBEEST) 3
2023 2022
—B-= T F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Share-based payment expenses AR A A 2 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 40. BB {n ARk (1)

(b) Emolument shares (Continued)

(b)

Details of the specific categories of emolument shares are as

follows:

Date of grant

Vesting period

B & B {7 (48)
BB < REIBROFBOT

2023 2022
—E-=E —E- 4
Number of Number of
emolument emolument
shares shares

THAHE REH BB ®E MESRHEE
6 October 2020 6 October 2020 — 6 October 2022 (note) - 3
—ZE-TF+HNH —ETFTARBE
ZEZF+ANE D)
6 October 2020 6 October 2020 — 6 October 2023 (note) 3 3
—ZE-TF+HNH —ETFTARAE
T =F+AXABEED
3 6

Note:

These emolument shares were granted to Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin,
as part of their emolument as non-executive directors of HTICI. If Mr.
Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin ceases to be a director of HTICI for any reason
before any vesting date, Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin shall be entitled
to receive a pro rata portion of the emolument shares calculated on the
basis of the number of days worked by Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin.

(c) Share options

(c)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had granted
approximately 609 million share options entitling Co-High
Investment Management Limited (“Co-High”), an independent
third party, to subscribe for the Company’s shares at the price
of HK$0.25 per option share (subject to adjustments) during the
period from 9 July 2020 to 9 July 2023. The share options have
no vesting period. An amount of approximately HK$39 million was
recognised as share-based payment expenses in respect of this
share option during the year ended 31 March 2021.

GEX

ME RO R T RERBEREZRREIFNT
EEFMEERBEEL  FREME
— & o M A A R BN S AR
FEAHREMESAmABEERX
BEREZRREES - BIFFMHEE R
AR L O ERE B 2 A (D -
STEEERIME S RBUH L EZ TIE
BE e

iR g

HE_T_—F=A=+—HIF
B - ARBIERHH6098 B ER
B HTITBYUEF=7TNeEEERE
BRAR(MEDENE T _FF
TtANBRE-_Z_=FtANA
L ER R B B A A (9 0.2578 TT 2
BRG] THAB)RBARFRND - B
REYEFEBY BE_T_——F
—A=t—HLFE 283988
B ITHER S I E A B 2 AR
AN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

—=E=A=t—HItEE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Share options (Continued)

The share options have no movement during the year and have
remaining contractual life of 0.3 years (2022: 1.3 years). 609
million share options are exercisable as at 31 March 2023 and
2022.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

41. RESERVE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the consolidated financial statements.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

182 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share premium account
of the Company are distributable to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of the
business.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-based payments
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible note reserve

Convertible bonds equity reserve arises from the residual amount
of the net proceeds of convertible bonds less the fair value of the
liability component at the date of issuance. The equity component
will remain as a separate ling item within equity until the conversion
option is exercised (in which case the corresponding portion of
the equity component will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance will be released to the retained earnings/
accumulated losses.

Annual Report 2022/23

40. IR {5 #2113 (48)

(c)

Rig A 1 (18)

ERERFRLTEZE  FHe8
FHAIIE(CT - —F  135F) -
RZE-_=FrR_FT-__F=AHA
=+—H  609EEMBERERN T1T
& o

BhErel TRHAEAZTEREH
RBERARE LIRE 2R -

4. Gk

AEBRAEE R E R ES AR
BHRGANBRENGA EREDED

5I] o

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

B fn @R

B aERNERXHAEHS QA
EEE - REREHERRE - K
RAEAIBEMDEERNESADIKRTA
RAEIBR - HEEBEEZEDIREE 2
B NRARBBERNRBAEERD
BETIFEDIHRES -

LIRS {53 72 X A+ 5k % 0l

AR T2 A SR R 4R AR 1B i & B
MR RES AR SR A E R AR ()
AR ERA T BRER N
TAKBERENRITERRENE
BRefhAT BB M ARTHE

] $58 AR SR AR G O

AR ESEaERELE B AR
BHEAERBEFERETAREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

41. RESERVE (CONTINUED)
(iv) Translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of the
Company and certain subsidiaries with functional currency
other than HKD. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31 March
2023 and 2022.

43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any significant capital commitment at 31 March
2023 and 2022.

4

42.

43.

3% fim (48)

(iv) ¥EGEw
EH B BEBRENIEAE AT EE
BEAOARQRRRETH BRI
ERRAMELANAINEZE - %
EEIRIE AR A BTSRRI 53 AT ELAY
SEBRERIE o

RRAR

RZE_=ZFR_E-__F=ZA=+—
B KEBWEIFMEANAEE -

BE xR

RZE_=ZFR_E-__F=ZA=+—
B AEEWETMEKNEAKE -

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. RBB RS
Key management compensation FEEHEARTH
2023 2022
—E-= T F
HK$’million HK$'million
BEET BEBAT
Short-term employee benefits EHES R 19 19
Share-based payment LARR A FE R A 3K 1 3
20 22

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had no material transactions with related parties during the year
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

Brar e B IR R I o AT EE N - &
ECE N TE - —HF=A=+—H
IEFE  REBWESER@EH IR -

T F=EFR EREGHNEEEERAT 183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

—=E=A=t—HItEE

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

184 Aceso Life Science Group Limited

Major non-cash transaction

For the year ended 31 March 2023

(1)

On 28 October 2022, Novel Advice Limited (“Novel Advice”),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and an independent third party (the “Seller”) entered into
the a share transfer Agreement, pursuant to which Novel
Advice had conditionally agreed to acquire and the Seller
had conditionally agreed to sell 6% of the entire issued
capital of China Pearl Global Limited (“China Pearl”) at the
total consideration of HK$255,000,000 which was settled
upon completion as to (i) HK$50,000,000 by cash; and (ii)
HK$205,000,000 by the issue of the consideration note.

On the same day, Leading Partner Group Limited (“Leading
Partner”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the Seller entered into a share transfer agreement,
pursuant to which Leading Partner has conditionally agreed
to acquire and the Seller has conditionally agreed to sell 4%
of the entire issued capital of China Pearl Global at the total
consideration of HK$170,000,000 which was settled by issue
of consideration note upon completion.

During the year 31 March 2023, the Group’s other receivable
at HK$123 million and loan receivable at HK$157 million
are settled by note payable in the same amount.
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45. REBRKRERME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—Z—

=FZA=1+—HLFE

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

Major non-cash transaction (Continued)

(il

On 7 September 2022, the Group signed a subscription
agreement with Central Wealth, pursuant to which Central
Wealth (1) partially repays a lump sum of HK$8,250,000,
comprising principal of HK$6,000,000 and the interest
accrued of HK$2,250,000; and (2) issues notes in the
principal amount of HK$44,000,000 (the “2nd Central
Wealth Notes”) to settle the Central Wealth Notes of
HK$44,000,000. The 2nd Central Wealth Notes is interest
bearing at 15% per annum, unsecured and due on 6
February 2023. Expected credit loss amounted to HK$1
million was provided as at 31 March 2023.

For the year end 31 March 2022

(1)

(if)

The Group had other receivables of HK$16 million secured
by the CB. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the debtor
of other receivables defaulted and the Group seized the CB
and extinguishment gain on early principal redemption of
convertible note payables of HK$9 million was recognised
accordingly.

In April 2021, HTICI entered into an acquisition agreement
with an independent third party to acquire 49% equity
interests in Kingdom Future with a consideration of
approximately HK$286 million. Kingdom Future, through its
interests in a segregated portfolio of Tisé Opportunities SPC,
acquired shares of New Gains Group Limited, a subsidiary
of China Evergrande Group, which owns Fangchebao
Group Co. Lid*(FEESERMHER A FA. The
consideration was settled by the allotment and issue of
approximately 867 million shares of HTICI which had fair
value of approximately HK$320 million. The transaction was
completed in May 2021. This investment was accounted for
as a financial asset at FVTPL on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

e Y

. FEBReRERME

(a)

FERFRETH ()

(i)

#E
(1)

(i

R-ZE-_—_FhLA+LH XK
EEEPEFERBEDE
B o mE()—AMESR
4@ %88,250,0008 T © BIEAK
6,000,000 T X FEEH A B
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%% 544,000,0008 T B 21
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IR BR T =F
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F=ZA=1+—H CEHEE
BR1008E8TT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF . FERERERMEE
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (h) MEITDELEARZED
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising TREYFA $% BMEFRHEAE
from financing activities during the year: 2 EBEED :

Amount due to Total liabilities
adirectorof Bankand other  Corporate  Convertible Lease Interest  from financing
subsidiaries  horrowings note payables note payables  liabilities payables activities

ffi-%
KELR #ITR fEft MEEDL
ESRE AR BHEERE THARRE 0 HRRR  BRNE  AREE
Himilon — HKSmilion — HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HkSmilon — HKSmilion  HKSmillion
BEST BEAT BEMT  EEAT  ABET  BEET BEAR
Asat 1 April 2021 R-B--F=A=+-H = 1426 652 L A % 2
Chenges in cash flows Rengs 12 530 (22 - (19) (151) 154
Non-Cash changes HREEY
- Finanoe costs ~BEKE - - - 1 1 157 15
- Extinquistment loss onealy ringipal - ~ R BRIAS 7 BEEE
redemption - - - 9) - - 9)
~Re-designation of fair velue of epurchese — FIR RERAS &
consideraion as  resul of early TROREATE
principal redemption - - - (16) - - (16)
— Purchase of property, plant and equipment — WEN B ik 8 - - - - - §
- Addtions of lease -HERE - - - - 1 - 1
~Exchange difference -ERER - (3) - - - () (%9
Asat 3t March 2022and 1 Aprl 2002~ =B -_—F=R=1-H
k=ZE-—_FMA-A A 192 0 = A 9 249
Changes in cash flows fim;@ (20) (129) u - (19) (112) (245)
Nor-cash changes HEEY
~Finance costs ~BENE - - - - 1 12 19
-~ Gain on eary seflement of comorae note — RRATERIE R M £ 7
Dayables s - - - - - (5d) (54)
- Offsetwith comorete rote payebles.  —EURRER Q2R - - 2 - - ) -
= Offsetwithloan and other eceivables  — RO EREME
e - - (260) - - - (260)
- Aoquistion offinencial assets t VIOC) —~WEEAAT BB B A%
AL 2 ENE 2
SRAE = = 375 - - - 375
- Addtions and modffcation of kese.~ —REREFTHE - - - - [ - 1
~Eychange difrence -ERER - (34) - - - 11 ®)
As at 31 March 2023 R-B-=#=A=1-H = 1743 512 = A i 2388
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eI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

(b)

Alcott Global Limited (the “Target Company”)

On 11 May 2022, Victory Bright Limited (the “Vendor”), the
Target Company, both of which is an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Glaring Sand Holdings Limited (the
“Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase 15% of the entire issued share
capital of the Target Company, at a cash consideration of US$20
million (equivalent to approximately HK$156 million). The disposal
of 15% equity interest in the Target Company was completed on 16
May 2022.

The effect of change in the ownership interests of the Target
Company on the equity attributable to owners of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2023 were summarised as follows:

46. HEMBLT

(a)

Alcott Global Limited([ B #E2F)])

RZE-_—_FHA+—8 &HHE
BR A7) ([E A J) &Alcott Global Limited
(TBERAD(MEHABERRRH
I IE2 &K1 E A 7)) E2Glaring Sand
Holdings Limited([& 5 )3T B & #
&R BRERERELE15%
BIZARBEEITRG - REANEH
ETEEROI6EEBT) - HE
15% B2 REaN —_E-_—_FhHA
+NBEK °

HE - =—F=-A=+—HI*F
B BERERRMBEERZESHEHAN
RABEBAE(LEENTZEREN
T

HK$'million
BEET
Consideration received WRIe1EE 156
Increase in non-controlling interest FE1ZE IR 2R3 00 162
Movement in equity R (6)

HT Strategy Fund SPC

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group disposed HT
Strategy Fund SPC (“SPC”) at a cash consideration of HK$1 million
resulted in gain on disposal of HK$1 million. SPC has no asset and
liability at the date of disposal.

(b)

HT Strategy Fund SPC

HE2023F3A31IBILFE - AEE
LATR & R E1008 78 T i &S HT Strategy
Fund SPC(['SPCJ) - 24 & W #100

BT NMHERY - SPCUBEE
KEfE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47. *:AElﬁﬁﬁﬂfiﬂiﬁiaﬁtﬁﬁﬁ
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 18
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) FLAFHMBRKRAER
2023 2022
—E-=E B 4F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHEET BEBITT
Non-current assets EREEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE LB BB A BB 1,533 1,475
Pledge bank deposit EEIRIRITER 30 21
1,563 1,496
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N PR 3,160 2,922
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments E-fb FEUSEIA ~ 54 M FB 7008 - 1
Financial assets at FVTPL WA EFEBEZEETA
BEacemEE 3 4
Corporate note receivable R TR 65 64
3,228 2,991
Total assets BEERE 4,791 4,487
Current liabilities b A=k}
Other payables and accruals HMEMNFIERETER 38 80
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 500 372
Corporate note payables FERT TR 435 390
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHH B A R FUE 1,765 1,496
2,738 2,338
Net current assets MENEERE 490 653
Total assets less current liabilities  FEEERED&RE 2,053 2,149
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company
(Continued)

47.

F LT MBIKR B R R GRS

=g

(a) HELTFIMBIRAERE ()

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
HEREET BEAT
Non-current liabilities ERBNAE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEER - 157
Corporate note payables ERNERE 137 40
137 197
NET ASSETS BEERE 1,916 1,952
Capital and reserves B & B ki
Share capital g2 73 74
Reserves T 1,843 1878
TOTAL EQUITY fERYE 1,916 1,952
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved KRB BRAARR T =F <

by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2023.

At N\REES=eiE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47. XLFIMBRABERFRER
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#8)
(b) Reserves of the Company (b) ELFEEEE
Share-hased
Share payment Accumulated
premium reserve Other reserve losses Total
Y0
AR Xt H Gt RHBR a5t
HKSmillion HKSmilion HKS million HKSmillion HKSmillion
BEET BEAT BEAT BREET BEET
As at 1 April 2021 RZZ2--FmA-A 4 B 40 (1,959) 2847

oo
>

Loss and total comprehensive loss for FRBSE R 2EEEL
ey g S S S U I L1
Transaction with equity holder ERBHEARS

Exercise ofcalloption TR E 8 - - - 8

Asat 31 March 2022 and 1 April 202 =5 ==%=F4

=t+-8k
—E-_EMA-H 4,811 3 40 (3,012) 1,878
Loss and total comprehensive loss for  FERESE R 2EEBL
the year B - - - (35) (35)
As at 31 March 2023 RIFZZE
“A=t-H 4811 3 0 (3,00) 1,843
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 48. RIBBARZER
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (a) EERBLTEFS
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as RZEZ=FRZTE-_=_F=H
follows: = t+t—HZWBARFEBNT -
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Name of the incorporation/ up share capital/  Equity interest attributable
subsidiary establishment registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
ERTRMER
B/ 5/
ElReR R IiE HlEEx FREEESEERE IEEHR
2023 2022
—E-CE —T--fF
Aceso-Promethera Asia Company Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Aceso-Promethera”)
Aceso-Promethera Asia Company &7 10005 7C REER
Limited
(I Aceso-Promethera))

Alcott Global Limited (*Alcott”) BVI US$100 40.43% 4713%  Investment holding

Alcott Global Limited ([ Alcott)) BERIHES  100ET REER

Beijing Hao Tian Investment Fund PRC US$370,000 100% 100% Investment holding

Management Co., Limited
EREAREERERER  +H 370,000 7T REZK
NG
Big Wish Developments Limited (‘Big  BVI US$100 41.51% 4713% Investment holding
Wish”)
Big Wish Developments Limited RERIHES  100ET REER
(IBig Wish)

Chim Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 41.51% 4713% Construction machinery rental and trading
and sales of construction materials
business

GLARAA 00 1,000,000 7 BERMBERIHENK
BEMHHE R

Chim Kee Machinery Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1 41.51% 4713% Construction machinery rental and trading
and sales of construction materials
business

SEmAERLDA 00 BT BEMMAE RHE A REEN
HIEERHK

Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd.(*Dasar”) Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit 2 41.57% 47.13% Property development

Dasar Prisma Scn. Bhd( [Dasar])  HREAD QERALRE MEERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE_—=

—=E=A=t—HItEE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

48. HMRE 2Tz s (1)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) EEMMELFFSE)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Name of the incorporation/ up share capital/  Equity interest attributable
subsidiary establishment registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
ERTRMER
3100 5/
EReR et ] HEhEx FEREREERE TEXS
2023 2022
B T
Esteem Ocean Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
mARRAE RERAHS 1ET REZK
Fujian Nuoai Co., Ltd PRC RMB122,158,800 60% 60% Retailing of men's and women’s apparels
BEAARNERRA I AR #122158,800 BERIETE
JT
Glory Gentury Limited Hong Kong HK$100 41.57% 4713% Investment holding and provision of
group management and administration
Services
EMERRA] 00 1007 REBRA LI EEER R
1TBUARAS
Hao Tian Credit Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 41.51% 4713% Money lending
EXEEBRAT 00 200,000,0007% 7T WE
Hao Tian Finance Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$1,210,000,000 100% 100% Money lending
RRUBERAR BB 1,210,000,0007 7T BE
Hao Tian Hua Tong (Beijing) Co., PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
ERERURNESERLF  HH AERH5,000,0007T REZK
Hao Tian International Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 47.57% 4713% Commodities brokerage
EXREFEXARRA 00 10,000,000/ 7 Hmi&a
Hao Tian International Financial Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 41.57% 4713% Investment holding
Holdings Limited
EXEReRERERAT  &E 10,000,000/ 7 REER
Hao Tian International Securities LimitedHong Kong HK$180,000,000 47.57% 47.13% Securities brokerage business
ERBEREFARRA Bt 180,000,000 7T BARIDER
Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong HK$10,821 100% 100%  Securities investment, investment holding
Limited (*HTM”) and provision of management services
EXRER(EB)BRARIZER B4 10,8217 7T BARE - REERRRHEEE
EE]) R
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

48. HME LR Z S (1)

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) EEMELTFFSE)
Issued and
Place of fully paid
Name of the incorporation/ up share capital/  Equity interest attributable
subsidiary establishment registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
ERTRMER
1 5/
{10 R B HEhEx FAERESEERE IEXH
2023 2022
EBCCHE —T--F
Hong Kong Energy & Mining InvestmentHong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Trading of futures
Management Limited
BEANRBEEREERERAREA 1B HEEE
HTICI Cayman Islands HK$75,593 561 41.51% 47.13% Investment holding
EREFRERRE FEHS 75,593 5617 7T REZK
K B Machinery Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1 41.51% 47.13% Construction machinery rental and trading
and sales of construction materials
business
BULERARAR 00 18T RERMAE RHEAREEN
REEE )
Merrymaking Investment Limited BVI US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
EEBEXEE  10000%7T REZK
Pleasing Results Limited BVI US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEEXES  10000%T REZK
Win Team Investments Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBREAEE 1ET REZK
55 Mark Lane S.ar.l. Luxembourg Eur20,000 100% 100% Rental business
BHE 2000080 7T MEXH
Notes: B aE
(1) The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the best (1) BERETHEAFWEEXNEX
effort by the Group’s management to translate their Chinese BB WZEWBRARZEXH
names, as these subsidiaries do not have official English BOAEEERER HBEZELF
names. XA o
(2)  Allthe above PRC-incorporated subsidiaries are limited liability (2) FrE Lt B B A A
companies. HAEEREERT -
(3)  The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which () LERFIINEAEEZFE  BEX

principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

BEBKEEYEZHNB QR

1B e
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—Z—_=F=A=+—HILFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 48. RIB AT R (18)
(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b)) EXFEREMELH
The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have TR AEERBRAREAERKN
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The JEIERR A RS ([T 2SR B Y -
summarised financial information represents amounts before inter- MBERSERMEL AR HEH
company eliminations. A2 &HE °
(i)  Chim Kee Company Limited (i) HEBARAF
2023 2022
—EZ=HE B F
HK$ million HK$'million
BEET BEATL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—HAZEEKEE
Current assets MEVEE 58 69
Non-current assets EMBEE 150 165
Current liabilities RBAE (22) (56)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (41) (30)
145 148

Profit or loss for the year ended BE=-A=+—HLFEEH

31 March
Revenue WA 42 26
Loss and total comprehensive loss B8 & 2 E B 1B 4B %E
for the year (3) (13)
Loss allocated to non-controlling DRI v BB
interests (2) (6)
Dividend paid to non-controlling SIS R B
interests = =
Cash flows for the year ended HE=ZA=Z1+—HIFEZRE
31 March mE
Net cash inflow from operating KRR MAFRE
activities 34 19
Net cash outflow from investing KEER ML FEE
activities (21) (20)
Net cash outflow from financing BEEER SR FEE
activities (2) &)
11 (10)
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25t JEFEARAE RS 76 77
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48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (Continued) (b)

(ii)

Glory Century Limited

48. HME LR Z S (1)

EXF2EME LT ()
(i) HARRLT

2023 2022
—E-= —EC-CF
HK$’million HK$'million
BHERET BEAL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—HZEEMAE
Current assets mENEE 164 302
Non-current assets EMBEE 49 85
Current liabilities RBAE (269) (436)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (3) (10)
(99) (59)
Profit or loss for the yearended 31 EE=A=+—HIFFE 2 Ex
March
Revenue WA - =
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmF, (E8) 12 (134)
Other comprehensive l0ss Hiph 2 mEEER (12) ()
Total comprehensive loss for the FAZHEEIR
year = (139)
Profit/(loss) allocated to non- DA E TR 2 E
controlling interests (B18) 6 (64)
Dividend paid to non-controlling AT IR R B
interests - =
Cash flows for the year ended BHE=ZA=Z+—HIFEZRS
31 March mE
Net cash outflow from operating KRR SN FER
activities (28) (89)
Net cash inflow from investing KEERSMAFE
activities 35 97
Net cash outflow from financing BEEESE SR FEE
activities (7) (7)
- 1
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25t JEFEARAE RS (31) (31)
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48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 48. RIB AT R (18)
(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (Continued) (b) EXFZ2EMELTGE)
(iii) Hao Tian Credit Company Limited (iii) RXEEFRALTF
2023 2022
—EZ= B F
HK$ million HK$'million
BHERET BEATL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March HRZ=A=+—HZEEM AE
Current assets mENEE 46 422
Current liabilities mEAE (1) (157)
45 265
Profit or loss for the year ended BE-A=+T—HLFEEH
31 March
Revenue WA - 8
Loss and total comprehensive loss GBS I 2 E A5 1B 4B %A
for the year (220) -
Loss allocated to non-controlling DI EIE RS v BB
interests (115) -
Dividend paid to non-controlling SIS 2 R B
interests = =
Cash flows for the year ended HE=ZA=Z+—HIFEZRS
31 March mE
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from K EEIRe (R, AR
operating activities (1) 35
Net cash outflow from financing BEEESE SR FEE
activities - (35)
(1) 5
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25t JEIEARAE RS 24 138
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48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (Continued)

(iv) Hao Tian International Construction Investment

48.

RBLTFZED (1)
(b) EXIRAMBLE ()
(iv) REEREREALMARL

Group Limited 7
2023 2022
—=E-=F —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BHRET BEAL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—HZEEMAE
Current assets mENEE 1,336 1,065
Non-current assets EMBEE 707 883
Current liabilities REAE (218) (315)
1,825 1,633
Profit or loss for the year ended BE-A=+—BHLFEZEH
31 March
Revenue WA 13 9
Profit for the year FREH 189 4
Other comprehensive loss HibzmEER - (1)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2 EL# T, (B518) 4858 189 @)
Profit allocated to non-controlling 2Bt 2= JEFEAG M 25 2 Y 7
interests 99 2
Dividend paid to non-controlling YA IR R B
interests - -
Cash flows for the year ended BE=ZA=Z1+—HIEFEEZRE
31 March mE
Net cash inflow from operating KRB MAFRE
activities 28 4
Net cash inflow from investing REEESRESRAFRE
activities - 12
Net cash outflow from financing REEEH S MLFRE
activities (28) (12)
- 4
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25t FEFE AR AE =S 957 853
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE

48. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 48. WBATZER ()
(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (Continued) (b)) EXFEZ2EMELFGR)
(v) Alcott Global Limited (v) Alcott Global Limited
2023 2022
—EZ= —E-F
HK$’million HK$'million
BRET BEBTT

Assets and liabilities asat 31 March M=A=+—HZ2EENARE
Non-current assets ERENEE 1,127 1127

Profit or loss for the year ended HEZAZ=+—RHILFEZIER

31 March
Revenue WA - =
Loss for the year FNEE (3) -
Other comprehensive income Hiph 2w 3 11
Total comprehensive income EHEHRAEER - 11
Loss allocated to non-controlling DEEE IR AE R 2 518
interests = =
Dividend paid to non-controlling ST IEERER RS
interests = =
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25t 3EFfEzS 671 596
No cash inflow and outflow during the year ended 31 March S N SR =) g S
2023 and 2022. —A=+—81 WERELRK

AR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZE—ZT—=F=A=+—HILtFE

49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

90.

(1)

()

3)

Purchase of bonds

On 13 June 2023, True Well Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, executed an order with SCB for a bond
purchase at the consideration of HK$250,848,000.

Disposal of associates

On 26 June 2023, Hao Tian Media & Culture Company Limited,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an
agreement for the disposal of 49% equity interest in Grand Peaceful
Global Limited at a consideration of HK$2 million.

On 26 June 2023, Victor Ocean Developments Limited, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an
agreement for the disposal of 49% equity interest in Lion Run
Holdings Limited at a consideration of HK$1 million.

Disposal of a joint venture

On 26 June 2023, Hao Tian Media & Culture Company Limited,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, executed an
agreement for the disposal of 50% equity interest in Success View
Global Limited at a consideration of HK$2 million.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2023.

(1)

()

3)

49. HREMEFER

BMERS

R-ZZB-_=FXA+T=H" &xR7F
MR EMBRARTEEAR LA
A EBRERITATHEIABERS
7 B /250,848,00078 7T °

HEBELT

RZEZ=ZFXAZ+,8 &2
ANEEEENB AR ZRERE
{tERABIZEEZEHHN200EETLH
{EE & RERIRIRE R A R HI49%A%
T o

RZE_=ZFXAZ+B " &xA
RIMEEIEEENBRAREFERERE
ERRARREERHEAI0B B THE
BHEMEIEIRER DT A49% 8

HE—FHSELR

RZEZ=ZFXAZ+,8 £&2A
ANEEEENBARZRER
{LERRABIZEERHEN200EETLH
EEHEISRIRER QA AI50%%
T o

50. #tEGREMBERE

HEMBRRCHEFEN _T_=FX

BAZ T N\BH#EREERE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS xR
Year ended 31 March
8F=A=+—HLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
“T-NEF —E-%F T —T--fF CBZZ=E
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$’million
BEET BEET BB BB HEET
Revenue KA 320 296 346 315 312
Profit/(loss) for the year TIATEIEFENER
attributable to: F/(&18) :
— owners of the Company —AREERA (381) (284) (376) (370) (264)
— non-controlling interests —JEIE AR R (36) 6 28 (226) 56
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (B8 (417) (278) (348) (596) (208)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
As at 31 March
R=A=+—-H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
“T-NF “Z-TF it Sc3 S - e
HK$'million HK$'million HK$ million HK$ million HK$’million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEET
Total assets BERE 5,505 5,034 6,165 6,263 6,301
Total liabilities ARG @171 (2,538) (3,151) (3,436) (3,726)
2784 2496 3,014 2827 2,575
Equity atributable to owners of the - N2 BJHE B A RE(G#E4
Company 2,631 2490 2,382 2,002 1,549
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